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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Louisiana LLC (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Associates LLP
The Skyview 10, 18th Floor,
“Zone A”, Survey No 83/1, Raidurgam,
Hyderabad 500 032, India.
Date: 12 May 2021.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
As of
PARTICULARS
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and Borrowings
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Retained Earnings
Share based payment reserve
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Note

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

6
7
8
9

1,313
4,497,067
17,042,703
720,237
22,261,320

29,711
2,474,259
10,743,569
315,770
13,563,309

10
11

38,561,855
2,479,209
41,041,064
63,302,384

41,696,961
2,479,209
44,176,170
57,739,479

13
18
14

4,661,017
89,982,836
2,869,277
97,513,130

3,878,626
74,751,853
2,942,974
81,573,453

19

3,813,425
3,813,425
101,326,555

4,145,775
4,145,775
85,719,228

15

40,000,000
(78,496,112)
471,941
(38,024,171)
63,302,384

40,000,000
(68,375,673)
395,924
(27,979,749)
57,739,479

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
INCOME STATEMENT
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
Revenue
Cost of revenues
Gross loss
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Other (income)/expense, net
Total operating expenses
Results from operating activities
Loss before tax
Tax expense/(benefit), net
Loss for the year

Note

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

16

17

19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

39,642,514
46,205,284
(6,562,770)
3,744,199
2,556,929
177,712
6,478,840
(13,041,610)
(13,041,610)
(2,921,171)
(10,120,439)

25,278,501
43,424,630
(18,146,129)
4,003,878
1,159,272
(1,570,534)
3,592,616
(21,738,745)
(21,738,745)
(4,618,628)
(17,120,117)
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the Income statement:
Total of items that will be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Other comprehensive (loss) / profit for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(10,120,439)

(17,120,117)

-

-

-

-

(10,120,439)

(17,120,117)
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
Particulars
Balance as of April 01, 2019 (A)
Loss for the year
Total Comprehensive income (B)
Share-based payment expense
Total transactions with owners of the
Company (C)
Balance as of March 31,2020 [(A)+(B)+( C)]
Balance as of April 01, 2020 (A)
Loss for the year
Total Comprehensive income (B)
Share-based payment expense
Total transactions with owners of the
Company (C)
Balance as of March 31,2021 [(A)+(B)+( C)]

Share Capital
40,000,000
-

Share based
payment reserve
338,875
57,049

Retained
earnings
(51,255,556)
(17,120,117)
(17,120,117)
-

(10,916,681)
(17,120,117)
(17,120,117)
57,049

-

57,049

40,000,000

395,924

(68,375,673)

(27,979,749)

40,000,000
-

395,924
76,017

(68,375,673)
(10,120,439)
(10,120,439)
-

(27,979,749)
(10,120,439)
(10,120,439)
76,017

-

76,017

40,000,000

471,941

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

Total

(78,496,112)

57,049

76,017
(38,024,171)
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
Particulars
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Share based payment expense
Inventory write downs
Liabilities written back
Tax expense/(benefit), net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other assets and other liabilities
Trade and other payables
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from loans and borrowings from parent company, net
Net cash from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(10,120,439)

(17,120,117)

3,655,898
177,774
76,017
2,220,710
(2,921,171)

3,587,260
(12,986)
57,049
4,143,478
(318,750)
(4,618,628)

(2,022,808)
(8,519,844)
2,626,750
630,757
(14,196,356)

(78,406)
(2,265,143)
3,561,545
1,825,750
(11,238,948)

(546,930)
(546,930)

(2,360,961)
12,755
(2,348,206)

14,714,888
14,714,888
(28,398)
29,711
1,313

13,535,979
13,535,979
(51,175)
80,886
29,711
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
1. Reporting entity
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Louisiana LLC (“the Company”/“DRL Louisiana”) incorporated in April 2008, for acquiring a contract manufacturing
plant from BASF, Shreveport, Louisiana, USA. As a result of this acquisition, DRL Louisiana has become a 100% subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories Inc. The entity is involved in contract manfacturing based on specifi requirements of customers.
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
a. Statement of compliance
These financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021 comply in all material aspects with the International Financial Reporting
Standards and its interpretations (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant IFRS that are effective or elected for
early adoption at the Company’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2021. These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the
Company’s Board of Directors on May 12, 2021.
b. Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following material items in
the statement of financial position:
• derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;
• financial assets are measured either at fair value or at amortized cost depending on the classification;
• share-based payments are measured at fair value;
c. Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s operations are self-contained and integrated within the respective countries/regions (i.e., United States of America), the functional
currency has been determined to be the local currency of that country (i.e., U.S. Dollar).
d. Going Concern
The Company’s financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 have been prepared on a going concern basis which
assumes that the Group will continue to be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had working capital deficit of USD 75,251,810 and USD 68,010,144 respectively. The Company
had incurred losses of USD 10,120,439 and USD 17,120,117 and had negative cash flow from operations of USD 14,196,355 and USD
11,238,948 for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively. Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc. (the 'Holding Company') has
undertaken to provide such financial support as necessary, to enable the Company to meet the operational requirements as they arise and to meet
it's liabilities as and when they fall due. The management expects that there will be significant increase in the operations of the Company that will
lead to improved cash flow and long term sustainability.
Based on these factors, inspite of the incurred losses and negative cash flows from operations in the Company, the financial statements are
prepared with going concern assumption.
e. Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in
the following notes:
• Note 2(c) — Assessment of functional currency;
• Notes 3(b)— Financial instruments;
• Notes 3(e) and (f) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
• Notes 3(h) — Valuation of inventories;
• Notes 3(n) — Measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units;
• Notes 3 (k) — Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits;
• Notes 3 (k) — Share-based payments;
• Note 3(i) — Provisions and other accruals;
• Note 3(j) — Measurement of transaction price in a revenue transaction (Sales returns, rebates and chargeback provisions);
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
3. Significant accounting policies
New Standards adopted by the Company
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
The amendments provided a new definition to the word “material” as follows:
‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.’
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users.
An information is considered to be obscured if it is communicated in a way that would have a similar effect for primary users of financial
statements to omitting or misstating that information. The amendments provided examples of circumstances that may result in information being
obscured.
Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
The amendments clarified the definition of a business for the purpose of identifying a business combination under IFRS 3, “Business
Combinations”. As per the revised definition, business is ‘an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being conducted and managed
for the purpose of providing goods or services to customers, generating investment income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other
income from ordinary activities’.
A related amendment has been made to the definition of ‘output’ as an element of business.
The amendments include an election to use a ‘concentration test’. This is a simplified assessment that would cause an acquisition to qualify as an
asset acquisition. The concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets.
An entity is required to apply the amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020, and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period.
This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enter into any
business combinations.
Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
The IASB published “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase II (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)” representing the finalization of
Phase II of the project on August 27, 2020 to address issues that might affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative benchmark interest rate.
The amendments to IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected
by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of
benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.
The amendments to IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging
relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in IFRS 9 are applied.
These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.
Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19 related rent concessions
IFRS 16, “Leases” was amended by IASB on May 28, 2020 to provide limited relief to lessees in respect of rent concessions arising due to
COVID-19 pandemic. No relief has been allowed to the lessors.
The amendments provide a practical expedient that lessees may elect to not treat any rent concessions, provided by lessors as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic, as lease modifications. However, to be eligible for this relief:
• the revised consideration for the lease should be less than or equal to the lease consideration immediately before the change;
• the rent concession should be for a period that does not extend beyond June 30, 2021 (for example, lease rents are reduced for a period up to
June 30, 2021 and increased for periods thereafter); and
• there should be no substantial modification to the other terms and conditions of the lease.
Lessee should apply the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. In case a lessee has not yet approved the
financial statements for issue before the issuance of the amendments, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after the January 1, 2019.
The aforesaid amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of the Company at exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were
translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognized in the income statement in the period in which
they arise.
When several exchange rates are available, the rate used is that at which the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have
been settled if those cash flows had occurred at the measurement date.
b. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (e.g., regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, in which case they are recognized at fair value. The Company’s trade receivables do not contain any significant financing
component and hence are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
• Debt instruments at amortized cost;
• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in income statement and presented in other income/(losses),net. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements
are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the income statement. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to the income
statement. Interest earned while holding a FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the income statement.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the income statement, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.Equity investments designated as FVTOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the income statement.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s financial position) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• Both (1) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and (2) either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Impairment of trade receivables and other financial assets
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.
For this purpose, the Company follows a “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on the trade receivable balances. The
application of this simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analyzed.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial
instruments.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the income statement.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to the income statement. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the income statement. The Company
has not designated any financial liability as fair value through profit and loss.
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Loans and borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the income statement.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For this purpose, “short-term” means investments having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of investment. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
c. Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in
IAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements”.
Assets:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms
of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
Current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. All other assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
d. Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and stock options are recognized as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares)
When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any
tax effects, is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from
total equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings.
e. Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement:
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
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When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.
Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within “Other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and
maintenance are recognized in the income statement as incurred.
Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value, unless the exchange
transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the
asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up.
Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. The
depreciation expense is included in the costs of the functions using the asset. Land is not depreciated but subject to impairment.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over period of the lease agreement or the useful life, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are considered prospectively. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Buildings
Factory and administrative buildings
Ancillary structures
Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles

25 - 50 years
3 - 15 years
3 - 15 years
3 - 10 years
4 - 5 years

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral part of a tangible asset, including
consultancy charges for implementing the software, is capitalized as part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated with
maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized over the estimated useful life of the software
or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset, whichever is lower.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and
equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. Assets not ready for use are not depreciated but are
tested for impairment.
f. Goodwill and other Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred, together with the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, over the fair
value of the Company’s share of identifiable net assets acquired.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment, and any impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying value of the equity accounted investee.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.
Research and development
Expenditures on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding are
recognized in the income statement when incurred.
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. Development
expenditures are capitalized only if:
• development costs can be measured reliably;
• the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;
• future economic benefits are probable; and
• the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset.
The expenditures to be capitalized include the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.
Other development expenditures are recognized in the income statement as incurred.
Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments and milestones for in-licensed products, compounds and intellectual
property are capitalized. The Company’s criteria for capitalization of such assets are consistent with the guidance given in paragraph 25 of
International Accounting Standard 38 (“IAS 38”) (i.e., the receipt of economic benefits embodied in each intangible asset separately purchased or
licensed in the transaction is considered to be probable).
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In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D”)
Acquired research and development intangible assets that are under development are recognized as In-Process Research and Development assets
(“IPR&D”). IPR&D assets are not amortized, but evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are indications that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such IPR&D assets is recorded in the income statement under "Impairment of
non-current assets".
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.
All other expenditures, including expenditures on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in the income statement as incurred.
Amortization
Amortization is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The amortization
expense is recognized in the income statement in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible asset. Intangible assets
that are not available for use are amortized from the date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Product related intangibles
Other intangibles

3 - 15 years
3 - 15 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date. Changes in
the expected useful lives or expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate and are treated as change in accounting estimate.
Goodwill, intangible assets relating to products in development, other intangible assets not available for use and intangible assets having indefinite
useful life are subject to impairment testing at each reporting date. All other intangible assets are tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. All impairment losses are recognized immediately in the income statement under “Impairment of
non-current assets”.
De-recognition of intangible assets
Intangible assets are de-recognized either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits are expected from their use. Losses arising on
such de-recognition are recorded in the income statement, and are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of respective intangible assets as at the date of de-recognition.
g. Leases
The Company's accounting policies relating to leases for periods ending on or after April 1, 2019 are as follows:
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease, that is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
the identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company recognized right-of-use asset at the commencement date of
lease, i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value
basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments to be made over the lease term:
• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
• amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees;
• the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions. The Company’s lease liabilities are included in borrowings.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest cost. The interest cost is charged to Stanalone income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment comprising the following:
• the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
• any initial direct costs; and
• restoration costs.
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognized on the statements of financial position at cost, which is calculated as the amount of the initial
measurement of the corresponding lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease, any
lease incentive received and any initial direct costs incurred by the Company.
h. Inventories
Inventories consist of raw materials, stores and spares, work in progress and finished goods and are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The cost of all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the
case of finished goods and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. Stores and
spares consists of packing materials, engineering spares (such as machinery spare parts) and consumables (such as lubricants, cotton waste and
oils), which are used in operating machines or consumed as indirect materials in the manufacturing process.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The factors that the Company considers in determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory include estimated
shelf life, planned product discontinuances, price changes, aging of inventory and introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each of
these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. The Company considers all these factors and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect
its actual experience on a periodic basis.
i. Provisions
A provision is recognized in the income statement if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
Restructuring
A provision for restructuring is recognized in the income statement when the Company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and
the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are not provided.
Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized in the income statement when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
Reimbursement rights
Expected reimbursements for expenditures required to settle a provision are recognized in the income statement only when receipt of such
reimbursements is virtually certain. Such reimbursements are recognized as a separate asset in the statement of financial position, with a
corresponding credit to the specific expense for which the provision has been made.
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent assets are assessed continually and, if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income
are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.
j. Revenue
The Company’s revenue is derived from sales of goods, service income and income from licensing arrangements. Most of such revenue is
generated from the sale of goods. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognsied when the control of the goods has been transferred to a third party. This is usually when the title passes to the customer,
either upon shipment or upon receipt of goods by the customer. At that point, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the product.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the transaction price which is the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, taxes and
applicable trade discounts and allowances. Revenue includes shipping and handling costs billed to the customer.
In arriving at the transaction price, the Company considers the terms of the contract with the customers and its customary business practices. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration the Company is entitled to receive in exchange for transferring promised goods or services.
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Profit share revenues
The Company from time to time enters into marketing arrangements with certain business partners for the sale of its products in certain markets.
Under such arrangements, the Company sells its products to the business partners at a non-refundable base purchase price agreed upon in the
arrangement and is also entitled to a profit share which is over and above the base purchase price. The profit share is typically dependent on the
business partner’s ultimate net sale proceeds or net profits, subject to any reductions or adjustments that are required by the terms of the
arrangement. Such arrangements typically require the business partner to provide confirmation of units sold and net sales or net profit
computations for the products covered under the arrangement.
Revenue in an amount equal to the base purchase price is recognsied in these transactions upon delivery of products to the business partners. An
additional amount representing the profit share component is recognsied as revenue only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company updates the estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.
k. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.
Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as and when the services are received from the
employees.
Compensated absences
The Company’s current policies permit certain categories of its employees to accumulate and carry forward a portion of their unutilized
compensated absences and utilize them in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof in accordance with the terms of such policies. The
Company measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company incurs as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such measurement is based on actuarial valuation as at the reporting date carried out
by a qualified actuary.
Equity settled share-based payment transactions
The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense in the income statement, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognized as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and performance conditions at the vesting date. The expense
is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized
in connection with share-based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under “share-based payment reserve”. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that vest.
Cash settled share-based payment transactions
The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share-based payment transactions which are settled in cash is recognized as an
expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The
liability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the settlement date based on the fair value of the share-based payment transaction. Any
changes in the liability are recognized in the income statement.
l. Income tax
Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary
differences:
- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit;
- temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and
- taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.
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A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that the future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Accruals for uncertain tax positions require management to make judgments of potential exposures. Accruals for uncertain tax positions are
measured using either the most likely amount or the expected value amount depending on which method the entity expects to better predict the
resolution of the uncertainty. Tax benefits are not recognized unless the tax positions will probably be accepted by the tax authorities. This is
based upon management’s interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the expectation of how the tax authority will resolve the matter.
Once considered probable of not being accepted, management reviews each material tax benefit and reflects the effect of the uncertainty in
determining the related taxable amounts.
m. Government grants
The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied with,
and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets are presented as a reduction to the carrying amount of the related
asset. Grants related to income are deducted in reporting the related expense in the income statement.
n. Impairment
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, an impairment test is performed each year at March
31.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).
The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for the purpose of impairment testing, allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit is lower than
its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in a joint venture is not recognized
separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in a joint venture is tested for
impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture may be impaired.
An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of investment with its carrying
amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
o. Finance income and expense
Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, dividend income and gains on the disposal of financial assets. Interest income is
recognized in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on
the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established. The associated cash flows are classified as investing activities in the statement
of cash flows. Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings.
Borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement using the effective interest method. The associated cash flows are classified as financing
activities in the statement of cash flows.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis within finance income and expense. These primarily include: exchange differences
arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items; changes in the fair value of derivative contracts that economically hedge monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting is applied; and the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges.
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Determination of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for certain financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as assets acquired in a business combination and significant liabilities, such
as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is determined by the Management, based on market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
(i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, if acquired in a business combination or through an exchange of non-monetary assets, is measured at fair value on
the acquisition date. For this purpose, fair value is based on appraised market values and replacement cost.
(ii) Intangible assets
The fair value of brands, technology related intangibles, and patents and trademarks acquired in a business combination is based on the discounted
estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of these brands, technology related intangibles, patents or trademarks being owned
(the “relief of royalty method”). The fair value of customer related, product related and other intangibles acquired in a business combination has
been determined using the multi-period excess earnings method. Under this method, value is estimated as the present value of the benefits
anticipated from ownership of the intangible assets in excess of the returns required or the investment in the contributory assets necessary to
realize those benefits.
(iii) Inventories
The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined based on its estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the
inventories.
(iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar
lease agreements. In respect of the Company’s borrowings that have floating rates of interest, their fair value approximates carrying value.
(v) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of employee stock options is measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. Measurement inputs include share price
on grant date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted average historical volatility), expected life of the instrument
(based on historical experience), expected dividends, and the risk free interest rate (based on government bonds).
5.

Capital management

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company manages it’s capital structure and makes adjustments in the light
of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital plus debt.
The capital gearing ratio as on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was 173% and 160%, respectively.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
As of
March 31, 2021
Current
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow

1,212
101
1,313

March 31, 2020
1,212
28,499
29,711

7. Trade and Other receivables

Trade and other receivables
Due from Related parties *
Trade and other receivables, net
* Refer note 18

As of
March 31, 2021
2,964,442
1,532,625
4,497,067

March 31, 2020
2,043,862
430,397
2,474,259

As of
March 31, 2021
11,724,155
1,852,963
2,337,370
1,128,215
17,042,703

March 31, 2020
6,579,927
1,744,767
1,770,042
648,833
10,743,569

8. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:

Raw materials
Packing materials, stores and spares
Work-In-Progress
Finished goods
Total Inventories

During the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded inventory write-downs of USD 2,220,710 and USD 4,143,478
respectively. These adjustments are included as part of cost of revenues in the income statement.
Cost of revenues for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 includes raw materials, changes in finished goods recognsied in the income
statement of USD 20,103,088 and USD 16,711,236 respectively. Cost of revenues for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, includes other
expenditures recognsied in the income statement of USD 26,102,196 and USD 26,713,394 respectively.
9. Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:
As of
March 31, 2021
Current
Due from related parties *
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Total Other Current Assets
* Refer note 18

516,095
180,863
23,279
720,237

March 31, 2020
144,308
171,462
315,770
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10. Property plant and equipment: The following is a summary of the change in carrying value of property, plant and equipment.
Particulars
Land
Buildings
Plant & Machinery
Furniture & fixtures
Office equipment
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1, 2019
839,844
18,768,481
45,018,931
1,293,773
733,918
Additions
14,719
2,365,745
706
Disposals
(13,940)
(48,688)
Balance as at March 31, 2020
839,844
18,783,200
47,370,736
1,245,085
734,624
Balance as at April 1, 2020
839,844
18,783,200
47,370,736
1,245,085
734,624
Additions
473,484
789,566
Disposals
(68,014)
(9,075)
(1,276)
Balance as at March 31, 2021
839,844
19,256,684
48,092,288
1,236,010
733,348
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019
5,362,055
18,882,299
1,045,269
668,775
Depreciation during the year
807,650
2,671,919
74,470
28,821
Disposals
(13,940)
(48,920)
Balance as at March 31, 2020
6,169,705
21,540,278
1,070,819
697,596
Balance as at April 1, 2020
6,169,705
21,540,278
1,070,819
697,596
Depreciation during the year
818,260
2,747,216
68,224
17,798
Disposals
(62,859)
(9,075)
(1,276)
Balance as at March 31, 2021
6,987,965
24,224,635
1,129,968
714,118
Net Carrying Value
As at April 01, 2019
839,844
13,406,426
26,136,632
248,504
65,143
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at April 01, 2019
As at March 31, 2020
839,844
12,613,495
25,830,458
174,266
37,028
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021
839,844
12,268,719
23,867,653
106,042
19,230
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at March 31, 2021

Vehicles

Total

26,384
(4,384)
22,000
22,000
22,000

66,681,331
2,381,170
(67,012)
68,995,489
68,995,489
1,263,050
(78,365)
70,180,174

6,445
4,400
(4,383)
6,462
6,462
4,400
10,862

25,964,843
3,587,260
(67,243)
29,484,860
29,484,860
3,655,898
(73,210)
33,067,548

19,939

40,716,488
2,280,620
42,997,108
39,510,629
2,186,332
41,696,961
37,112,626
1,449,229
38,561,855

15,538

11,138

Capital commitment: As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the company had capital commitments of USD 242,606 and USD 173,925 under agreements for purchase property plant
and equipment. The amount is net of capital advances paid in respect of such commitments.

665

DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES LOUISIANA LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
11. Goodwill
Goodwill arising upon business acquisitions is not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if there is
any indication that the cash generating unit to which goodwill is allocated is impaired.
The following table presents the changes in goodwill during the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

Opening balance, gross
Goodwill arising on business combinations during the year
Effect of translation adjustments
Impairment loss
Closing balance

As of,
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2,479,209
2,479,209
2,479,209
2,479,209

The recoverable amounts of the above cash generating units have been assessed using a value-in-use model. Value in use is the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit. Initially a post-tax discount rate is
applied to calculate the net present value of the post-tax cash flows. Key assumptions on which the Company has based its
determinations of value-in-use include:
a)
Estimated cash flows for five years based on management’s budgets and estimates.
b)
Terminal value arrived by extrapolating last forecasted year cash flows to perpetuity, using a constant long-term growth rate of
0%. This long-term growth rate takes into consideration external macroeconomic sources of data. Such long-term growth rate
considered does not exceed that of the relevant business and industry sector.
c)
The post-tax discount rates used are based on the Company’s weighted average cost of capital.
d) Value-in-use is calculated using after tax assumptions. The use of after tax assumptions does not result in a value-in-use that is
materially different from the value-in-use that would result if the calculation was performed using before tax assumptions. The after
tax discount rates used for impairment evaluation was 7.6% and the pre-tax discount rate was 9.7%.
The Company believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which a recoverable amount is based would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
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12. Other intangible assets
The following is a summary of changes in carrying value of other intangible assets:
Particulars

Product related
intangibles

Other
intangibles

Total

Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1, 2019
Additions
De–recognitions
Balance as at March 31, 2020

3,900,000
3,900,000

313,291
313,291

4,213,291
4,213,291

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
De–recognitions*
Balance as at March 31, 2021

3,900,000
3,900,000

313,291
313,291

4,213,291
4,213,291

amortization/Impairment Loss
Balance as at April 1, 2019
amortization during the period
De–recognitions*
Balance as at March 31, 2020

3,900,000
3,900,000

313,291
313,291

4,213,291
4,213,291

Balance as at April 1, 2020
amortization during the period
De–recognitions*
Balance as at March 31, 2021

3,900,000
3,900,000

313,291
313,291

4,213,291
4,213,291

-

-

-

Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2019
As at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021
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13. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables consist of the following:

Due to related parties*
Others trade payables
Capital creditors
Creditors for expenses
Total
* Refer Note 18

As of
March 31, 2021
296,916
3,018,431
252,684
1,092,986
4,661,017

March 31, 2020
238,341
2,656,003
101,050
883,232
3,878,626

As of
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

14. Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consist of the following:

Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses
Other Current Liabilities
Other liabilities – inter unit*
Total
* Refer Note 18

2,787,689
72,183
9,405
2,869,277

2,770,349
149,020
23,605
2,942,974

15. Share Capital

Fully paid up capital
As at April 01
Add: Additional paid up share capital
As at March 31

As of
March 31, 2021
40,000,000
40,000,000
40,000,000

March 31, 2020
40,000,000
40,000,000
40,000,000

The company presently has only one class of equity shares with an par value of USD 10 per share. For all matters
submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holder of an equity share, as reflected in the records of
the Company on the date of shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share field.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, all preferential amounts, if any, shall be discharged by the Company. The
remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares
held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date.
16. Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue consists of the following:

Sales to third parties
Sales to related parties*
Service income from third parties
Loss share from related parties*

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
18,233,869
7,654,897
21,632,438
17,713,741
414,113
(637,906)
(90,137)
39,642,514
25,278,501

* Refer note 18
17. Other (income)/expense, net
Other expense/ (income), net consist of the following:

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Liabilities written back
Others

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
177,774
(12,986)
(318,750)
(62)
(1,238,798)
177,712
(1,570,534)
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18. Related parties
The Company has entered into transactions with the following related parties:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Tennessee, LLC*
Promius Pharma LLC
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories New York, LLC
Dr. Reddy's Labs Canada
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, SA

Ultimate Parent company
Parent company
Company under common control
Company under common control
Company under common control
Company under common control
Company under common control

* Liquidated with effect from September 28, 2018
The following is a summary of significant related party transactions:
Particulars
Purchases from:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Loan from:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
Sales to:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, SA
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Service income from:
(Loss)/Profit share from Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
Reimbursement of Expenses to:
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories New York,Inc

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

471,893

407,810

14,714,888

13,535,979

17,123,584
4,507,837
1,017

13,731,462
3,982,279
-

(637,906)

(90,137)

9,405

-

The Company has the following amounts due from related parties (included in trade receivables and other current assets):
As of
Particulars
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
516,095
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, SA
1,532,625
430,397
Total amounts due from related parties
2,048,720
430,397
The Company has the following amounts due to related parties (Included in Loan & Borrowings, Trade payables & Other
Liabilities):
As of
Particulars
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
296,916
238,341
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc. (refer note a)
89,982,836
74,751,853
Promius Pharma LLC
23,605
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories New York,Inc
9,405
90,289,157
75,013,799
Note a:
Represents loans and borrowings received from group companies. Refer to Note 2(d) for details. These borrowings are
repayable on demand and hence presented as current liability in the financial statements.
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19. Income taxes
a. Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the income statement
Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the income statement consists of the following:
Particulars
Current taxes
Current taxes expense/(benefit)
Deferred taxes
Deferred taxes expense/(benefit)
Total income tax expense/(benefit) in income statement

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(2,588,821)
(2,588,821)

(4,330,758)
(4,330,758)

(332,350)
(332,350)
(2,921,171)

(287,870)
(287,870)
(4,618,628)

The Company is considered as disregarded entity for the purpose of Income taxes. The tax expense in the Income Statement of the
Company is on account of tax allocation from the consolidated tax expense/(benefit) of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
The tax expenses are computed and presented at consolidated financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc. as per the tax
laws of the United States.
b. Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized directly in equity
There were no income tax expenses / benefits recognized directly in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.
c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars
Loss before Tax
Enacted tax rate in US
Computed expected tax benefit/(expense)
Effect of change in tax laws and rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of permanent differences
Others
Effect on account of tax allocation from the consolidated tax benefit/ (expense) of Parent
Company viz., Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc., based on parent-down approach
Income tax benefit/ (expense)
Effective tax rate

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
(13,041,610)
21.00%
(2,738,738)

March 31, 2020
(21,738,745)
21.00%
4,565,136

52,019
(241,204)
6,752
-

150,365
(56,601)
(40,272)
-

(2,921,171)
22.40%

(4,618,628)
21.25%
The Company’s weighted average effective tax rates for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 were 22.40% and
21.25%, respectively. Effective tax rate is effected due to allocation of tax expenses based on Parent Down approach which are
computed at Parent Company level and consolidated basis.
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d. Unrecognsied deferred tax assets and liabilities
During the financial year ending March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company does not have any unrecognsied deferred tax assets.
e. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities and a description of the items
that created these differences is given below:
As of
Particulars
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Property plant and equipment
(4,937,114)
(5,019,662)
Accounts receivable
78,695
75,191
Other current assets
1,016,513
805,654
Stock based compensation/ equity
3,076
757
Other current liabilities
25,405
(7,715)
Net deferred tax liabilities
(3,813,425)
(4,145,775)
In assessing the realizability of the deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred
income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred income tax assets and tax loss carry forwards is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategy in
making this assessment.
Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections of future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax
assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those recognsied deductible differences and
tax loss carry forwards. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income are reduced. Periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes that the
Company will realize the benefits of those recognsied deductible differences and tax loss carry forwards.
f. Movement in temporary differences during the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:
The details of movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarised below:
As at
Movement
March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
(5,019,662)
82,548
Accounts receivable
75,191
3,504
Stock based compensation
757
2,319
Other current assets
805,654
210,859
Other current liabilities
(7,715)
33,120
Net deferred tax liabilities
(4,145,775)
332,350
As at
March 31, 2019
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Accounts receivable
Stock based compensation
Other current assets
Other current liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

(4,678,848)
75,154
(1,122)
212,608
(41,437)
(4,433,644)

Movement
(340,814)
37
1,879
593,046
33,722
287,870

As at
March 31, 2021
(4,937,114)
78,695
3,076
1,016,513
25,405
(3,813,425)
As at
March 31, 2020
(5,019,662)
75,191
757
805,654
(7,715)
(4,145,775)
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20. Employee stock incentive plan
Dr Reddy's Laboratories Limited ( Ultimate Parent Company) issues employees stock option (ESOP) to the employees
covered under various ESOP Plans managed by the ultimate Parent Company.
For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 an amount of USD 76,017 and USD 57,049 respectively, has been recorded as
employee share-based payment expense under all employee stock incentive plans with a corresponding credit to the
Additional paid in capital, disclosed as part of stock holders’ equity, representing capital contribution by Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories Limited, the ultimate Parent Company.

21. Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of the financial instruments by each category are as follows:
As of
Particulars
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets*
Total
Liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Other liabilities and provisions#
Total

Note

March 31, 2021
Total Carrying
Total Fair
Value
Value

March 31, 2020
Total Carrying
Total Fair Value
Value

6
7
9

1,313
4,497,067
529,483
5,027,863

1,313
4,497,067
529,483
5,027,863

29,711
2,474,259
135,361
2,639,331

29,711
2,474,259
135,361
2,639,331

13
18
14

4,661,017
89,982,836
2,436,921
97,080,774

4,661,017
89,982,836
2,436,921
97,080,774

3,878,626
74,751,853
2,523,670
81,154,149

3,878,626
74,751,853
2,523,670
81,154,149

* Other assets that are not financial assets (such as prepaid expenses, advances paid and certain other receivables) of USD
190,754 and USD 180,409 as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are not included.
# Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities (such as deferred revenue, vacation accrual) of USD 432,356 and 419,304
as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are not included.
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21. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary
risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing
Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.
a. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit
terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.(Refer note 7 for provision for expected credit loss)
Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk
assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, were past due or impaired as at March 31, 2021. Of the total
trade receivables, USD 3,563,218 as at March 31, 2021 and USD 2,103,260 as at March 31, 2020 consisted of customer balances which were
neither past due nor impaired.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The Company’s credit period for customers generally ranges from 0 – 60 days. The age analysis of the trade receivables has been considered
from the date of the invoice. The aging of trade receivables that are past due, net of allowance for doubtful receivables, is given below:

Period (in days)
00-90
90-180
More than 180
Total

Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2020
2019
370,999
933,849
933,849
370,999

See Note 7 for the activity in the allowance for impairment of trade account receivables. Other than trade receivables, the Company has no
class of financial assets that is past due but not impaired.
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b. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity
risk by raising additional funds from parent company and through its own operations to meet the financial obligations.
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had working capital deficit of USD 75,251,810 and USD 68,010,144 respectively.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021:
Particulars
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Trade and other payables
4,661,017
Loans and borrowings
89,982,836
Other liabilities and provisions
2,436,921
Total
97,080,774
-

Total
4,661,017
89,982,836
2,436,921
97,080,774

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020:
Particulars
2021
2022
2023
2023
Thereafter
Trade and other payables
3,878,626
Loans and borrowings
74,751,853
Other liabilities and provisions
2,523,670
Total
81,154,149
-

Total
3,878,626
74,751,853
2,523,670
81,154,149

c. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and
other market changes that affect market risk-sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments
including foreign currency receivables and payables and short term/or long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily
related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company’s exposure to market risk is
a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.
Foreign exchange risk
The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses. A significant portion of the
Company’s revenues are in reporting currency, USD. As a result, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk.
Commodity rate risk
Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical
ingredients, including the raw material components for such active pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices
may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Company’s raw materials generally fluctuate in line with commodity
cycles, although the prices of raw materials used in the Company’s active pharmaceutical ingredients business are generally more volatile.
Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s operating expenses. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and
managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has historically not entered into any derivative financial
instruments or futures contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

23. Nature of Expense

The following table shows the expenses by nature:
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars
Cost of revenue
Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

15,253,030
3,655,898
18,908,928

Particulars
Cost of revenue
Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

14,780,534
3,587,260
18,367,794

Research and
Development

1,758,161
1,758,161

681,804
681,804

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Selling, general and
Research and
administrative expenses
Development
2,181,947
669,157
2,181,947
669,157

Total
17,692,995
3,655,898
21,348,893

Total
17,631,638
3,587,260
21,218,898

24. Employee benefits
The Company's employees participate in Dr. Reddy's Laboratories 401 (k) defined contribution retirement plan. The Company's
contribution is discretionary and is determined by its Board of Directors on an annual basis. The contribution made by the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 was USD 766,052 and USD 783,692 respectively.
25. Impact of COVID-19
The Company considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic in assessing the recoverability of receivables,
goodwill, intangible assets, investments and other assets. For this purpose, the Company considered internal and external sources of
information up to the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company based on its judgments, estimates and
assumptions including sensitivity analysis, expects to fully recover the carrying amount of receivables, goodwill, intangible assets,
investments and other assets.
The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
26. Subsequent Events
There are no significant events that occurred after the balance sheet date.
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'LUHFWRUV¶UHSRUW


6WDWHPHQWE\GLUHFWRUV


6WDWXWRU\GHFODUDWLRQ


5HSRUWRIWKHLQGHSHQGHQWDXGLWRUV


6WDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
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'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

',5(&7256¶5(3257
)257+(<($5(1'(''(&(0%(5

7KHGLUHFWRUVKHUHE\VXEPLWWKHLUUHSRUWWRJHWKHUZLWKWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU
35,1&,3$/$&7,9,7,(6
7KH SULQFLSDO DFWLYLW\ RI WKH &RPSDQ\ LV LQ WKH VDOHV DQG PDUNHWLQJ DFWLYLWLHV RI SKDUPDFHXWLFDO
IRUPXODWLRQV7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVLQWKHQDWXUHRIWKHDFWLYLWLHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
5(68/76

50


3URILWIRUWKH\HDU



,QWKHRSLQLRQRI WKH GLUHFWRUV WKH UHVXOWV RI WKH RSHUDWLRQV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ GXULQJ WKH \HDU KDYH QRW
EHHQVXEVWDQWLDOO\DIIHFWHGE\DQ\LWHPWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWRIDPDWHULDODQGXQXVXDOQDWXUH
',9,'(1'6
1R GLYLGHQGV KDYH EHHQ SDLG RU GHFODUHG VLQFH WKH HQG RI WKH SUHYLRXV \HDU 7KH GLUHFWRUV GR QRW
UHFRPPHQGWKDWDGLYLGHQGWREHSDLGLQUHVSHFWRIWKHFXUUHQW\HDU
5(6(59(6$1'3529,6,216
7KHUH ZHUHQRPDWHULDOWUDQVIHUVWRRU IURPUHVHUYHV RUSURYLVLRQVH[FHSWDV GLVFORVHG LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
6+$5(6$1''(%(1785(6
7KH&RPSDQ\GLGQRWLVVXHDQ\VKDUHVRUGHEHQWXUHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
6+$5(237,216
1RRSWLRQVKDYHEHHQJUDQWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\WRDQ\SDUWLHVGXULQJWKH\HDUWRWDNHXSXQLVVXHGVKDUHV
RIWKH&RPSDQ\
1RVKDUHVKDYHEHHQLVVXHGGXULQJWKH\HDUE\YLUWXHRIWKHH[HUFLVHRIDQ\RSWLRQWRWDNHXSXQLVVXHG
VKDUHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\$VRIWKHHQGRIWKH\HDUWKHUHZHUHQRXQLVVXHGVKDUHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\XQGHU
RSWLRQV
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',5(&7256
7KHGLUHFWRUVZKRKHOGRIILFHVLQFHWKHGDWHRIWKHODVWUHSRUWDUH
6DPHHU6XGKDNDU1DWX
9HQNDWD5DPDQD0RWXSDOOL
1LWLQ0HKURWUD
0RKDPPHG,]DG%LQ$ULIILQ




$SSRLQWHGRQ-XQH 
5HVLJQHGRQ-XQH 

',5(&7256¶%(1(),76
'XULQJDQGDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDUQRDUUDQJHPHQWVVXEVLVWHGWRZKLFKWKH&RPSDQ\LVDSDUW\ZLWKWKH
REMHFWRIHQDEOLQJGLUHFWRUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\WRDFTXLUHEHQHILWVE\PHDQVRIWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIVKDUHVLQ
RUGHEHQWXUHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\RUDQ\RWKHUERG\FRUSRUDWH
6LQFHWKHHQGRIWKHSUHYLRXV\HDUQRGLUHFWRUKDVUHFHLYHGRUEHFRPHHQWLWOHGWRUHFHLYHDEHQHILW RWKHU
WKDQ'LUHFWRUV¶UHPXQHUDWLRQGLVFORVHGLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV E\UHDVRQRIDFRQWUDFW
PDGHE\WKH&RPSDQ\RUDUHODWHGFRUSRUDWLRQZLWKWKHGLUHFWRURUZLWKDILUPRIZKLFKWKHGLUHFWRULVD
PHPEHURUZLWKDFRPSDQ\LQZKLFKWKHGLUHFWRUKDVDVXEVWDQWLDOILQDQFLDOLQWHUHVW
1R SD\PHQW KDV EHHQ SDLG WR RU SD\DEOH WR DQ\ WKLUG SDUW\ LQ UHVSHFW RI WKH VHUYLFHV SURYLGHG WR WKH
&RPSDQ\E\WKHGLUHFWRUVRUSDVWGLUHFWRUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKH\HDU
',5(&7256¶,17(5(676
$FFRUGLQJ WR WKH UHJLVWHU RI GLUHFWRUV¶ VKDUHKROGLQJV UHTXLUHG WR EH NHSW XQGHU 6HFWLRQ  RI WKH
&RPSDQLHV$FWQRQHRIWKHGLUHFWRUVZKRKHOGRIILFHDWWKHHQGRIWKH \HDU KDYHDQ\VKDUHVRU
GHEHQWXUHVLQWKH&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU
,1'(01,)<,1*',5(&72562)),&(56$1'$8',7256
1RLQGHPQLWLHVKDYHEHHQJLYHQWRRULQVXUDQFHHIIHFWHGIRUGXULQJRUVLQFHWKHHQGRIWKH\HDUIRUDQ\
SHUVRQZKRLVRUKDVEHHQWKHGLUHFWRURIILFHURUDXGLWRURIWKH&RPSDQ\
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27+(567$78725<,1)250$7,21
%HIRUHWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHDQGWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH&RPSDQ\
ZHUHPDGHRXWWKHGLUHFWRUVWRRNUHDVRQDEOHVWHSV
D

WRDVFHUWDLQWKDWSURSHUDFWLRQKDGEHHQWDNHQLQUHODWLRQWRWKHZULWLQJRIIRIEDGGHEWVDQGWKH
PDNLQJRIDOORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXOGHEWVDQGKDYHVDWLVILHGWKHPVHOYHVWKDWDOONQRZQEDGGHEWV
KDGEHHQZULWWHQRIIDQGWKDWDGHTXDWHDOORZDQFHKDGEHHQPDGHIRUGRXEWIXOGHEWVDQG

E

WR HQVXUH WKDW DQ\ FXUUHQW DVVHWV ZKLFK ZHUH XQOLNHO\ WR EH UHDOLVHG LQ WKH RUGLQDU\ FRXUVH RI
EXVLQHVV LQFOXGLQJ WKH YDOXHV RI FXUUHQW DVVHWV DV VKRZQ LQ WKH DFFRXQWLQJ UHFRUGV RI WKH
&RPSDQ\KDGEHHQZULWWHQGRZQWRDQDPRXQWZKLFKWKHFXUUHQWDVVHWVPLJKWEHH[SHFWHGVRWR
UHDOLVH

$VRIWKHGDWHRIWKLVUHSRUWWKHGLUHFWRUVDUHQRWDZDUHRIDQ\FLUFXPVWDQFHV
D

ZKLFK ZRXOG UHQGHU WKH DPRXQW ZULWWHQ RII IRU EDG GHEWV RU WKH DPRXQW RI WKH DOORZDQFH IRU
GRXEWIXOGHEWVLQDGHTXDWHWRDQ\VXEVWDQWLDOH[WHQWLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
RU

E

ZKLFK ZRXOG UHQGHU WKH YDOXHV DWWULEXWHG WR FXUUHQW DVVHWV LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH
&RPSDQ\PLVOHDGLQJRU

F

ZKLFKKDYHDULVHQZKLFKZRXOGUHQGHUDGKHUHQFHWRWKHH[LVWLQJPHWKRGRIYDOXDWLRQRIDVVHWVRU
OLDELOLWLHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\PLVOHDGLQJRULQDSSURSULDWHRU

G

QRWRWKHUZLVHGHDOW ZLWKLQWKLVUHSRUWRUILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWVZKLFKZRXOGUHQGHUDQ\DPRXQW
VWDWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\PLVOHDGLQJ

$VRIWKHGDWHRIWKLVUHSRUWWKHUHGRHVQRWH[LVW
D

DQ\ FKDUJH RQ WKH DVVHWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ ZKLFK KDV DULVHQ VLQFH WKH HQG RI WKH \HDU ZKLFK
VHFXUHVWKHOLDELOLW\RIDQ\RWKHUSHUVRQRU

E

DQ\FRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\ZKLFKKDVDULVHQVLQFHWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU

1R FRQWLQJHQWRURWKHUOLDELOLW\KDVEHFRPHHQIRUFHDEOHRULVOLNHO\WREHFRPHHQIRUFHDEOH ZLWKLQ WKH
SHULRG RI WZHOYH PRQWKV DIWHU WKH HQG RI WKH \HDU ZKLFK LQ WKH RSLQLRQ RI WKH GLUHFWRUV ZLOO RU PD\
VXEVWDQWLDOO\DIIHFWWKHDELOLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\WRPHHWLWVREOLJDWLRQVDVDQGZKHQWKH\IDOOGXH
,QWKHRSLQLRQRIWKHGLUHFWRUQRLWHPWUDQVDFWLRQRUHYHQWRIDPDWHULDODQGXQXVXDOQDWXUHKDVDULVHQLQ
WKHLQWHUYDOEHWZHHQWKHHQGRIWKH\HDUDQGWKHGDWHRIWKLVUHSRUWZKLFKLVOLNHO\WRDIIHFWVXEVWDQWLDOO\
WKHUHVXOWVRIWKHRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RPSDQ\IRUWKH\HDULQZKLFKWKLVUHSRUWLVPDGH
+2/',1*&203$1,(6
7KH&RPSDQ\LVDZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\RI'U5HGG\¶V/DERUDWRULHV6$DFRPSDQ\LQFRUSRUDWHGLQ
6ZLW]HUODQG 7KH GLUHFWRUV DOVR UHJDUG 'U 5HGG\¶V /DERUDWRULHV /LPLWHG DV WKH XOWLPDWH KROGLQJ
FRPSDQ\DFRPSDQ\LQFRUSRUDWHGLQ,QGLD
$8',7256¶5(081(5$7,21
'HWDLOVRIDXGLWRUV¶UHPXQHUDWLRQDUHVHWRXWLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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$8',7256
7KHDXGLWRUV<RQJ /HRQDUGKDYHLQGLFDWHGWKHLUZLOOLQJQHVVWRDFFHSWUHDSSRLQWPHQWDVDXGLWRUV
6LJQHGRQEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDUHVROXWLRQRIWKH'LUHFWRUV






6$0((568'+$.$51$78
'LUHFWRU






1,7,10(+5275$
'LUHFWRU

'DWH0D\
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'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

67$7(0(17%<',5(&7256
3XUVXDQWWR6HFWLRQ  RIWKH&RPSDQLHV$FW


7KHGLUHFWRUVRI'U5HGG\ V/DERUDWRULHV0DOD\VLD6GQ%KGVWDWHWKDWLQWKHLURSLQLRQWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV VHW RXW RQ SDJHV  WR  DUH GUDZQ XS LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK 0DOD\VLDQ )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVDQGWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQLHV$FW
LQ0DOD\VLDVRDVWRJLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZRIWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH&RPSDQ\DVDW'HFHPEHU
 DQG RI LWV ILQDQFLDO SHUIRUPDQFH DQG WKH FDVK IORZV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG 
'HFHPEHU
6LJQHGRQEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDUHVROXWLRQRIWKH'LUHFWRUV







6$0((568'+$.$51$78
1,7,10(+5275$
'LUHFWRU
'LUHFWRU

'DWH0D\

67$78725<'(&/$5$7,21
3XUVXDQWWR6HFWLRQ  RIWKH&RPSDQLHV$FW


, 1LWLQ 0HKURWUD WKH GLUHFWRU SULPDULO\ UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH ILQDQFLDO PDQDJHPHQW RI 'U 5HGG\ V
/DERUDWRULHV0DOD\VLD6GQ%KGGRVROHPQO\DQGVLQFHUHO\GHFODUHWKDWWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVVHWRXW
RQ SDJHV  WR  DUH LQ P\ RSLQLRQ FRUUHFW DQG , PDNH WKLV VROHPQ GHFODUDWLRQ FRQVFLHQWLRXVO\
EHOLHYLQJWKHVDPHWREHWUXHDQGE\YLUWXHRIWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKH6WDWXWRU\'HFODUDWLRQ$FW
6XEVFULEHGDQGVROHPQO\GHFODUHG
WKHDERYHQDPHG1LWLQ0HKURWUD
RQ0D\DW



 
 
 
 1,7,10(+5275$

%HIRUHPH






&RPPLVVLRQHUVIRU2DWKV
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5(32572)7+(,1'(3(1'(17$8',7256727+(0(0%(562)
'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
&RPSDQ\1R ; 
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 
5HSRUWRQWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2SLQLRQ
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI 'U 5HGG\ V /DERUDWRULHV 0DOD\VLD 6GQ %KG ZKLFK
FRPSULVH WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DV DW  'HFHPEHU  DQG WKH VWDWHPHQW RI
FRPSUHKHQVLYH LQFRPH VWDWHPHQW RI FKDQJHV LQ HTXLW\ DQG VWDWHPHQW RI FDVK IORZV IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ
HQGHGDQGQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDV
VHWRXWRQSDJHVWR
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVJLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZRIWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
RIWKH&RPSDQ\DVDW'HFHPEHUDQGRILWVILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDU
WKHQ HQGHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK 0DOD\VLDQ )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO
5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVDQGWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQLHV$FWLQ0DOD\VLD
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDSSURYHGVWDQGDUGVRQDXGLWLQJLQ0DOD\VLDDQG,QWHUQDWLRQDO
6WDQGDUGVRQ$XGLWLQJ2XUUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRUV¶
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLW
HYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ
,QGHSHQGHQFHDQG2WKHU(WKLFDO5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV
:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH&RPSDQ\LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH%\/DZV RQ3URIHVVLRQDO(WKLFV&RQGXFW
DQG 3UDFWLFH  RI WKH 0DOD\VLDQ ,QVWLWXWH RI $FFRXQWDQWV ³%\/DZV´  DQG WKH ,QWHUQDWLRQDO (WKLFV
6WDQGDUGV%RDUGIRU$FFRXQWDQWV¶,QWHUQDWLRQDO&RGHRI(WKLFVIRU3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV LQFOXGLQJ
,QWHUQDWLRQDO ,QGHSHQGHQFH 6WDQGDUGV  ³,(6%$ &RGH´  DQG ZH KDYH IXOILOOHG RXU RWKHU HWKLFDO
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH%\/DZVDQGWKH,(6%$&RGH
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<21* /(21$5'
&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV $) 


5(32572)7+(,1'(3(1'(17$8',7256727+(0(0%(562)
'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
&RPSDQ\1R ; 
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

,QIRUPDWLRQ2WKHUWKDQWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVDQG$XGLWRUV¶5HSRUW7KHUHRQ
7KHGLUHFWRUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ7KHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQFRPSULVHV
WKH 'LUHFWRUV¶ 5HSRUW EXW GRHV QRW LQFOXGH WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG RXU DXGLWRUV¶
UHSRUWWKHUHRQ
2XURSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\GRHVQRWFRYHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQDQGZHGR
QRWH[SUHVVDQ\IRUPRIDVVXUDQFHFRQFOXVLRQWKHUHRQ
,QFRQQHFWLRQZLWKRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\RXUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRUHDGWKH
RWKHULQIRUPDWLRQDQGLQGRLQJVRFRQVLGHUZKHWKHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQLVPDWHULDOO\LQFRQVLVWHQWZLWK
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\RURXUNQRZOHGJHREWDLQHGLQWKHDXGLWRURWKHUZLVHDSSHDUVWR
EHPDWHULDOO\PLVVWDWHG
,IEDVHGRQWKHZRUNZHKDYHSHUIRUPHGZHFRQFOXGHWKDWWKHUHLVDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKLVRWKHU
LQIRUPDWLRQZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRUHSRUWWKDWIDFW:HKDYHQRWKLQJWRUHSRUWLQWKLVUHJDUG
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRIWKH'LUHFWRUVIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
7KHGLUHFWRUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
WKDWJLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK0DOD\VLDQ)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV,QWHUQDWLRQDO
)LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV DQG WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQLHV $FW  LQ 0DOD\VLD 7KH
GLUHFWRUVDUHDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUVXFKLQWHUQDOFRQWURODVWKHGLUHFWRUVGHWHUPLQHLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOH
WKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\WKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHU
GXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,Q SUHSDULQJ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ WKH GLUHFWRUV DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU DVVHVVLQJ WKH
&RPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ GLVFORVLQJ DV DSSOLFDEOH PDWWHUV UHODWHG WR JRLQJ
FRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVWKHGLUHFWRUVHLWKHULQWHQGWROLTXLGDWHWKH
&RPSDQ\RUWRFHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDYHQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
$XGLWRUV¶5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
DVDZKROHDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRUV¶
UHSRUWWKDWLQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHH
WKDWDQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDSSURYHGVWDQGDUGVRQDXGLWLQJLQ0DOD\VLDDQG,QWHUQDWLRQDO
6WDQGDUGVRQ$XGLWLQJZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHQLWH[LVWV0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVH
IURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\
EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV




684

-7190436Ā.6:25782Ā/-)Ā#.'*" ""Ȁ,-#!Ȁ#+%.Ȁ+$!#Ȁ%!$(#.!,+'&&




<21* /(21$5'
&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV $) 


5(32572)7+(,1'(3(1'(17$8',7256727+(0(0%(562)
'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
&RPSDQ\1R ; 
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

$V SDUW RI DQ DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DSSURYHG VWDQGDUGV RQ DXGLWLQJ LQ 0DOD\VLD DQG ,QWHUQDWLRQDO
6WDQGDUGV RQ $XGLWLQJ ZH H[HUFLVH SURIHVVLRQDO MXGJHPHQW DQG PDLQWDLQ SURIHVVLRQDO VNHSWLFLVP
WKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:HDOVR


,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
ZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQG
REWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV IRURXURSLQLRQ7KH
ULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJ
IURPHUURUDVIUDXGPD\LQYROYHFROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDORPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRU
WKHRYHUULGHRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO



2EWDLQ DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH DXGLW LQ RUGHU WR GHVLJQ DXGLW
SURFHGXUHV WKDW DUH DSSURSULDWH LQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV EXW QRW IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI H[SUHVVLQJ DQ
RSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO



(YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHG DQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRI DFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\WKHGLUHFWRUV



&RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIWKHGLUHFWRUV¶XVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWV
RU FRQGLWLRQV WKDW PD\ FDVW VLJQLILFDQW GRXEW RQ WKH &RPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ
FRQFHUQ,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQ
RXUDXGLWRUV¶UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\RULI
VXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLW
HYLGHQFH REWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXUDXGLWRUV¶UHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUH HYHQWV RU FRQGLWLRQV
PD\FDXVHWKH&RPSDQ\WRFHDVHWRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ



(YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG FRQWHQW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH
&RPSDQ\ LQFOXGLQJ WKH GLVFORVXUHV DQG ZKHWKHU WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV UHSUHVHQW WKH
XQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKHGLUHFWRUVUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHGVFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKH
DXGLW DQG VLJQLILFDQW DXGLW ILQGLQJV LQFOXGLQJ DQ\ VLJQLILFDQW GHILFLHQFLHV LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO WKDW ZH
LGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW
:HDOVRSURYLGHWKHGLUHFWRUVZLWKDVWDWHPHQWWKDWZHKDYHFRPSOLHGZLWKUHOHYDQWHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWV
UHJDUGLQJ LQGHSHQGHQFH DQG WR FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK WKHP DOO UHODWLRQVKLSV DQG RWKHU PDWWHUV WKDW PD\
UHDVRQDEO\EHWKRXJKWWREHDURQRXULQGHSHQGHQFHDQGZKHUHDSSOLFDEOHUHODWHGVDIHJXDUGV
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<21* /(21$5'
&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV $) 


5(32572)7+(,1'(3(1'(17$8',7256727+(0(0%(562)
'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
&RPSDQ\1R ; 
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

2WKHU0DWWHUV
7KLVUHSRUWLVPDGHVROHO\WRWKHPHPEHUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DVDERG\LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK6HFWLRQRI
WKH&RPSDQLHV$FWLQ0DOD\VLDDQGIRUQRRWKHUSXUSRVH:HGRQRWDVVXPHUHVSRQVLELOLW\WRDQ\
RWKHUSHUVRQIRUWKHFRQWHQWRIWKLVUHSRUW








<21* /(21$5'
)LUP1XPEHU$)
&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV

'DWH0D\
3HWDOLQJ-D\D

Leong Pooi Wah

Yong & Leonard

/(21*322,:$+
$SSURYDO1XPEHU - 
3DUWQHURIWKH)LUP
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&RPSDQ\1R ; 


'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

67$7(0(172)),1$1&,$/326,7,21
$6$7'(&(0%(5





1RWH
$66(76




121&855(17$66(76
3ODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW

5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWV



&855(17$66(76
,QYHQWRULHV
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
'HSRVLWVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV
&XUUHQWWD[DVVHWV
&DVKDQGEDQNEDODQFHV














50




 
 
 
 
 





50



































727$/$66(76

(48,7<$1'/,$%,/,7,(6

&$3,7$/$1'5(6(59(6
6KDUHFDSLWDO
$FFXPXODWHGORVVHV





















6+$5(+2/'(56 (48,7<

121&855(17/,$%,/,7,(6
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV

&855(17/,$%,/,7,(6
7UDGHSD\DEOHV
2WKHUSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV







































1(7&855(17$66(76









727$//,$%,/,7,(6









727$/(48,7<$1'/,$%,/,7,(6

















 










7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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&RPSDQ\1R ; 


'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

67$7(0(172)&2035(+(16,9(,1&20(
)257+(<($5(1'(''(&(0%(5





1RWH


5HYHQXH



2WKHURSHUDWLQJLQFRPH



2SHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV



3URILWIURPRSHUDWLRQV

)LQDQFHFRVWV




50





 
















3URILWIRUWKH\HDU

2WKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHQHWRIWD[









7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDU





3URILWEHIRUHWD[

,QFRPHWD[H[SHQVH

















 




 
 
 




 



 
 
 




7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV















50
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&RPSDQ\1R ; 


'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

67$7(0(172)&+$1*(6,1(48,7<
)257+(<($5(1'(''(&(0%(5












$VDW-DQXDU\



6KDUH
FDSLWDO
50



7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDU
$VDW'HFHPEHU















$FFXPXODWHG
ORVVHV
50
 



 











 

7RWDO
50






 



















 





7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDU
$VDW'HFHPEHU







7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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&RPSDQ\1R ; 


'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

67$7(0(172)&$6+)/2:6
)257+(<($5(1'(''(&(0%(5








&$6+)/2:6)52023(5$7,1*$&7,9,7,(6
3URILWEHIRUHWD[

$GMXVWPHQWVIRU

'HSUHFLDWLRQRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW

'HSUHFLDWLRQRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHWV

,QWHUHVWH[SHQVH




50




 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50








2SHUDWLQJSURILWEHIRUHZRUNLQJFDSLWDOFKDQJHV
'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVH LQLQYHQWRULHV
,QFUHDVHLQUHFHLYDEOHV
,QFUHDVHLQSD\DEOHV








 








 
 


&DVKJHQHUDWHGIURP XVHGLQ RSHUDWLRQV
7D[SDLG





 




 
 

1HWFDVKJHQHUDWHGIURP XVHGLQ RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

&$6+)/2:6)520,19(67,1*$&7,9,7<
3XUFKDVHRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW









 






 


 

1HWFDVKXVHGLQLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLW\

&$6+)/2:6)520),1$1&,1*$&7,9,7<
5HSD\PHQWRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV





 


 






 


 

1HWFDVKXVHGLQILQDQFLQJDFWLYLW\





 





 


1HWLQFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDU










 


&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWHQGRIWKH\HDU

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVFRPSULVH
&DVKDQGEDQNEDODQFHV























7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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&RPSDQ\1R ; 


'55(''< 6/$%25$725,(60$/$<6,$6'1%+'
,QFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DOD\VLD 

127(6727+(),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176
)257+()257+(<($5(1'(''(&(0%(5



*(1(5$/,1)250$7,21
7KH&RPSDQ\LVDSULYDWHOLPLWHGFRPSDQ\LQFRUSRUDWHGDQGGRPLFLOHGLQ0DOD\VLD
7KHSULQFLSDODFWLYLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\LVLQWKHVDOHV DQG PDUNHWLQJ DFWLYLWLHV RI SKDUPDFHXWLFDO
IRUPXODWLRQV7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVLQWKHQDWXUHRIWKHDFWLYLWLHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
7KHUHJLVWHUHGRIILFHLVORFDWHGDWWKIORRU0HQDUD+DS6HQJ1R -DODQ35DPOHH
.XDOD/XPSXU:LOD\DK3HUVHNXWXDQ0DOD\VLD
7KHSULQFLSDOSODFHRIEXVLQHVVLVORFDWHGDW8QLW/HYHO0HQDUD0%051R-DODQ
6\HG3XWUD.XDOD/XPSXU:LOD\DK3HUVHNXWXDQ0DOD\VLD
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DUH SUHVHQWHG LQ WKH IXQFWLRQDO FXUUHQF\ ZKLFK LV WKH
FXUUHQF\RIWKHSULPDU\HFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWLQZKLFKWKHHQWLW\RSHUDWHV
7KHIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\RIWKH&RPSDQ\LV5LQJJLW0DOD\VLD ³50´ DVWKHVDOHVDQGSXUFKDVHV
DUH PDLQO\ GHQRPLQDWHG LQ 50 UHFHLSWV IURP RSHUDWLRQV DUH XVXDOO\ UHWDLQHG LQ 50 DQG IXQGV
IURPILQDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHVDUHJHQHUDWHGLQ50



%$6,62)35(3$5$7,212)7+(),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176


67$7(0(172)&203/,$1&(

7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\KDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK0DOD\VLDQ
)LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV ³0)56´  ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV DV
LVVXHGE\,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ³,$6%´ DQGWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH
&RPSDQLHV$FWLQ0DOD\VLD


$'237,212)1(:$1'5(9,6('0$/$<6,$1),1$1&,$/5(3257,1*67$1'$5'6

7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\DUHFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKRVHRIWKHSULRU\HDU
H[FHSW IRU WKH QHZ DQG UHYLVHG 0)56V DQG ,& ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV DSSURYHG E\ 0DOD\VLDQ
$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ³0$6%´ DQGDSSOLFDEOHIRUFXUUHQW\HDU
$SSOLFDWLRQRIWKHQHZDQGUHYLVHG0)56VDQGLQWHUSUHWDWLRQVKDV QRPDWHULDOLPSDFW RQ
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
6HYHUDO RWKHU DPHQGPHQWV DUH HIIHFWLYH IRU WKH ILUVW WLPH LQ WKH \HDU HQGHG  'HFHPEHU
+RZHYHUWKH\GRQRWLPSDFWWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
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 1(:$1'5(9,6('0)56,1,668(%87127<(7())(&7,9(
$VDWWKHGDWHRIDXWKRULVDWLRQIRU LVVXHRI WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV WKHIROORZLQJ0)56V
DSSOLFDEOHWRWKH&RPSDQ\ZHUHLQLVVXHEXWQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH
'HVFULSWLRQ
$PHQGPHQWVWR
&RYLG±5HODWHG5HQW&RQFHVVLRQV
0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
([WHQVLRQ RI WKH 7HPSRUDU\ ([HPSWLRQ IURP
0)56
$SSO\LQJ0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
,QWHUHVW5DWH%HQFKPDUN5HIRUP±3KDVH
0)560)56
0)56
0)56DQG
0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
5HIHUHQFHWRWKH&RQFHSWXDO)UDPHZRUN
0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
3URSHUW\ 3ODQW DQG (TXLSPHQW ± 3URFHHGV EHIRUH
0)56
,QWHQGHG8VH
$PHQGPHQWVWR
2QHURXV&RQWUDFW±&RVWRI)XOILOOLQJD&RQWUDFW
0)56
$QQXDO,PSURYHPHQWVWR0)566WDQGDUGV
0)56
,QVXUDQFH&RQWUDFWV
$PHQGPHQWWR
0)56
$PHQGPHQWV
0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
0)56
$PHQGPHQWVWR
0)56

,QVXUDQFH&RQWUDFWV
&ODVVLILFDWLRQRI/LDELOLWLHVDV&XUUHQWRU1RQFXUUHQW
&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV ± 6DOH RU
&RQWULEXWLRQ RI $VVHWV EHWZHHQ DQ ,QYHVWRU DQG LWV
$VVRFLDWHRU-RLQW9HQWXUH
,QYHVWPHQWVLQ$VVRFLDWHVDQG-RLQW9HQWXUHV±6DOH
RU&RQWULEXWLRQRI$VVHWVEHWZHHQDQ,QYHVWRUDQGLWV
$VVRFLDWHRU-RLQW9HQWXUH

(IIHFWLYH'DWH
-XQH
$WLVVXHGDWHRI
$XJXVW
-DQXDU\

-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\
 
-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\
 
'HIHUUHG
'HIHUUHG

x 7KHHIIHFWLYHGDWHKDVEHHQGHIHUUHGIURPDQQXDOUHSRUWLQJSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU
-DQXDU\WR-DQXDU\SXUVXDQWWRWKHDPHQGPHQWVWR0)56LVVXHGE\
WKH0$6%QDPHO\µ$PHQGPHQWV0)56,QVXUDQFH&RQWUDFWV¶

x 7KHHIIHFWLYHGDWHKDVEHHQGHIHUUHGIURPDQQXDOUHSRUWLQJSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJRQRUDIWHU
-DQXDU\WR-DQXDU\SXUVXDQWWRWKHDPHQGPHQWVWR0)56LVVXHGE\
WKH0$6%QDPHO\µ&ODVVLILFDWLRQRI/LDELOLWLHVDV&XUUHQWRU1RQFXUUHQW±'HIHUUDORI
(IIHFWLYH'DWH¶
7KH DGRSWLRQ RI WKH DERYH DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV DQGRU LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ WKH
FRQVHTXHQWLDODPHQGPHQWVLIDQ\ LVH[SHFWHGWRKDYHQRPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\XSRQWKHLULQLWLDODSSOLFDWLRQ
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6,*1,),&$17$&&2817,1*32/,&,(6
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGRQWKHKLVWRULFDOFRVWEDVLVXQOHVVRWKHUZLVHLQGLFDWHG
LQWKHVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV7KHSULQFLSDODFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGDUH
VHWRXWEHORZ


3/$17$1'(48,30(17
L

5HFRJQLWLRQ$QG0HDVXUHPHQW
,WHPVRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDUHPHDVXUHGDWFRVWOHVVDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQG
DFFXPXODWHG LPSDLUPHQW ORVVHV LI DQ\ &RVW LQFOXGHV H[SHQGLWXUHV WKDW DUH GLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIWKHDVVHW7KHFRVWRIVHOIFRQVWUXFWHGDVVHWVLQFOXGHV
WKH FRVWV RI PDWHULDOV DQG RWKHU FRVWV GLUHFWO\ DWWULEXWDEOH WR EULQJLQJ WKH DVVHW WR D
ZRUNLQJFRQGLWLRQIRULWVLQWHQGHGXVH%RUURZLQJFRVWVWKDWDUHGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WRWKH FRQVWUXFWLRQRUSURGXFWLRQRI DTXDOLI\LQJDVVHWDUH FDSLWDOLVHG DV SDUW RI WKH
FRVWRIWKDWDVVHW
:KHQ SDUWV RI DQ LWHP RI SODQW DQG HTXLSPHQW KDYH GLIIHUHQW XVHIXO OLIH WKH\ DUH
DFFRXQWHGIRUDVVHSDUDWHLWHPV PDMRUFRPSRQHQWV RISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
*DLQVDQGORVVHVXSRQGLVSRVDORIDQLWHPRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDUHGHWHUPLQHGE\
FRPSDULQJ WKH SURFHHGV IURP GLVSRVDO ZLWK WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW RI SODQW DQG
HTXLSPHQWDQGDUHUHFRJQLVHGQHWZLWKLQ³2WKHU LQFRPH H[SHQVHQHW´LQSURILWRU
ORVV
7KH FRVW RI UHSODFLQJ SDUW RI DQ LWHP RI SODQW DQG HTXLSPHQW LV UHFRJQLVHG LQ WKH
FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW RI WKH LWHP LI LW LV SUREDEOH WKDW WKH IXWXUH HFRQRPLF EHQHILWV
HPERGLHG ZLWKLQ WKH SDUW ZLOO IORZ WR WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG LWV FRVW FDQ EH PHDVXUHG
UHOLDEO\ 7KH FRVWV RI UHSDLUV DQG PDLQWHQDQFH DUH UHFRJQLVHG LQ SURILW RU ORVV DV
LQFXUUHG
,WHPVRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDFTXLUHGWKURXJKH[FKDQJHRIQRQPRQHWDU\DVVHWVDUH
PHDVXUHGDWIDLU YDOXHXQOHVVWKHH[FKDQJH WUDQVDFWLRQODFNVFRPPHUFLDOVXEVWDQFH
RU WKH IDLU YDOXH RI HLWKHU WKH DVVHW UHFHLYHG RU DVVHW JLYHQ XS LV QRW UHOLDEO\
PHDVXUDEOHLQZKLFKFDVHWKHDVVHWH[FKDQJHGLVUHFRUGHGDWWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRI
WKHDVVHWJLYHQXS

LL 

'HSUHFLDWLRQ
'HSUHFLDWLRQLVUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRUORVVRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHG
XVHIXOOLYHVRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW/HDVHGDVVHWVDUHGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHVKRUWHURI
WKHOHDVHWHUPDQGWKHLUXVHIXOOLYHV7KHGHSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVHLVLQFOXGHGLQWKHFRVWV
RIWKHIXQFWLRQVXVLQJWKHDVVHW
'HSUHFLDWLRQPHWKRGVXVHIXOOLIHDQGUHVLGXDOYDOXHVDUHUHYLHZHGDWHDFKUHSRUWLQJ
GDWH7KHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVDUHDVIROORZV

&RPSXWHU
)XUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW

5DWH





$GYDQFHV SDLG WRZDUGV WKH DFTXLVLWLRQ RI SODQW DQG HTXLSPHQW RXWVWDQGLQJ DW HDFK
UHSRUWLQJGDWHDQGWKHFRVWRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWQRWUHDG\WRXVHEHIRUHVXFKGDWH
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DUH GLVFORVHG XQGHU FDSLWDO ZRUNLQSURJUHVV $VVHWV QRW UHDG\ IRU XVH DUH QRW
GHSUHFLDWHG


,03$,50(172)121),1$1&,$/$66(7627+(57+$1,19(1725,(6$1'*22':,//
7KH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\¶V QRQILQDQFLDO DVVHWV RWKHU WKDQ LQYHQWRULHV DQG
GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHWV DUH UHYLHZHG DW HDFK UHSRUWLQJ GDWH WR GHWHUPLQH ZKHWKHU WKHUH LV DQ\
LQGLFDWLRQRILPSDLUPHQW,IDQ\VXFKLQGLFDWLRQH[LVWVWKHQWKHDVVHW¶VUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW
LVHVWLPDWHG
7KHUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWRIDQDVVHWRUFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLW DVGHILQHGEHORZ LVWKHJUHDWHU
RILWVYDOXHLQXVHDQGLWVIDLUYDOXHOHVVFRVWVWRVHOO,QDVVHVVLQJYDOXHLQXVHWKHHVWLPDWHG
IXWXUH FDVK IORZV DUH GLVFRXQWHG WR WKHLU SUHVHQW YDOXH XVLQJ D SUHWD[ GLVFRXQW UDWH WKDW
UHIOHFWVFXUUHQWPDUNHWDVVHVVPHQWVRIWKHWLPHYDOXHRIPRQH\DQGWKHULVNVVSHFLILFWRWKH
DVVHWRUWKHFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLW)RUWKHSXUSRVHRILPSDLUPHQWWHVWLQJDVVHWVDUHJURXSHG
WRJHWKHU LQWRWKHVPDOOHVWJURXSRI DVVHWVWKDWJHQHUDWHVFDVK LQIORZVIURPFRQWLQXLQJXVH
WKDW DUH ODUJHO\ LQGHSHQGHQW RI WKH FDVK LQIORZV RI RWKHU DVVHWV RU JURXSV RI DVVHWV WKH
³FDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLW´ 
$QLPSDLUPHQWORVVLVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHSURILWDQGORVVLIWKHHVWLPDWHGUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW
RIDQDVVHWRULWVFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLWLVORZHUWKDQLWVFDUU\LQJDPRXQW,PSDLUPHQWORVVHV
UHFRJQLVHG LQ UHVSHFW RI FDVKJHQHUDWLQJ XQLWV DUH DOORFDWHG ILUVW WR UHGXFH WKH FDUU\LQJ
DPRXQWRIDQ\JRRGZLOODOORFDWHGWRWKHXQLWVDQGWKHQWRUHGXFHWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH
RWKHUDVVHWVLQWKHXQLWRQDSURUDWDEDVLV
,PSDLUPHQW ORVVHV UHFRJQLVHG LQ SULRU SHULRGV DUH DVVHVVHG DW HDFK UHSRUWLQJ GDWH IRU DQ\
LQGLFDWLRQVWKDWWKHORVVKDVGHFUHDVHGRUQRORQJHUH[LVWV$QLPSDLUPHQWORVVLVUHYHUVHGLI
WKHUH KDV EHHQ D FKDQJH LQ WKH HVWLPDWHV XVHG WR GHWHUPLQH WKH UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW $Q
LPSDLUPHQW ORVV LV UHYHUVHG RQO\ WR WKH H[WHQW WKDW WKH DVVHW¶V FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW GRHV QRW
H[FHHG WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW WKDW ZRXOG KDYH EHHQ GHWHUPLQHG QHW RI GHSUHFLDWLRQ RU
DPRUWLVDWLRQLIQRLPSDLUPHQWORVVKDGEHHQUHFRJQLVHG



,19(1725,(6

,QYHQWRULHVFRQVLVWRIUDZPDWHULDOVVWRUHVDQGVSDUHVZRUNLQSURJUHVVDQGILQLVKHGJRRGV
DQGDUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHORZHURIFRVWDQGQHWUHDOLVDEOHYDOXH7KHFRVWRIDOOFDWHJRULHVRI
LQYHQWRULHVLVEDVHGRQWKHZHLJKWHGDYHUDJHPHWKRG&RVWLQFOXGHVH[SHQGLWXUHVLQFXUUHGLQ
DFTXLULQJ WKH LQYHQWRULHV SURGXFWLRQ RU FRQYHUVLRQ FRVWV DQG RWKHU FRVWV LQFXUUHG LQ
EULQJLQJ WKHP WR WKHLU H[LVWLQJ ORFDWLRQ DQG FRQGLWLRQ ,Q WKH FDVH RI ILQLVKHG JRRGV DQG
ZRUNLQSURJUHVVFRVWLQFOXGHVDQDSSURSULDWHVKDUHRIRYHUKHDGVEDVHGRQQRUPDORSHUDWLQJ
FDSDFLW\
1HWUHDOLVDEOHYDOXHLVWKHHVWLPDWHGVHOOLQJSULFHLQWKHRUGLQDU\FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVVOHVVWKH
HVWLPDWHGFRVWVRIFRPSOHWLRQDQGVHOOLQJH[SHQVHV
7KH IDFWRUV WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\ FRQVLGHUV LQ GHWHUPLQLQJ WKH SURYLVLRQ IRU VORZ PRYLQJ
REVROHWH DQG RWKHU QRQVDOHDEOH LQYHQWRU\ LQFOXGH HVWLPDWHG VKHOI OLIH SODQQHG SURGXFW
GLVFRQWLQXDQFHV SULFH FKDQJHV DJLQJ RI LQYHQWRU\ DQG LQWURGXFWLRQ RI FRPSHWLWLYH QHZ
SURGXFWVWRH[WHQWHDFKRIWKHVHIDFWRUVLPSDFWWKH&RPSDQ\¶VEXVLQHVVDQGPDUNHWV7KH
&RPSDQ\FRQVLGHUVDOOWKHVHIDFWRUVDQGDGMXVWVWKHLQYHQWRU\SURYLVLRQWRUHIOHFWLWVDFWXDO
H[SHULHQFHRQDSHULRGLFEDVLV
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 &$6+$1'&$6+(48,9$/(176
7KH&RPSDQ\DGRSWVWKHLQGLUHFWPHWKRGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVFRQVLVWRIFDVKRQKDQGGHPDQGGHSRVLWVDQGVKRUWWHUPKLJKO\
OLTXLGLQYHVWPHQWVWKDWDUHUHDGLO\FRQYHUWLEOHLQWRNQRZQDPRXQWVRIFDVKDQG ZKLFKDUH
VXEMHFW WR LQVLJQLILFDQW ULVN RI FKDQJHV LQ YDOXH )RU WKLV SXUSRVH ³VKRUWWHUP´ PHDQV
LQYHVWPHQWV KDYLQJ PDWXULW\ RI WKUHH PRQWKV RU OHVV IURP WKH GDWH RI LQYHVWPHQW %DQN
RYHUGUDIWVWKDWDUHUHSD\DEOHRQGHPDQGDQGIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIRXUFDVKPDQDJHPHQW
DUHLQFOXGHGDVDFRPSRQHQWRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIWKHVWDWHPHQW
RIFDVKIORZV


),1$1&,$/,167580(176
$ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWLVDQ\FRQWUDFWWKDWJLYHVULVHWRERWKDILQDQFLDODVVHWRIRQHHQWLW\
DQGDILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\RUHTXLW\LQVWUXPHQWRIDQRWKHUHQWLW\
L

)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV
,QLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDQGPHDVXUHPHQW
$OOILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQLWLDOO\DWIDLUYDOXHSOXVLQWKHFDVHRIILQDQFLDO
DVVHWV QRW UHFRUGHG DW IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV WUDQVDFWLRQ FRVWV WKDW DUH
DWWULEXWDEOH WR WKH DFTXLVLWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO DVVHW 3XUFKDVHV RU VDOHV RI ILQDQFLDO
DVVHWVWKDWUHTXLUHGHOLYHU\RIDVVHWVZLWKLQDWLPHIUDPHHVWDEOLVKHGE\UHJXODWLRQRU
FRQYHQWLRQLQWKHPDUNHWSODFH UHJXODUZD\WUDGHV DUHUHFRJQLVHGRQWKHWUDGHGDWH
LHWKHGDWHWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\FRPPLWVWRSXUFKDVHRUVHOOWKHDVVHW
6XEVHTXHQWPHDVXUHPHQW
)RU SXUSRVHV RI VXEVHTXHQW PHDVXUHPHQW ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DUH
FODVVLILHGLQWZRFDWHJRULHV
x )LQDQFLDODVVHWVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVW GHEWLQVWUXPHQWV 
x )LQDQFLDODVVHWVDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV ³)973/´ 
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVW GHEWLQVWUXPHQWV 
7KLV FDWHJRU\ LV PRVW UHOHYDQW WR WKH &RPSDQ\ 7KH &RPSDQ\ PHDVXUHV ILQDQFLDO
DVVHWVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWLIERWKRIWKHIROORZLQJFRQGLWLRQVDUHPHW
D  7KH ILQDQFLDO DVVHW LV KHOG ZLWKLQ D EXVLQHVV PRGHO ZKRVH REMHFWLYH LV WR KROG
ILQDQFLDODVVHWVIRUFROOHFWLQJFRQWUDFWXDOFDVKIORZVDQG
E  &RQWUDFWXDOWHUPVRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWJLYHULVHRQVSHFLILHGGDWHVWRFDVKIORZV
WKDW DUH VROHO\ SD\PHQWV RI SULQFLSDO DQG LQWHUHVW ³633,´  RQ WKH SULQFLSDO
DPRXQWRXWVWDQGLQJ
$IWHU LQLWLDO PHDVXUHPHQW VXFK ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV DUH VXEVHTXHQWO\ PHDVXUHG DW
DPRUWLVHG FRVW XVLQJ WKH HIIHFWLYH LQWHUHVW UDWH ³(,5´  PHWKRG DQG DUH VXEMHFW WR
LPSDLUPHQW $PRUWLVHG FRVW LV FDOFXODWHG E\ WDNLQJ LQWR DFFRXQW DQ\ GLVFRXQW RU
SUHPLXPRQDFTXLVLWLRQDQGIHHVRUFRVWVWKDWDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH(,5*DLQV
DQGORVVHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRUORVVZKHQWKHDVVHWLVGHFRJQLVHGRULPSDLUHG
DQGWKURXJKDPRUWLVDWLRQSURFHVV7KLVFDWHJRU\JHQHUDOO\DSSOLHVWRWUDGHDQGRWKHU
UHFHLYDEOHV
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)DLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV ³)973/´ 
)973/LVDUHVLGXDOFDWHJRU\IRUGHEWLQVWUXPHQWV$Q\GHEWLQVWUXPHQWZKLFKGRHV
QRWPHHWWKH FULWHULDIRUFDWHJRULVDWLRQDVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWRUDVIDLU YDOXH WKURXJK
RWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH ³)972&,´ LVFODVVLILHGDVDW)973/
,QDGGLWLRQWKH&RPSDQ\PD\HOHFWWRGHVLJQDWHDGHEWLQVWUXPHQWZKLFKRWKHUZLVH
PHHWV DPRUWLVHG FRVW RU )972&, FULWHULD DV DW )973/ +RZHYHU VXFK HOHFWLRQ LV
DOORZHG RQO\ LI GRLQJ VR UHGXFHV RU HOLPLQDWHV D PHDVXUHPHQW RU UHFRJQLWLRQ
LQFRQVLVWHQF\ UHIHUUHGWRDVµDFFRXQWLQJPLVPDWFK¶ 
'HEWLQVWUXPHQWVLQFOXGHGZLWKLQWKH)973/FDWHJRU\DUHFDUULHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDWIDLUYDOXHZLWKWKHQHWFKDQJHVLQIDLUYDOXHUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILW
RUORVV
7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQRWGHVLJQDWHGDQ\GHEWLQVWUXPHQWDVDW)973/
'HUHFRJQLWLRQ
$ILQDQFLDODVVHW RUZKHUHDSSOLFDEOHDSDUWRIDILQDQFLDODVVHWRUSDUWRIDJURXSRI
VLPLODUILQDQFLDODVVHWV LVSULPDULO\GHUHFRJQLVHG LHUHPRYHGIURPWKH&RPSDQ\¶V
VWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ ZKHQ
x 7KHULJKWVWRUHFHLYHFDVKIORZVIURPWKHDVVHWKDYHH[SLUHGRU
x 7KH&RPSDQ\KDVWUDQVIHUUHGLWVULJKWVWRUHFHLYHFDVKIORZVIURPWKHDVVHWRUKDV
DVVXPHG DQ REOLJDWLRQ WR SD\ WKH UHFHLYHG FDVK IORZV LQ IXOO ZLWKRXW PDWHULDO
GHOD\ WR D WKLUG SDUW\ XQGHU D µSDVVWKURXJK¶ DUUDQJHPHQW DQG HLWKHU D  WKH
&RPSDQ\KDVWUDQVIHUUHGVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIWKHDVVHWRU E 
WKH &RPSDQ\ KDV QHLWKHU WUDQVIHUUHG QRU UHWDLQHG VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO WKH ULVNV DQG
UHZDUGVRIWKHDVVHWEXWKDVWUDQVIHUUHGFRQWURORIWKHDVVHW
:KHQWKH&RPSDQ\KDVWUDQVIHUUHGLWVULJKWVWRUHFHLYHFDVKIORZVIURPDQDVVHWRU
KDVHQWHUHGLQWRDSDVVWKURXJKDUUDQJHPHQWLWHYDOXDWHVLIDQGWRZKDWH[WHQWLWKDV
UHWDLQHG WKH ULVNV DQG UHZDUGV RI RZQHUVKLS :KHQ LW KDV QHLWKHU WUDQVIHUUHG QRU
UHWDLQHGVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOORIWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIWKHDVVHWQRUWUDQVIHUUHGFRQWURO
RIWKHDVVHWWKH&RPSDQ\FRQWLQXHVWRUHFRJQLVHWKHWUDQVIHUUHGDVVHWWRWKHH[WHQWRI
WKH&RPSDQ\¶VFRQWLQXLQJLQYROYHPHQW,QWKDWFDVHWKH&RPSDQ\DOVRUHFRJQLVHVDQ
DVVRFLDWHGOLDELOLW\7KHWUDQVIHUUHGDVVHWDQGWKHDVVRFLDWHGOLDELOLW\DUHPHDVXUHGRQ
DEDVLVWKDWUHIOHFWVWKHULJKWVDQGREOLJDWLRQVWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\KDVUHWDLQHG
,PSDLUPHQWRIWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
,Q DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK 0)56  WKH &RPSDQ\ DSSOLHV H[SHFWHG FUHGLW ORVV ³(&/¶ 
PRGHOIRUPHDVXUHPHQWDQGUHFRJQLWLRQRILPSDLUPHQWORVVRQWKHWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
RU DQ\ FRQWUDFWXDO ULJKW WR UHFHLYH FDVK RU DQRWKHU ILQDQFLDO DVVHW WKDW UHVXOW IURP
WUDQVDFWLRQVWKDWDUHZLWKLQWKHVFRSHRI0)56
)RU WKLV SXUSRVH WKH &RPSDQ\ IROORZV µVLPSOLILHG DSSURDFK¶ IRU UHFRJQLWLRQ RI
LPSDLUPHQW ORVV DOORZDQFH RQ WKH WUDGH UHFHLYDEOH EDODQFHV 7KH DSSOLFDWLRQ RI
VLPSOLILHG DSSURDFK GRHV QRW UHTXLUH WKH &RPSDQ\ WR WUDFN FKDQJHV LQ FUHGLW ULVN
5DWKHU LW UHFRJQLVHV LPSDLUPHQW ORVV DOORZDQFH EDVHG RQ OLIHWLPH (&/V DW HDFK
UHSRUWLQJGDWHULJKWIURPLWVLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQ



696

-7190436Ā.6:25782Ā/-)Ā#.'*" ""Ȁ,-#!Ȁ#+%.Ȁ+$!#Ȁ%!$(#.!,+'&&

&RPSDQ\1R ; 


$V D SUDFWLFDO H[SHGLHQW WKH &RPSDQ\ XVHV D SURYLVLRQ PDWUL[ WR GHWHUPLQH
LPSDLUPHQWORVVDOORZDQFHRQSRUWIROLRRILWVWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV7KHSURYLVLRQPDWUL[
LVEDVHGRQLWVKLVWRULFDOO\REVHUYHGGHIDXOWUDWHVRYHUWKHH[SHFWHGOLIHRIWKHWUDGH
UHFHLYDEOHVDQGLVDGMXVWHGIRUIRUZDUGORRNLQJHVWLPDWHV$WHYHU\UHSRUWLQJGDWHWKH
KLVWRULFDO REVHUYHG GHIDXOW UDWHV DUH XSGDWHG DQG FKDQJHV LQ WKH IRUZDUGORRNLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDUHDQDO\VHG
LL 

)LQDQFLDO/LDELOLWLHV
,QLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDQGPHDVXUHPHQW
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV DUHFODVVLILHG DWLQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQDVILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWIDLU
YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV ORDQV DQG ERUURZLQJV SD\DEOHV RU DV GHULYDWLYHV
GHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVLQDQHIIHFWLYHKHGJHDVDSSURSULDWH
$OOILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQLWLDOO\DWIDLUYDOXHDQGLQWKHFDVHRIORDQV
DQGERUURZLQJVDQGSD\DEOHVQHWRIGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWUDQVDFWLRQFRVWV
7KH &RPSDQ\¶V ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV LQFOXGH WUDGH DQG RWKHU SD\DEOHV ORDQV DQG
ERUURZLQJV LQFOXGLQJ EDQN RYHUGUDIWV ILQDQFLDO JXDUDQWHH FRQWUDFWV DQG GHULYDWLYH
ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
6XEVHTXHQWPHDVXUHPHQW
7KHPHDVXUHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVGHSHQGVRQWKHLUFODVVLILFDWLRQDVGHVFULEHG
EHORZ
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV
)LQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV DW IDLU YDOXH WKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV LQFOXGH ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV
KHOGIRUWUDGLQJDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVGHVLJQDWHGXSRQLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDVDWIDLU
YDOXHWKURXJK SURILW RU ORVV )LQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV DUH FODVVLILHG DV KHOG IRU WUDGLQJ LI
WKH\DUHLQFXUUHGIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIUHSXUFKDVLQJLQWKHQHDUWHUP7KLVFDWHJRU\DOVR
LQFOXGHV GHULYDWLYH ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV HQWHUHG LQWR E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WKDW DUH QRW
GHVLJQDWHG DV KHGJLQJ LQVWUXPHQWV LQ KHGJH UHODWLRQVKLSV DV GHILQHG E\ 0)56 
6HSDUDWHGHPEHGGHGGHULYDWLYHVDUHDOVRFODVVLILHGDVKHOGIRUWUDGLQJXQOHVVWKH\DUH
GHVLJQDWHGDVHIIHFWLYHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWV
*DLQVRUORVVHVRQOLDELOLWLHVKHOGIRUWUDGLQJDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRUORVV
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVGHVLJQDWHGXSRQLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRU
ORVVDUHGHVLJQDWHGDVVXFKDWWKHLQLWLDOGDWHRIUHFRJQLWLRQDQGRQO\LIWKHFULWHULDLQ
0)56DUHVDWLVILHG)RUOLDELOLWLHVGHVLJQDWHGDV)973/IDLUYDOXHJDLQVRUORVVHV
DWWULEXWDEOHWRFKDQJHVLQRZQFUHGLWULVNDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQ2&,7KHVHJDLQVRUORVVHV
DUH QRW VXEVHTXHQWO\ WUDQVIHUUHG WR SURILW RU ORVV +RZHYHU WKH &RPSDQ\ PD\
WUDQVIHUWKHFXPXODWLYHJDLQRUORVVZLWKLQHTXLW\$OORWKHUFKDQJHVLQIDLUYDOXHRI
VXFKOLDELOLW\DUHUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRUORVV7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQRW GHVLJQDWHGDQ\
ILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\DVIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWDQGORVV
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/RDQVDQGERUURZLQJV
$IWHU LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ LQWHUHVWEHDULQJ ORDQV DQG ERUURZLQJV DUH VXEVHTXHQWO\
PHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWXVLQJWKH(,5PHWKRG*DLQVDQGORVVHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQ
SURILW RU ORVV ZKHQ WKH OLDELOLWLHV DUH GHUHFRJQLVHG DV ZHOO DV WKURXJK WKH (,5
DPRUWLVDWLRQSURFHVV
$PRUWLVHG FRVW LV FDOFXODWHG E\ WDNLQJ LQWR DFFRXQW DQ\ GLVFRXQW RU SUHPLXP RQ
DFTXLVLWLRQDQGIHHVRUFRVWVWKDWDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH(,57KH(,5DPRUWLVDWLRQ
LVLQFOXGHGDVILQDQFHFRVWVLQSURILWRUORVV
'HUHFRJQLWLRQ
$ ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLW\ LV GHUHFRJQLVHG ZKHQ WKH REOLJDWLRQ XQGHU WKH OLDELOLW\ LV
GLVFKDUJHGRUFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUHV:KHQDQH[LVWLQJILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\LVUHSODFHGE\
DQRWKHU IURP WKH VDPH OHQGHU RQ VXEVWDQWLDOO\ GLIIHUHQW WHUPV RU WKH WHUPV RI DQ
H[LVWLQJ OLDELOLW\ DUH VXEVWDQWLDOO\ PRGLILHG VXFK DQ H[FKDQJH RU PRGLILFDWLRQ LV
WUHDWHG DV WKH GHUHFRJQLWLRQ RI WKH RULJLQDO OLDELOLW\ DQG WKH UHFRJQLWLRQ RI D QHZ
OLDELOLW\7KHGLIIHUHQFHLQWKHUHVSHFWLYHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVLVUHFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRU
ORVV
LLL 

2IIVHWWLQJRIILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHVDUHRIIVHWDQGWKHQHW DPRXQWLVUHSRUWHGLQ
WKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQLIDQGRQO\LIWKHUHLVDFXUUHQWO\HQIRUFHDEOHOHJDO
ULJKWWRRIIVHWWKHUHFRJQLVHGDPRXQWVDQGWKHUHLVDQLQWHQWLRQWRVHWWOHRQDQHWEDVLV
RUWRUHDOLVHWKHDVVHWVDQGVHWWOHWKHOLDELOLWLHVVLPXOWDQHRXVO\



/($6(
5HFRJQLWLRQDQGLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQW
$VDOHVVHH
7KH &RPSDQ\ UHFRJQLVHV D ULJKWRIXVH DVVHW DQG D OHDVH OLDELOLW\ DW WKH OHDVH
FRPPHQFHPHQWGDWH7KHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLVLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHG DW FRVW ZKLFK FRPSULVHV
WKHLQLWLDODPRXQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DGMXVWHGIRUDQ\OHDVHSD\PHQWVPDGHDWRUEHIRUHWKH
FRPPHQFHPHQW GDWH SOXV DQ\ LQLWLDO GLUHFW FRVWV LQFXUUHG DQG DQ HVWLPDWH RI FRVWV WR
GLVPDQWOHDQGUHPRYHWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWRUWRUHVWRUHWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWRUWKHVLWHRQ
ZKLFKLWLVORFDWHGOHVVDQ\OHDVHLQFHQWLYHVUHFHLYHG
7KHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHG DWWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWDUH
QRW SDLG DW WKH FRPPHQFHPHQW GDWH GLVFRXQWHG E\ XVLQJ WKH LQWHUHVW UDWH LPSOLFLW LQ WKH
OHDVH,IWKLVUDWHFDQQRWEHUHDGLO\GHWHUPLQHGWKH&RPSDQ\XVHVLWVLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJ
UDWHDVWKHGLVFRXQWUDWH
7KH LQFUHPHQWDO ERUURZLQJ UDWH GHWHUPLQHG E\ UHIHUULQJ WR UDWH RI LQWHUHVW WKDW WKH OHVVHH
ZRXOG KDYH WR SD\ WR ERUURZ RYHU D VLPLODU WHUP DQG ZLWK D VLPLODU VHFXULW\ WKH IXQGV
QHFHVVDU\WRREWDLQDQDVVHWRIDVLPLODUYDOXHWRWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLQDVLPLODUHFRQRPLF
HQYLURQPHQW
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/HDVHSD\PHQWVLQFOXGHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\FRPSULVHWKHIROORZLQJ
x IL[HG SD\PHQWV LQFOXGLQJ LQVXEVWDQFH IL[HG SD\PHQWV OHVV DQ\ OHDVH LQFHQWLYHV
UHFHLYDEOHV
x YDULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUDUDWHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGXVLQJWKH
LQGH[RUUDWHDVDWWKHFRPPHQFHPHQWGDWH
x DPRXQWVH[SHFWHGWREHSD\DEOHXQGHUDUHVLGXDOYDOXHJXDUDQWHH
x WKH H[HUFLVH SULFH XQGHU D SXUFKDVH RSWLRQ WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\ LV UHDVRQDEO\ FHUWDLQ WR
H[HUFLVHDQG
x SHQDOWLHVIRUHDUO\WHUPLQDWLRQRIDOHDVHXQOHVVWKH&RPSDQ\LVUHDVRQDEO\FHUWDLQQRW
WRWHUPLQDWHHDUO\
7KH&RPSDQ\H[FOXGHVYDULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWOLQNHGWRIXWXUHSHUIRUPDQFHRUXVDJH
RI WKH XQGHUO\LQJ DVVHW IURP WKH OHDVH OLDELOLW\ ,QVWHDG WKHVH SD\PHQWV DUH UHFRJQLVHG LQ
SURILWRUORVVLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHSHUIRUPDQFHRUXVHRFFXUV
7KH&RPSDQ\KDVHOHFWHGQRWWRUHFRJQLVHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDQGOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVIRUVKRUW
WHUPOHDVHVWKDWKDYHDOHDVHWHUPRIPRQWKVRUOHVVDQGOHDVHVRIORZYDOXHDVVHWV7KH
&RPSDQ\ UHFRJQLVHV WKH OHDVH SD\PHQWV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKHVH OHDVHV DV DQ H[SHQVH RQ D
VWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP
6XEVHTXHQWPHDVXUHPHQW
7KHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLVVXEVHTXHQWO\GHSUHFLDWHGXVLQJ WKH VWUDLJKWOLQH PHWKRG IURP WKH
FRPPHQFHPHQWGDWHWRWKHHDUOLHURIWKHHQGRIWKHXVHIXOOLIHRIWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWRUWKH
HQGRIWKHOHDVHWHUP7KHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDUHGHWHUPLQHGRQWKH
VDPHEDVLVDVWKRVHRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW,QDGGLWLRQWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLVSHULRGLFDOO\
UHGXFHGE\LPSDLUPHQWORVVHVLIDQ\DQGDGMXVWHGIRUFHUWDLQUHPHDVXUHPHQWVRIWKHOHDVH
OLDELOLW\
7KH ULJKWRIXVH DVVHWV DUH GHSUHFLDWHG RQ WKH VWUDLJKWOLQH EDVLV RYHU WKH HDUOLHU RI WKH
HVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVRIWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVRUWKHHQGRIWKHOHDVHWHUP7KHSULQFLSDO
GHSUHFLDWLRQSHULRGVDUHDVIROORZV


8VHIXOOLIH
%XLOGLQJV
2YHUWKHOHDVHSHULRGXSWR\HDUV

7KH OHDVH OLDELOLW\ LV PHDVXUHG DW DPRUWLVHG FRVW XVLQJ WKH HIIHFWLYH LQWHUHVW PHWKRG ,W LV
UHPHDVXUHG ZKHQ WKHUH LV D FKDQJH LQ IXWXUH OHDVH SD\PHQWV DULVLQJ IURP D FKDQJH LQ DQ
LQGH[ RU UDWH LI WKHUH LV D UHYLVLRQ RI LQVXEVWDQFH IL[HG OHDVH SD\PHQWV RU LI WKHUH LV D
FKDQJHLQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VHVWLPDWHVRIWKHDPRXQWH[SHFWHGWREHSD\DEOHXQGHUDUHVLGXDO
YDOXH JXDUDQWHH RU LI WKH &RPSDQ\ FKDQJHV LWV DVVHVVPHQW RI ZKHWKHU LW ZLOO H[HUFLVH D
SXUFKDVHH[WHQVLRQRUWHUPLQDWLRQRSWLRQ
:KHQWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVUHPHDVXUHGDFRUUHVSRQGLQJDGMXVWPHQWLVPDGHWRWKHFDUU\LQJ
DPRXQWRIWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWRULVUHFRUGHGLQSURILWRUORVVLIWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH
ULJKWRIXVHDVVHWKDVEHHQUHGXFHGWR]HUR
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 (48,7<,167580(176
(TXLW\ LQVWUXPHQWV DUH DQ\ FRQWUDFWV WKDW HYLGHQFH D UHVLGXDO LQWHUHVW LQ WKH DVVHWV RI WKH
&RPSDQ\DIWHUGHGXFWLQJDOORILWVOLDELOLWLHV(TXLW\LQVWUXPHQWVLVVXHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\DUH
UHFRJQLVHGDWWKHSURFHHGVUHFHLYHG
'LYLGHQGVRQRUGLQDU\VKDUHVZLOOEHUHFRJQLVHGDVOLDELOLWLHVZKHQWKHVKDUHKROGHUV¶ULJKWV
WRUHFHLYHWKHGLYLGHQGVDUHHVWDEOLVKHG


5(9(18(
7KH&RPSDQ\UHFRJQLVHVUHYHQXHIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUVIRUWKHSURYLVLRQRIVHUYLFH
DQGVDOHRILQIRUPDWLRQEDVHGRQWKHILYHVWHSPRGHODVVHWRXWEHORZ
L ,GHQWLI\FRQWUDFW V ZLWKDFXVWRPHU$FRQWUDFWLVGHILQHGDVDQDJUHHPHQWEHWZHHQ
WZRRUPRUHSDUWLHVWKDWFUHDWHVHQIRUFHDEOH ULJKWVDQGREOLJDWLRQVDQGVHWVRXWWKH
FULWHULDWKDWPXVWEHPHW
LL  ,GHQWLI\ SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQV LQ WKH FRQWUDFW $ SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQ LV D
SURPLVHLQDFRQWUDFWZLWKDFXVWRPHUWRWUDQVIHUJRRGRUVHUYLFHWRWKHFXVWRPHU
LLL 'HWHUPLQHWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFH7KHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFHLVWKHDPRXQWRIFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
WRZKLFKWKH&RPSDQ\H[SHFWVWREHHQWLWOHGLQH[FKDQJHIRUWUDQVIHUULQJSURPLVHG
JRRGV RU VHUYLFHV WR D FXVWRPHU H[FOXGLQJ DPRXQWV FROOHFWHG RQ EHKDOI RI WKLUG
SDUWLHV
LY $OORFDWH WKHWUDQVDFWLRQ SULFH WR WKH SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQV LQ WKH FRQWUDFW )RU D
FRQWUDFWWKDWKDVPRUHWKDQRQHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQWKH&RPSDQ\DOORFDWHVWKH
WUDQVDFWLRQ SULFH WR HDFK SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQ LQ DQ DPRXQW WKDW GHSLFWV WKH
DPRXQW RIFRQVLGHUDWLRQWRZKLFKWKH&RPSDQ\ H[SHFWV WREH HQWLWOHG LQ H[FKDQJH
IRUVDWLVI\LQJHDFKSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQ
Y 5HFRJQLVHUHYHQXHZKHQ RUDV WKH&RPSDQ\VDWLVILHVDSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQ
7KH &RPSDQ\ VDWLVILHV D SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQ DQG UHFRJQLVHV UHYHQXH RYHU WLPH LI WKH
&RPSDQ\¶VSHUIRUPDQFH
L 'RHV QRW FUHDWH DQ DVVHW ZLWK DQ DOWHUQDWLYH XVH WR WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG KDV DQ
HQIRUFHDEOHULJKWWRSD\PHQWIRUSHUIRUPDQFHFRPSOHWHGWRGDWHRU
LL  &UHDWHV RU HQKDQFHV DQ DVVHW WKDW WKH FXVWRPHU FRQWUROV DV WKH DVVHW LV FUHDWHG RU
HQKDQFHGRU
LLL 3URYLGHV EHQHILWV WKDW WKH FXVWRPHU VLPXOWDQHRXVO\ UHFHLYHV DQG FRQVXPHV DV WKH
&RPSDQ\SHUIRUPV
)RU SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQV ZKHUH DQ\ RI WKH DERYH FRQGLWLRQV LV QRW PHW UHYHQXH LV
UHFRJQLVHGDWWKHSRLQWLQWLPHDWZKLFKWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQLVVDWLVILHG
:KHQWKH&RPSDQ\VDWLVILHVDSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQE\GHOLYHULQJWKHSURPLVHGJRRGVRU
VHUYLFHV LW FUHDWHV D FRQWUDFWEDVHG DVVHW RQ WKH DPRXQW RI FRQVLGHUDWLRQ HDUQHG E\ WKH
SHUIRUPDQFH :KHUH WKH DPRXQW RI FRQVLGHUDWLRQ UHFHLYHG IURP D FXVWRPHU H[FHHGV WKH
DPRXQWRIUHYHQXHUHFRJQLVHGWKLVJLYHVULVHWRDFRQWUDFWOLDELOLW\
5HYHQXHLVPHDVXUHGDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIFRQVLGHUDWLRQUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOH
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 (03/2<0(17%(1(),76
L

6KRUW7HUP(PSOR\PHQW%HQHILWV
6KRUWWHUP HPSOR\HH EHQHILWV DUH H[SHQVHG DV WKH UHODWHG VHUYLFH LV SURYLGHG $
OLDELOLW\ LV UHFRJQLVHG IRU WKH DPRXQW H[SHFWHG WR EH SDLG LI WKH &RPSDQ\ KDV D
SUHVHQWOHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYHREOLJDWLRQWRSD\WKLVDPRXQWDVDUHVXOWRISDVWVHUYLFH
SURYLGHGE\WKHHPSOR\HHDQGWKHREOLJDWLRQFDQEHHVWLPDWHGUHOLDEO\

LL 

'HILQHG&RQWULEXWLRQ3ODQ
&RQWULEXWLRQVWRWKHVWDWXWRU\SHQVLRQVFKHPHDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDQH[SHQVHLQSURILW
RUORVVLQWKH\HDUWRZKLFKWKH\UHODWH

LLL 

&RPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHV
7KH &RPSDQ\¶V FXUUHQW SROLFLHV SHUPLW FHUWDLQ FDWHJRULHV RI LWV HPSOR\HHV WR
DFFXPXODWHDQGFDUU\IRUZDUGDSRUWLRQRIWKHLUXQXWLOLVHGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDQG
XWLOLVHWKHPLQIXWXUH SHULRGVRUUHFHLYHFDVKLQOLHXWKHUHRILQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK WKH
WHUPV RI VXFK SROLFLHV 7KH &RPSDQ\ PHDVXUHV WKH H[SHFWHG FRVW RI DFFXPXODWLQJ
FRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDVWKHDGGLWLRQDODPRXQWWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\LQFXUVDVDUHVXOW
RI WKH XQXVHG HQWLWOHPHQW WKDW KDV DFFXPXODWHG DW WKH UHSRUWLQJ GDWH 6XFK
PHDVXUHPHQWLVEDVHGRQDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQDVDWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWHFDUULHGRXWE\D
TXDOLILHGDFWXDU\

 ,1&20(7$;
,QFRPHWD[H[SHQVHFRQVLVWVRIFXUUHQWDQGGHIHUUHGWD[,QFRPHWD[H[SHQVHLVUHFRJQLVHG
LQSURILWRUORVVH[FHSWWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWLWUHODWHVWRLWHPVUHFRJQLVHGGLUHFWO\LQHTXLW\LQ
ZKLFKFDVHLWLVUHFRJQLVHGLQHTXLW\&XUUHQWWD[LVWKHH[SHFWHGWD[SD\DEOHVRQWKHWD[DEOH
LQFRPHIRUWKH\HDUXVLQJWD[UDWHVHQDFWHGRUVXEVWDQWLYHO\HQDFWHGDWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWH
DQGDQ\DGMXVWPHQWWRWD[SD\DEOHLQUHVSHFWRISUHYLRXV\HDUV
'HIHUUHG WD[ LV UHFRJQLVHG XVLQJ WKH EDODQFH VKHHW PHWKRG SURYLGLQJ IRU WHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHV EHWZHHQ WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV IRU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ
SXUSRVHVDQGWKHDPRXQWVXVHGIRUWD[DWLRQSXUSRVHV'HIHUUHGWD[LVQRWUHFRJQLVHGIRUWKH
IROORZLQJWHPSRUDU\GLIIHUHQFHV
 WHPSRUDU\ GLIIHUHQFHV RQ WKH LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ RI DVVHWV RU OLDELOLWLHV LQ D WUDQVDFWLRQ
WKDWLVQRWDEXVLQHVVFRPELQDWLRQDQGWKDWDIIHFWVQHLWKHUDFFRXQWLQJQRUWD[DEOHSURILW
 WHPSRUDU\ GLIIHUHQFHV UHODWLQJ WR LQYHVWPHQWV LQ VXEVLGLDULHV DQG MRLQWO\ FRQWUROOHG
HQWLWLHVWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWWKH\ZLOOQRWUHYHUVHLQWKHIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUH
DQG
 WD[DEOHWHPSRUDU\GLIIHUHQFHVDULVLQJXSRQWKHLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQRIJRRGZLOO
'HIHUUHGWD[ LVPHDVXUHG DWWKHWD[UDWHVWKDWDUH H[SHFWHGWREHDSSOLHG WR WKH WHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHVZKHQ WKH\ UHYHUVH EDVHG RQ WKH ODZV WKDW KDYH EHHQ HQDFWHG RU VXEVWDQWLYHO\
HQDFWHG E\ WKH UHSRUWLQJ GDWH 'HIHUUHG WD[ DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DUH RIIVHW LI WKHUH LV D
OHJDOO\ HQIRUFHDEOH ULJKW WR RIIVHW FXUUHQW WD[ OLDELOLWLHV DQG DVVHWV DQG WKH\ UHODWH WR
LQFRPHVWD[HVOHYLHGE\WKHVDPHWD[DXWKRULW\RQWKHVDPHWD[DEOHHQWLW\RUGLIIHUHQWWD[
HQWLWLHVEXWWKH\LQWHQGWRVHWWOHFXUUHQWWD[OLDELOLWLHVDQGDVVHWVRQDQHWEDVLVRUWKHLUWD[
DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVZLOOEHUHDOLVHGVLPXOWDQHRXVO\
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$GHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWLVUHFRJQLVHGWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWIXWXUHWD[DEOHSURILWV
ZLOOEHDYDLODEOHDJDLQVWZKLFKWKHWHPSRUDU\GLIIHUHQFHFDQEHXWLOLVHG'HIHUUHGWD[DVVHWV
DUH UHYLHZHG DW HDFK UHSRUWLQJ GDWH DQG DUH UHGXFHG WR WKH H[WHQW WKDW LW LV QR ORQJHU
SUREDEOHWKDWWKHUHODWHGWD[EHQHILWVZLOOEHUHDOLVHG
$Q\ GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHW RU OLDELOLW\ DULVLQJ IURP WKH GHGXFWLEOH RU WD[DEOH WHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHVLQUHVSHFWRIXQUHDOLVHGLQWHUFRPSDQ\SURILWRUORVVRQLQYHQWRULHVKHOGE\WKH
&RPSDQ\LQGLIIHUHQWWD[MXULVGLFWLRQVLVUHFRJQLVHGXVLQJWKHWD[UDWHRIWKHMXULVGLFWLRQLQ
ZKLFK VXFK LQYHQWRULHV DUH KHOG :LWKKROGLQJ WD[ DULVLQJ RXW RI SD\PHQW RI GLYLGHQGV WR
VKDUHKROGHUVXQGHUWKH,QGLDQ,QFRPHWD[UHJXODWLRQVLVQRWFRQVLGHUHGDVWD[H[SHQVHVIRU
WKH&RPSDQ\DQGDOOVXFKWD[HVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\DVSDUW
RIWKHDVVRFLDWHGGLYLGHQGSD\PHQW


3/$17$1'(48,30(17



&RVW
&RPSXWHUV
)XUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW














$VDW
-DQXDU\

50




$FFXPXODWHG'HSUHFLDWLRQ
&RPSXWHUV
)XUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW















$GGLWLRQV
50



























$VDW
-DQXDU\

50




$VDW
'HFHPEHU

50


&KDUJHVIRU
WKH\HDU
50




$VDW
'HFHPEHU

50





























50



50

&DUU\LQJ$PRXQWV
&RPSXWHUV
)XUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW
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5,*+72)86($66(76



&RVW
%XLOGLQJV

































$VDW
-DQXDU\

50

$FFXPXODWHG'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%XLOGLQJV









$VDW
'HFHPEHU

50

$GGLWLRQV
50












$VDW
-DQXDU\

50



$VDW
'HFHPEHU

50

&KDUJHVIRU
WKH\HDU
50
























50



50

&DUU\LQJ$PRXQWV
%XLOGLQJV

























,19(1725,(6


$WFRVW
)LQLVKHGJRRGV



 
 





5HFRJQLVHGLQSURILWRUORVV
,QYHQWRULHVUHFRJQLVHGDWFRVWRIJRRGVVROG

 
 
 






50


50

75$'(5(&(,9$%/(6


7UDGH
7KLUGSDUWLHV


50



 
 

7KHQRUPDOFUHGLWWHUPRIWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVLVGD\V




50
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'(326,76$1'35(3$<0(176






'HSRVLWV
3UHSD\PHQWV


50



 
 
 


50







6+$5(&$3,7$/



,VVXHGDQGIXOO\SDLG
2UGLQDU\VKDUHVRI
50HDFK










1XPEHURIVKDUHV



8QLWV

8QLWV
 



 











50




 
 
 



50




/($6(/,$%,/,7,(6



$WEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDU
$GGLWLRQV
/HDVHLQWHUHVW 1RWH 
3D\PHQWV


50




 









$WHQGRI\HDU

3UHVHQWHGDV
&XUUHQW
1RQFXUUHQW






 
 
 







0DWXULW\DQDO\VLV
1RWODWHUWKDQ\HDU
/DWHUWKDQ\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQ\HDUV














)XWXUHILQDQFHFKDUJHV

 
  










50




 




 

3UHVHQWYDOXHRIPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWV
 


7KHOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHGLVFRXQWHGXVLQJWKH&RPSDQ\¶VLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWHRI
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 75$'(3$<$%/(6
7UDGHSD\DEOHVEDODQFHVDULVHVIURPWUDGHSXUFKDVHVZLWKXOWLPDWHKROGLQJFRPSDQ\DVGLVFORVHG
LQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHDYHUDJHFUHGLWSHULRGRQWUDGHSD\DEOHVLVZLWKLQ
GD\VWRGD\V1R LQWHUHVWLVFKDUJHG RQWKHWUDGHSD\DEOHV7KH&RPSDQ\KDV ILQDQFLDO ULVN
PDQDJHPHQW SROLFLHV LQ SODFH WR HQVXUH WKDW DOO SD\DEOHV DUH SDLG ZLWKLQ WKH SUHDJUHHG FUHGLW
WHUPV


27+(53$<$%/(6$1'$&&58$/6



2WKHUSD\DEOHV
$FFUXDOV


50



 
 
 










50





5(9(18(



6DOHRIJRRGV


50



 
 


50




7KH WLPLQJ RI UHYHQXH LV UHFRJQLVHG DW SRLQW LQ WLPH DW ZKLFK WKH SHUIRUPDQFH REOLJDWLRQ LV
VDWLVILHG


352),7%()25(7$;
 23(5$7,1*(;3(16(6


,QFOXGHGLQWKHRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVDUH
&KDQJHVLQLQYHQWRULHV
3XUFKDVHV
'HSUHFLDWLRQRISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
'HSUHFLDWLRQRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHWV
(PSOR\HHEHQHILWVH[SHQVHV
2WKHURSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV


50



















50
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 ',6&/2685(,7(06


7KLVLVVWDWHGDIWHUFKDUJLQJ FUHGLWLQJ 
$XGLWRUV¶UHPXQHUDWLRQ
/RVVRQIRUHLJQH[FKDQJH
5HQWDORISUHPLVH
*DLQRQIRUHLJQH[FKDQJH

 (03/2<((%(1(),76(;3(16(6


50




6DODULHVERQXVDQGDOORZDQFHV
&RQWULEXWLRQWRGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQV
2WKHUHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV


50



 
 
 
 













 
 
 
 
 




50




 


50


,QFOXGHG LQ HPSOR\HH EHQHILWV H[SHQVHV DUH FRPSHQVDWLRQ IRU NH\ PDQDJHPHQW SHUVRQQHO DV
IROORZV


'LUHFWRUV¶UHPXQHUDWLRQ
6DODULHVDOORZDQFHVDQGERQXVHV
&RQWULEXWLRQWRGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQV
2WKHUHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV


50



 
 
 
 




50












50









50




 ),1$1&(&2676



/HDVHLQWHUHVW 1RWH 
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 ,1&20(7$;(;3(16(
1RSURYLVLRQIRUWD[DWLRQLVQHFHVVDU\IRUWKH\HDUDVWKH&RPSDQ\KDVQRFKDUJHDEOHLQFRPH
7KHLQFRPHWD[H[SHQVHLVUHFRQFLOHGWRWKHDFFRXQWLQJSURILWDWWKHDSSOLFDEOHWD[UDWHDVIROORZV



3URILWEHIRUHWD[


50


7D[DW0DOD\VLDQVWDWXWRU\WD[UDWHDW
7D[HIIHFWVRI
1RQGHGXFWLEOHH[SHQVHV
8WLOLVDWLRQRIXQUHFRJQLVHGGHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWVGXULQJWKH
\HDU



 
 
 
 
 
 

  


50






 

7RWDOLQFRPHWD[H[SHQVH
 


$VPHQWLRQHGLQ1RWHGHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWVDUHJHQHUDOO\UHFRJQLVHGIRUGHGXFWLEOHWHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHVXQXVHGWD[ORVVHVDQG XQXVHGWD[FUHGLWV WR WKHH[WHQW WKDW LW LV SUREDEOH WKDW IXWXUH
WD[DEOHSURILWVZLOO EH DYDLODEOHDJDLQVWZKLFKWKHGHGXFWLEOHWHPSRUDU\GLIIHUHQFHV XQDEVRUEHG
FDSLWDODOORZDQFHVDQGXQXVHGWD[ORVVHVFDQEHXWLOLVHG$VRI'HFHPEHUWKHHVWLPDWHG
DPRXQWRI XQXVHGWD[ORVVHVIRUZKLFKWKHWD[HIIHFWV KDYH QRWEHHQUHFRJQLVHGLQ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVGXHWRXQFHUWDLQW\RIWKHLUUHDOLVDWLRQLVDVIROORZV






50

50
 


8QXVHGWD[ORVVHV
 

7KHXQXVHGWD[ORVVHVZKLFKLVVXEMHFWWRDJUHHPHQWE\WKH,QODQG5HYHQXH%RDUGLVDYDLODEOHIRU
RIIVHWDJDLQVWIXWXUHWD[DEOHSURILWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
3XUVXDQWWRWKHDQQRXQFHPHQWRI)LQDQFH%LOOLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKH%XGJHW$QQRXQFHPHQW
 FRPPHQFLQJ IURP  -DQXDU\  XQDEVRUEHG EXVLQHVV ORVVHV DQG XQDEVRUEHG FDSLWDO
DOORZDQFHV IURP D \HDU RI DVVHVVPHQW FDQ RQO\ EH FDUULHG IRUZDUG XS WR  FRQVHFXWLYH \HDU RI
DVVHVVPHQWVEHIRUHH[SLU\8QDEVRUEHGEXVLQHVVORVVHVDQGXQDEVRUEHGFDSLWDODOORZDQFHVEURXJKW
IRUZDUGDVDW-DQXDU\ZLOODOVREHDOORZHGWREHFDUULHGIRUZDUGXSWRFRQVHFXWLYH\HDURI
DVVHVVPHQWVEHIRUHH[SLU\


),1$1&,$/5,6.0$1$*(0(172%-(&7,9(6$1'32/,&,(6
7KH &RPSDQ\¶V DFWLYLWLHV H[SRVH LW WR D YDULHW\ RI ILQDQFLDO ULVNV LQFOXGLQJ PDUNHW ULVN DQG
OLTXLGLW\ ULVN 7KH &RPSDQ\¶V SULPDU\ ULVN PDQDJHPHQW IRFXV LV WR PLQLPLVH SRWHQWLDO DGYHUVH
HIIHFWVRIPDUNHWULVNRQLWVILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH7KH&RPSDQ\¶VULVNPDQDJHPHQWDVVHVVPHQW
DQGSROLFLHVDQGSURFHVVHVDUHHVWDEOLVKHGWRLGHQWLI\DQGDQDO\VHWKHULVNVIDFHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
WRVHWDSSURSULDWHULVNOLPLWVDQGFRQWUROVDQGWRPRQLWRUVXFKULVNVDQGFRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKHVDPH
5LVNDVVHVVPHQWDQGPDQDJHPHQWSROLFLHVDQGSURFHVVHVDUHUHYLHZHGUHJXODUO\WRUHIOHFWFKDQJHV
LQPDUNHWFRQGLWLRQVDQGWKH&RPSDQ\¶VDFWLYLWLHV
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 /,48,',7<5,6.
/LTXLGLW\ULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\ZLOOQRWEHDEOHWRPHHWLWVILQDQFLDOREOLJDWLRQV
DVWKH\IDOOGXH7KH&RPSDQ\¶VH[SRVXUHWROLTXLGLW\ULVNDULVHVSULQFLSDOO\IURPLWVYDULRXV
SD\DEOHV
7KH&RPSDQ\DFWLYHO\PDQDJHVLWVRSHUDWLQJFDVKIORZVDQGWKHDYDLODELOLW\RIIXQGLQJVR
DV WR HQVXUH WKDW DOO UHSD\PHQW DQG IXQGLQJ QHHGV DUH PHW $V SDUW RI LWV RYHUDOO SUXGHQW
OLTXLGLW\PDQDJHPHQWWKH&RPSDQ\PDLQWDLQVVXIILFLHQWOHYHOVRIFDVKWRPHHWLWVZRUNLQJ
FDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWV
0DWXULW\DQDO\VLV
7KHWDEOHEHORZVXPPDULVHVWKHPDWXULW\SURILOHRIWKH&RPSDQ\¶VILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVDW
WKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGEDVHGRQXQGLVFRXQWHGFRQWUDFWXDOSD\PHQWV



)LQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHV
7UDGHSD\DEOHV
2WKHUSD\DEOHV
DQGDFFUXDOV
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV

&DUU\LQJ
DPRXQW
50







 





 










&RQWUDFWXDO
FDVKIORZV
50




 


 


 

8QGHU
\HDU
50



 


 


 

\HDUWR
\HDUV
50








)LQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHV
7UDGHSD\DEOHV
2WKHUSD\DEOHV
DQGDFFUXDOV
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV





 
 
 






 


 


 

 


 


 







 )25(,*1&855(1&<5,6.
)RUHLJQ FXUUHQF\ ULVN LV WKH ULVN WKDW WKH IDLU YDOXH RU IXWXUH FDVK IORZV RI D ILQDQFLDO
LQVWUXPHQWZLOOIOXFWXDWHEHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQIRUHLJQH[FKDQJHUDWHV
7KH&RPSDQ\LVH[SRVHGWRIRUHLJQFXUUHQF\ULVNDVDUHVXOWRILWVQRUPDOWUDGHDFWLYLWLHVLQ
8QLWHG6WDWHV'ROODU ³86'´ 
)RUHLJQ FXUUHQF\ GHQRPLQDWHG OLDELOLWLHV WRJHWKHU ZLWK H[SHFWHG FDVK IORZV IURP KLJKO\
SUREDEOHSXUFKDVHVJLYHULVHWRIRUHLJQH[FKDQJHH[SRVXUHV
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7KH QHW XQKHGJHG ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ WKDW DUH QRW GHQRPLQDWHG LQ WKHLU
IXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQFLHVDUHDVIROORZV


7UDGHSD\DEOHV
86'


50



 
 


50



6HQVLWLYLW\DQDO\VLVIRUIRUHLJQFXUUHQF\ULVN
7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH GHPRQVWUDWHV WKH VHQVLWLYLW\ RI WKH &RPSDQ\¶V SURILW QHW RI WD[ WR D
UHDVRQDEOH SRVVLEOH FKDQJH LQ 86' H[FKDQJH UDWH DJDLQVW WKH UHVSHFWLYH IXQFWLRQDO
FXUUHQFLHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\HQWLWLHVZLWKDOORWKHUYDULDEOHVKHOGFRQVWDQW



86'





VWUHQJWKHQHG
ZHDNHQHG








50


 








50


 

 0$5.(75,6.
0DUNHWULVNLVWKHULVNRIORVVRIIXWXUHHDUQLQJVIDLUYDOXHVRUIXWXUHFDVKIORZVWKDWPD\
UHVXOW IURP DGYHUVH FKDQJHV LQ PDUNHW UDWHV DQG SULFHV VXFK DV LQWHUHVW UDWHV IRUHLJQ
FXUUHQF\ H[FKDQJH UDWHV DQG FRPPRGLW\ SULFHV  RU LQ WKH SULFH RI PDUNHW ULVNVHQVLWLYH
LQVWUXPHQWVDVDUHVXOW RIVXFKDGYHUVHFKDQJHVLQ PDUNHWUDWHV DQG SULFHV 0DUNHW ULVN LV
DWWULEXWDEOH WR DOO PDUNHW ULVNVHQVLWLYH ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV DOO IRUHLJQ FXUUHQF\
UHFHLYDEOHV DQG SD\DEOHV DQG DOO VKRUWWHUP DQG ORQJWHUP GHEW 7KH &RPSDQ\ LV QRW
H[SRVHGWRPDUNHWULVNSULPDULO\UHODWHGWRIRUHLJQH[FKDQJHUDWHULVNLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNDQG
WKHPDUNHWYDOXHRILWVLQYHVWPHQWV
 )$,59$/8(6
7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DVDWUHSRUWLQJGDWH
DSSUR[LPDWHWKHLUIDLUYDOXHV
 &5(',75,6.
&UHGLWULVNLVWKHULVNRIWKHILQDQFLDOORVVWRWKH&RPSDQ\LIDFXVWRPHURUFRXQWHUSDUW\WRD
ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWIDLOVWRPHHWLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQVDQGDULVHVSULQFLSDOO\IURPWKH
&RPSDQ\¶V UHFHLYDEOHV IURP FXVWRPHUV DQG LQYHVWPHQW VHFXULWLHV &UHGLW ULVN LV PDQDJHG
WKURXJK FUHGLW DSSURYDOV HVWDEOLVKLQJ FUHGLW OLPLWV DQG FRQWLQXRXVO\ PRQLWRULQJ WKH
FUHGLWZRUWKLQHVV RI FXVWRPHUV WR ZKLFK WKH &RPSDQ\ JUDQWV FUHGLW WHUPV LQ WKH QRUPDO
FDXVHRIEXVLQHVV7KH&RPSDQ\HVWDEOLVKHVDQDOORZDQFHIRUFUHGLWORVVHVDQGLPSDLUPHQW
WKDWUHSUHVHQWVLWVHVWLPDWHRIH[SHFWHGORVVHVLQUHVSHFWRIWUDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVDQG
LQYHVWPHQWV



709

-7190436Ā.6:25782Ā/-)Ā#.'*" ""Ȁ,-#!Ȁ#+%.Ȁ+$!#Ȁ%!$(#.!,+'&&

&RPSDQ\1R ; 


7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
7KH&RPSDQ\¶VH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLVLQIOXHQFHGPDLQO\E\WKHLQGLYLGXDOFKDUDFWHULVWLFV
RI HDFK FXVWRPHU 7KH GHPRJUDSKLFV RI WKH FXVWRPHUV LQFOXGLQJ WKH GHIDXOW ULVN RI WKH
LQGXVWU\ DQG FRXQWU\ LQ ZKLFK WKH FXVWRPHU RSHUDWHV DOVR KDV DQ LQIOXHQFH RQ FUHGLW ULVN
DVVHVVPHQW&UHGLWULVNLVPDQDJHGWKURXJKFUHGLWDSSURYDOVHVWDEOLVKLQJFUHGLWOLPLWVDQG
FRQWLQXRXVO\ PRQLWRULQJ WKH FUHGLWZRUWKLQHVV RI FXVWRPHUV WR ZKLFK WKH &RPSDQ\ JUDQWV
FUHGLWWHUPVLQWKHQRUPDOFRXUVHRIEXVLQHVV
,QWHUPVRIFRQFHQWUDWLRQULVNRIWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV  LVGXHIURPDVLQJOH
GHEWRU
7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SURYLGHV LQIRUPDWLRQ DERXW WKH H[SRVXUH WR FUHGLW ULVN IRU WUDGH
UHFHLYDEOHVDVDWUHSRUWLQJGDWH






50

50




1HLWKHUSDVWGXHQRULPSDLUHG
 

3DVWGXH±GD\V
 


 &/$66,),&$7,212)),1$1&,$/,167580(17



)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWV
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
'HSRVLWV
&DVKDQGEDQNEDODQFHV

)LQDQFLDO/LDELOLWLHV
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWV
7UDGHSD\DEOHV
2WKHUSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV
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 5(/$7('3$57<75$16$&7,216
'XULQJWKH\HDUVLJQLILFDQWWUDQVDFWLRQVZKLFKDUHGHWHUPLQHG RQ D EDVLV DV QHJRWLDWHG EHWZHHQ
WKH&RPSDQ\DQGWKHUHODWHGSDUWLHVDUHDVIROORZV

50



 
  



8OWLPDWHKROGLQJFRPSDQ\
3XUFKDVHV



 

7KHIROORZLQJEDODQFHVZHUHRXWVWDQGLQJDWWKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG


8OWLPDWHKROGLQJFRPSDQ\
7UDGHSD\DEOHV





50


50

 







50

 

$87+25,6$7,21)25,668(2)7+(),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\ZHUHDXWKRULVHGIRULVVXHE\WKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRQ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories New York LLC (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Associates LLP
The Skyview 10, 18th Floor,
“Zone A”, Survey No 83/1, Raidurgam,
Hyderabad 500 032, India.
Date: 12 May 2021.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
As of
PARTICULARS
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Tax assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and Borrowings
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other liabilities - Non current
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Additional Paid up capital
Retained Earnings
Share based payment reserve
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

9
8

1,884
5,421,325
15,578
5,438,787

2,185
544,090
64,944
611,219

6
7
8
18

8,140,883
62,500
8,955
9,696,078
17,908,416
23,347,203

9,872,591
312,500
8,955
10,194,046
10,805,265

11
17
12

106,339
40,713,713
490,461
41,310,513

110,743
36,799,722
1,268,002
38,178,467

13

1,182,107
1,182,107
42,492,620

1,350,274
1,350,274
39,528,741

10
10

5,000
49,995,000
(69,313,854)
168,437
(19,145,417)
23,347,203

5,000
49,995,000
(78,876,598)
153,122
(28,723,476)
10,805,265

Note

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
INCOME STATEMENT
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross (loss) / profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Other (income)/expense, net
Total operating expenses
Results from operating activities (A)
Finance income, net
Finance income, net (B)
Loss before tax [(A)+(B)]
Tax expense/(benefit), net
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Note

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

14
15

16

5,030,851
(252,895)
4,777,956
(4,777,956)
8,855
8,855
(4,769,101)
(14,331,845)
9,562,744

6,570,112
(296,212)
6,273,900
(6,273,900)
31,174
31,174
(6,242,726)
(6,242,726)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Income Statement:
Total items that will not be reclassified to Income Statement
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the Income statement:
Total of items that will be reclassified subsequently to the income
statement
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
9,562,744
9,562,744

(6,242,726)
(6,242,726)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Share
Capital

Number of
Shares

Share Premium

Balance as of April 01, 2019 (A)
Loss for the year
Total Comprehensive income (B)
Share-based payment expense (Refer note 20)
Total transactions with owners of the
Company (C)
Balance as of March 31,2020 [(A)+(B)+(C)]

50,000
-

5,000
-

50,000

5,000

Balance as of April 01, 2020 (A)
Profit for the year
Total Comprehensive income (B)
Share-based payment expense (Refer note 20)
Total transactions with owners of the
Company (C)
Balance as of March 31,2021 [(A)+(B)+(C)]

50,000
-

49,995,000
-

-

5,000
-

50,000

5,000

-

49,995,000
49,995,000

Share based
payment
Reserve
142,444
10,678
10,678

Retained earnings
(72,633,872)
(6,242,726)
(6,242,726)
-

Total
(22,491,428)
(6,242,726)
(6,242,726)
10,678
10,678

153,122

(78,876,598)

(28,723,476)

-

153,122
15,315

(78,876,598)
9,562,744
9,562,744
-

(28,723,476)
9,562,744
9,562,744
15,315

49,995,000

15,315
168,437

(69,313,854)

15,315
(19,145,417)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
Particulars
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Tax expense/(benefit), net
Share-based payment expense
Interest income
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Other assets and other liabilities, net
Cash used in operations
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest Received
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans and borrowings from Parent Company, net
Net cash from financing activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer to Note 9)

For the year ended
March 31,2021
March 31,2020
9,562,744

(6,242,726)

1,989,099
(14,331,845)
15,315
(11,278)

2,154,641
10,678
(29,315)

(11,795)
(568,775)
(3,356,535)
(3,356,535)

(21,368)
1,996,693
(2,131,397)
(2,131,397)

14,585
14,585

3,341,649
3,341,649
(301)
2,185
1,884

(16,988)
23,721
6,733

2,126,168
2,126,168
1,504
681
2,185

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
1. Reporting entity
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories New York LLC ("DRLNY"/"Company") was incorporated in the state of Delaware on May 24, 2011 as a whollyowned subsidiary of Dr. Reddys Laboratories SA, Switzerland (DRLSA). Company has obtained a license from APR LLC which provides
the process of manufacturing API pertaining to Conjugated Estrogen product. Besides the process acquired, as part of Research and
development, the Company is in the process of developing an alternative manufacturing method of API.
In October 2020, as part of the planned restructuring, DRLSA has transferred the ownership interest in DRLNY to the Company. As a
result of this, effective October 30 2020, DRLNY becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc and operating
with name of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories New York LLC. Prior to transfer of membership the Company name was Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories New York Inc.
The Company currently is in the process of development of finished dosage pertaining to conjugated estrogen, which has active market
across geographies. Revenue generation shall commence after successful development, manufacturing and commercialization of the
finished dosage.
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
a. Statement of compliance
These financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021 comply in all material aspects with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and its interpretations (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant IFRS that are effective or
elected for early adoption at the Company’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2021. These financial statements were authorized for issuance
by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 12, 2021.
b. Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:
• derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;
• financial assets are measured either at fair value or at amortized cost, depending on the classification;
• long-term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method;
• share-based payments are measured at fair value;
• right-of-use assets are recognized at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at that date. This amount is adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, lease incentives received and initial direct costs, incurred, if any.
c. Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s operations are self-contained and integrated within the respective countries/regions (i.e., United States of America), the
functional currency has been determined to be the local currency of that country (i.e., U.S. Dollar).All amounts included in the financial
statements are reported in US dollar, (presentation currency).
d. Going Concern
The Company’s financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 have been prepared on a going concern basis
which assumes that the Group (Parent Company / Ultimate Parent Company) will continue to be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due
for the foreseeable future.
As at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, the Company had a working capital deficit of USD 35,871,716 and USD 37,567,248
respectively. The Company had incurred (profit)/losses of USD (9,562,754) and USD 6,242,726 and had negative cash flow from
operations of USD 3,356,535 and USD 2,131,397 for the year ended March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively. The Company is
currently in the process of research and development of API pertaining to Conjugated Estrogen product and would be able to derive
positive cash flows and working capital from the business upon successful development and commercialization of the said product.
The resource requirements of the Company have been currently funded by its Parent Company (Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc. The directors
of Parent Company closely monitor the progress of research and development pertaining to API of Conjugated Estrogen product.
Considering the positive progress of the product development process, the Parent Company continues to financially support the Company
till the product is successfully developed and commercialized in the market. Based on these factors, inspite of the incurred losses and
negative cash flows from operations in the Company, the financial statements are prepared with going concern assumption.

6
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)
e. Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Note 2(c) — Functional currency;
Note 3(b) and 20 — Financial instruments;
Note 3(e) — Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment;
Note 3(f) — Useful life of intangible assets;
Note 3(g) — Provisions;
Note 3(k) —Income tax;
Note 3(l) —Share based payment transactions.

3. Significant accounting policies
New Standards adopted by the Company
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
The amendments provided a new definition to the word “material” as follows:
‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.’
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with
other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users.
An information is considered to be obscured if it is communicated in a way that would have a similar effect for primary users of financial
statements to omitting or misstating that information. The amendments provided examples of circumstances that may result in information
being obscured.
Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
The amendments clarified the definition of a business for the purpose of identifying a business combination under IFRS 3, “Business
Combinations”. As per the revised definition, business is ‘an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being conducted and
managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to customers, generating investment income (such as dividends or interest) or
generating other income from ordinary activities’.
A related amendment has been made to the definition of ‘output’ as an element of business.
The amendments include an election to use a ‘concentration test’. This is a simplified assessment that would cause an acquisition to qualify
as an asset acquisition. The concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets.
An entity is required to apply the amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020, and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enter into
any business combinations.
Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
The IASB published “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase II (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)” representing the
finalization of Phase II of the project on August 27, 2020 to address issues that might affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative benchmark interest rate.
The amendments to IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly
affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or
amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.
The amendments to IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging
relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in IFRS 9 are applied.
These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.
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Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19 related rent concessions
IFRS 16, “Leases” was amended by IASB on May 28, 2020 to provide limited relief to lessees in respect of rent concessions arising due to
COVID-19 pandemic. No relief has been allowed to the lessors.
The amendments provide a practical expedient that lessees may elect to not treat any rent concessions, provided by lessors as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic, as lease modifications. However, to be eligible for this relief:
• the revised consideration for the lease should be less than or equal to the lease consideration immediately before the change;
•
the rent concession should be for a period that does not extend beyond June 30, 2021 (for example, lease rents are reduced for a period
up to June 30, 2021 and increased for periods thereafter); and
• there should be no substantial modification to the other terms and conditions of the lease.
Lessee should apply the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. In case a lessee has not yet
approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of the amendments, then the same may be applied for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after the January 1, 2019.
The aforesaid amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of the Company at exchange rate at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognized in the income statement in
the period in which they arise.
When several exchange rates are available, the rate used is that at which the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance
could have been settled if those cash flows had occurred at the measurement date.
b. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (e.g., regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified:
• Debt instruments at amortized cost;
• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”);
• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition is recognized directly in income statement and presented in other income/(losses),net. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the income statement. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified to the income statement. Interest earned while holding a FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
effective interest rate method.
Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as an “accounting mismatch”). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the income statement.
Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the income statement, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.Equity investments designated as FVTOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the income statement.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s financial position) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• Both (1) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and (2) either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of trade receivables and other financial assets
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.
For this purpose, the Company follows a “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on the trade receivable
balances. The application of this simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the income statement.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to the income statement. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
income statement. The Company has not designated any financial liability as fair value through profit and loss.
Loans and borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the income statement.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For this purpose, “short-term” means
investments having original maturities of three months or less from the date of investment. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the statement of cash flows.
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c. Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in IAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements”.
Assets:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
Current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. All other assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
d. Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and stock options are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
e. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.
Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and are recognized net within “Other (income)/expense, net” in the income
statement.
The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs
and maintenance are recognized in the income statement as incurred.
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value, unless the exchange
transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which
case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up.
Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The depreciation expense is included in the costs of the functions using the asset. Land is not depreciated but subject to impairment.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over period of the lease agreement or the useful life, whichever is shorter.
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are considered prospectively.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Buildings
Factory and administrative buildings
Ancillary structures
Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Computer equipment

25 - 50 years
3 - 15 years
3 - 15 years
4 - 10 years
3 - 5 years

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral part of a Property, Plant and
Equipment, including consultancy charges for implementing the software, is capitalized as part of the related Property, Plant and
Equipment. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are
amortized over the estimated useful life of the software or the remaining useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment, whichever is
lower.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each reporting date and the cost of Property, Plant
and Equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. Assets not ready for use are not depreciated
but are tested for impairment.
f. Goodwill and other Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred, together with the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, over the
fair value of the Company’s share of identifiable net assets acquired.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the investment, and any impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying value of the equity accounted investee.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they
relate.
Research and development
Expenditures on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding are
recognized in the income statement when incurred.
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. Development
expenditures are capitalized only if:
• development costs can be measured reliably;
• the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;
• future economic benefits are probable; and
• the Company intends to, and has sufficient resources, to complete development and to use or sell the asset.
The expenditures to be capitalized include the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended
use. Other development expenditures are recognized in the income statement as incurred. As of March 31, 2021, none of the development
expenditure amounts has met the aforesaid recognition criteria.
Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments and milestones for in-licensed products, compounds and
intellectual property are capitalized. The Company’s criteria for capitalization of such assets are consistent with the guidance given in
paragraph 25 of International Accounting Standard 38 (“IAS 38”) (i.e., the receipt of economic benefits embodied in each intangible asset
separately purchased or licensed in the transaction is considered to be probable).
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In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D”)
Acquired research and development intangible assets that are under development are recognized as In-Process Research and Development
assets (“IPR&D”). IPR&D assets are not amortized, but evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are indications
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such IPR&D assets is recorded in the income statement under
"Impairment of non-current assets".
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they
relate. All other expenditures, including expenditures on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in the income statement as
incurred.
Amortization
Amortization is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets or on any
other basis that reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity.The
amortization expense is recognized in the income statement in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible
asset.
The estimated useful lives of Product related intangibles is 10 years.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.
Changes in the expected useful lives or expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are considered
to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate and are treated as change in accounting estimate.
Goodwill, intangible assets relating to products in development, other intangible assets not available for use and intangible assets having
indefinite useful life are subject to impairment testing at each reporting date. All other intangible assets are tested for impairment when there
are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. All impairment losses are recognized immediately in the income statement
under “Impairment of non-current assets”.
De-recognition of intangible assets
Intangible assets are de-recognized either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits are expected from their use. Losses arising
on such de-recognition are recorded in the income statement, and are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of respective intangible assets as at the date of de-recognition.
g. Provisions
A provision is recognized in the income statement if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
Restructuring
A provision for restructuring is recognized in the income statement when the Company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring
plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are not provided.
Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized in the income statement when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of
the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
Reimbursement rights
Expected reimbursements for expenditures required to settle a provision are recognized in the income statement only when receipt of such
reimbursements is virtually certain. Such reimbursements are recognized as a separate asset in the statement of financial position, with a
corresponding credit to the specific expense for which the provision has been made.
h. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually and, if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.
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i. Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers:
The Company currently is in the process of development of finished dosage pertaining to conjugated estrogen, which has active market
across geographies. Revenue generation shall commence after successful development, manufacturing and commercialization of the
finished dosage.
j. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
k. Income tax
Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income statement except to the extent that
it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following
temporary differences:
- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit;
- temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
- taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that the future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Accruals for uncertain tax positions require management to make judgments of potential exposures. Accruals for uncertain tax positions are
measured using either the most likely amount or the expected value amount depending on which method the entity expects to better predict
the resolution of the uncertainty. Tax benefits are not recognized unless the tax positions will probably be accepted by the tax authorities.
This is based upon management’s interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the expectation of how the tax authority will resolve
the matter. Once considered probable of not being accepted, management reviews each material tax benefit and reflects the effect of the
uncertainty in determining the related taxable amounts.
l. Share-based payment transactions
Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited (Ultimate Parent Company) issues Employees Stock Options (ESOP) to the employees covered under
various ESOP Plans managed by the Ultimate Parent Company.
The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense in the income statement, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognized
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and performance conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and performance conditions at
the vesting date. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple
awards. The increase in equity recognized in connection with share-based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in
equity under “share-based payment reserve”. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options
that vest.
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Cash settled share-based payment transactions
The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share-based payment transactions which are settled in cash is recognized as
an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to
payment. The liability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the settlement date based on the fair value of the share-based payment
transaction. Any changes in the liability are recognized in the income statement.
m. Government grants
The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied
with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets are presented as a deferred revenue expenditure and
the amount is recognised as other income over the uselife of the asset in income statement. Grants related to income are deducted in
reporting the related expense in the income statement.
n. Impairment
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, an impairment test is performed
each year at March 31.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).
The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for the purpose of impairment testing, allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit is
lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment
in a joint venture is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the
investment in a joint venture is tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture
An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of investment with its
carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
o. Finance income and expense
Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, dividend income and gains on the disposal of financial assets. Interest
income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized in the
income statement on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established. The associated cash flows are classified as
investing activities in the statement of cash flows. Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings.
Borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement using the effective interest method. The associated cash flows are classified as
financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis within finance income and expense. These primarily include: exchange
differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items; changes in the fair value of derivative contracts that economically
hedge monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting is applied; and the ineffective portion of cash
flow hedges.
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4.

Determination of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for certain financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or
liability.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as assets acquired in a business combination and significant liabilities,
such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is determined by the Management, based on market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
(i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, if acquired in a business combination or through an exchange of non-monetary assets, is measured at fair
value on the acquisition date. For this purpose, fair value is based on appraised market values and replacement cost.
(ii) Intangible assets
The fair value of brands, technology related intangibles, and patents and trademarks acquired in a business combination is based on the
discounted estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of these brands, technology related intangibles, patents or
trademarks being owned (the “relief of royalty method”). The fair value of customer related, product related and other intangibles acquired
in a business combination has been determined using the multi-period excess earnings method. Under this method, value is estimated as the
present value of the benefits anticipated from ownership of the intangible assets in excess of the returns required or the investment in the
contributory assets necessary to realize those benefits.
(iii) Inventories
The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined based on its estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the
inventories.
(iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to
similar lease agreements. In respect of the Company’s borrowings that have floating rates of interest, their fair value approximates carrying
value.
(v) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of employee stock options is measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. Measurement inputs include share
price on grant date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted average historical volatility), expected life of the
instrument (based on historical experience), expected dividends, and the risk free interest rate (based on government bonds).
5. Capital management
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary objective
of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company manages it’s capital structure and makes
adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors
capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt.
The capital gearing ratio as on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was 189% and 456%, respectively.
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6. Property plant and equipment: The following is a summary of the change in carrying value of property, plant and equipment.
Particulars
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1, 2019
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019
Depreciation during the year
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1, 2020
Depreciation during the year
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Net Carrying Value
As at April 01, 2019
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at April 01, 2019
As at March 31, 2020
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021
Add:-Capital Work in Progress
Total at March 31, 2021

Buildings(Factory
and Administrative)

Land

Lease Hold
Improvements

400,000
400,000
400,000
400,000

1,564,124
1,564,124
1,564,124
1,564,124

7,144,552
7,144,552
7,144,552
7,144,552

-

844,002
116,663
960,665
960,665
114,960
1,075,625

400,000

Plant &
Machinery
14,133,162

Furniture &
fixtures

Computers

Total

14,133,162
14,133,162
36,953
14,170,115

12,610
12,610
12,610
12,610

18,425
18,425
18,425
32,586
51,011

23,272,873
23,272,873
23,272,873
69,539
23,342,412

1,900,120
344,697
2,244,817
2,244,817
344,697
2,589,514

9,068,245
1,443,281
10,511,526
10,511,526
1,271,049
11,782,575

12,610
12,610
12,610
12,610

18,425
18,425
18,425
8,392
26,817

11,843,402
1,904,641
13,748,043
13,748,043
1,739,099
15,487,142

720,122

5,244,432

5,064,917

-

-

400,000

603,459

4,899,735

3,621,636

-

-

400,000

488,499

4,555,038

2,387,540

-

24,194

11,429,471
337,422
11,766,893
9,524,830
347,761
9,872,591
7,855,270
285,613
8,140,883

Capital commitment: As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had capital commitments of USD Nil and USD Nil under agreements for purchase of property plant and
equipment. The amount is net of capital advances paid in respect of such agreements.
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7. Intangible assets
The following is a summary of changes in carrying value of other intangible assets:
Particulars

Product related intangibles

Total

Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1, 2019
Additions
De–recognitions
Balance as at March 31, 2020

2,500,000
2,500,000

2,500,000
2,500,000

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
De–recognitions
Balance as at March 31, 2021

2,500,000
2,500,000

2,500,000
2,500,000

amortization/Impairment Loss
Balance as at April 1, 2019
amortization during the period
De–recognitions
Balance as at March 31, 2020

1,937,500
250,000
2,187,500

1,937,500
250,000
2,187,500

Balance as at April 1, 2020
amortization during the period
De–recognitions
Balance as at March 31, 2021

2,187,500
250,000
2,437,500

2,187,500
250,000
2,437,500

562,500
312,500
62,500

562,500
312,500
62,500

Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2019
As at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021

The weighted average remaining useful life of intangibles was approximately 0.25 years as at March 31, 2021.
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8. Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:
As of
March 31, 2021
Current
Due from related parties (Refer note 17)
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-current
Deposits and other assets – non current
Total Non-current Assets
Total other assets

March 31, 2020

5,300,454
43,069
77,802
5,421,325

115,483
40,964
387,643
544,090

8,955
8,955

8,955
8,955

5,430,280

553,045

(1)

Other assets includes current portion of amount receivable from Nostrum Pharmaceuticals LLC and Nostrum Laboratories
Inc. (referred as “Nostrum Pharma”) on account of settlement of litigation in Company’s favor pertaining to violation of Noncompete and confidentiality restrictive covenant mentioned in the Consulting and Transition Services Agreement dated July 8,
2011. Nostrum Pharma shall pay the sum of USD 1,500,000 over five years, bearing interest of 5% per annum, making
quarterly payments, beginning from June 30, 2016.
9. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
As of
March 31, 2021
Current
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow

1,884
1,884

March 31, 2020
2,185
2,185
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10. Share Capital

Par value per share
Authorized share capital (75,000 shares)
Fully paid up capital
As at April 01
Add: Issued during the year
As at March 31
Additional paid in capital
As at April 1
Add: Issued during the year
As at March 31

As of
March 31, 2021
0.10
7,500

March 31, 2020
0.10
7,500

5,000
5,000

5,000
5,000

49,995,000
49,995,000

49,995,000
49,995,000

The Company presently has only one class of equity shares. For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the
Company, every holder of an equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company on the date of the shareholders meeting
shall have one vote in respect of each share held.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, all preferential amounts, if any, shall be discharged by the Company. The
remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held
to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date.
11. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables consist of the following:

Capital creditors
Creditors for expenses
Total trade and other payables

As of
March 31, 2021
13,287
93,052
106,339

March 31, 2020
5,918
104,825
110,743

As of
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

12. Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consist of the following:

Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses
Other Current Liabilities
Other liabilities – Related party *
Total other liabilities
* Refer note 17

258,218
232,243
490,461

1,041,736
226,149
117
1,268,002

13. Other Non-Current Liabilities
Other Non-current liabilities consist of the following:
As of
March 31, 2021
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue Expenditure
Total other non-current liabilities

1,182,107
1,182,107

March 31, 2020
1,350,274
1,350,274
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14. Research and development expenses

Employee Cost
Depreciation & Amortization
Professional/Consultant charges
Others
Total research and development expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
1,647,477
1,989,099
540,667
853,608
5,030,851

March 31, 2020
1,977,821
2,154,641
1,123,752
1,313,898
6,570,112

15. Other (income)/expense, net
Other expense/ (income), net consist of the following:
For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(113,743)
Miscellaneous Income - Related party* (Refer note 17)
Liabilities written back
(26,558)
Others'
(226,337)
(182,469)
Total other (income)/expense, net
(252,895)
(296,212)
* The Miscellaneous income consists of income from corporate services provided to fellow group companies.
16. Finance income, net

Interest Income
Foreign Exchange Gain
Total finance income

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
11,278
(2,423)
8,855

March 31, 2020
29,315
1,859
31,174
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17. Related parties
The Company has entered into transactions with the following related parties:
(a) Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Ultimate Parent Company
(b) Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.*
Parent Company
(c) Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA*
Company under Common Control
(d) Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Lousiana, LLC
Company under common control
(e) Promius Pharma LLC
Company under common control
* Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA has transferred the ownership interest in the Company to Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
With effect October 30, 2020, the Company becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
The following is a summary of significant related party transactions:
Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

Other Income:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Loan from:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
Reimbursement of Expenses from:
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Lousiana, LLC

-

113,743

3,341,649

2,126,168

9,405

-

The Company has the following amounts due from related parties (included in Other Assets):
Particulars
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Lousiana, LLC
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Total amounts due from related parties

As of
March 31, 2021
5,291,049
9,405
5,300,454

March 31, 2020
82,940
32,543
115,483

The Company has the following amounts due to related parties (Included in Other current liabilities and Loans and
Borrowings):
As of
Particulars
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
36,799,722
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc. (refer note a)
40,713,713
Promius Pharma LLC
117
36,799,839
Total amounts due to related parties
40,713,713
Note a:

Represents loans and borrowings received from group companies. Refer to Note 3(b) for details. These borrowings
are repayable on demand and hence presented as current liability in the financial statements.
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18. Income taxes
a. Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the income statement
Income tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the income statement consists of the following:
Particulars
Current taxes
Current taxes expense/(benefit)
Deferred taxes
Deferred taxes expense/(benefit)
Total income tax (expense)/benefit in income statement

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(4,635,767)
(4,635,767)

-

(9,696,078)
(9,696,078)
(14,331,845)

-

The Company is considered as disregarded entity for the purpose of Income taxes. The tax expense in the Income Statement of the
Company is on account of tax allocation from the consolidated tax expense/(benefit) of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc.
The tax expenses are computed and presented at consolidated financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc. as per the tax laws
of the United States.
b. Income tax (expense)/benefit recognsied directly in equity
There were no income tax expenses / benefits recognsied directly in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020 and 2021.
c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars
Profit/ (loss) before income taxes
Enacted tax rate in US
Computed expected tax benefit/(expense)
Effect of permanent differences
Others
Effect on account of tax allocation from the consolidated tax benefit/ (expense) of Parent
Company viz., Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc., based on parent-down approach

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
(4,769,101)
(6,242,726)
21.00%
21.00%
(1,001,511)
(1,310,972)
(39,761)
-

1,310,972

(13,290,573)

-

0.00%
The Company’s weighted average effective tax rates for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 were (300.51)% and 0%,
respectively. Effective tax rate is effected due to allocation of tax expenses based on Parent Down approach which are computed at
Parent Company level and consolidated basis.
Income tax benefit/ (expense)
Effective tax rate

(14,331,845)
-300.51%

d. Unrecognsied deferred tax assets and liabilities
During the financial year ending March 31 2021, the Company has unrecognsied deferred tax assets of USD 3,442,643.
e. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities and a description of the items that
created these differences is given below:
As of
Particulars
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Property plant and equipment
144,841
Accounts receivable
507
Stock based compensation/ equity
(4,298)
Operating loss carry forward
9,555,028
Net deferred tax assets
9,696,078
-
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In assessing whether the deferred income tax assets will be realized, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred
income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred income tax assets and tax loss carry-forwards is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategy in
making this assessment.
Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections of future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax
assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those recognized deductible differences and
tax loss carry-forwards. Recoverability of deferred tax assets is based on estimates of future taxable income. Any changes in such
future taxable income would impact the recoverability of deferred tax assets.
f. Movement in temporary differences during the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:
The details of movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarised below:
March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Accounts receivable
Stock based compensation
Operating loss carry forward
Net deferred tax assets

-

Movement
144,841
507
(4,298)
9,555,028
9,696,078

As at
March 31, 2021
144,841
507
(4,298)
9,555,028
9,696,078
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19. Employee stock incentive plan
Dr Reddy's Laboratories Limited ( Ultimate Parent Company) issues employees stock option (ESOP) to the employees covered
under various ESOP Plans managed by the ultimate Parent Company.
For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 an amount of USD 15,315 and USD 10,678 respectively, has been recorded as
employee share-based payment expense under all employee stock incentive plans with a corresponding credit to the Additional paid
in capital, disclosed as part of stock holders’ equity, representing capital contribution by Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited, the
ultimate Parent Company.
20. Financial Instruments
The carrying value and fair value of the financial instruments were as follows:
For year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Other assets*
Total
Liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Other liabilities and provisions #
Total

Note

Total Carrying
Value

Total fair value

For year ended March 31, 2020
Total Carrying
Value

Total fair value

9
8

1,884
5,387,211
5,389,095

1,884
5,387,211
5,389,095

2,185
512,081
514,266

2,185
512,081
514,266

11
17
12 & 13

106,339
40,713,713
453,913
41,273,965

106,339
40,713,713
453,913
41,273,965

110,743
36,799,722
1,240,028
38,150,493

110,743
36,799,722
1,240,028
38,150,493

* Other assets that are not financial assets (such as prepaid expenses, advances paid and certain other receivables) of USD 43,069
and USD 40,964 as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are not included.
# Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities (such as Deferred Deferred Revenue Expenditure, vacation accruals) of USD
1,218,655 and USD 1,378,248 as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are not included.
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21. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary risk
management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing Company’s risk
assessment and management policies and processes.
a. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. There are no financial
instruments advance to suppliers which potentially subject the Company to credit risk. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful
advances that represent its estimate of incurred losses in respect of such advances.
b. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk by
raising additional funds from Parent Company or from group companies to meet the financial obligations till the successful development and
commercialization of Conjugated Estrogen product.
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had working capital deficit of USD 35,871,726 and USD 37,567,248 respectively.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021:
Particulars
Year 2022
Year 2023
Year 2024
Year 2025 Thereafter
Trade and other payables
106,339
Loans and borrowings
40,713,713
Other liabilities and provisions
453,913
Total
41,273,965
-

Total
106,339
40,713,713
453,913
41,273,965

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020:
Particulars
Year 2021
Year 2022
Year 2023
Year 2024 Thereafter
Trade and other payables
110,743
Loans and borrowings
36,799,722
Other liabilities and provisions
1,240,028
Total
38,150,493
-

Total
110,743
36,799,722
1,240,028
38,150,493

c. Market risk
Foreign exchange risk
The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses. A significant portion of the Company’s
revenues are in reporting currency, USD. As a result, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk.
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22. Nature of Expense
The following table shows the expenses by nature:
Particulars

Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Cost of revenue

Selling, general and
administrative
expenses

-

-

1,647,477
1,989,099
3,636,576

Total
1,647,477
1,989,099
3,636,576

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Selling, general and
Cost of revenue
administrative
expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization

Research and
Development

-

-

Research and
Development
1,977,821
2,154,641
4,132,462

Total
1,977,821
2,154,641
4,132,462

23. Employee benefits
The Company employees participate in DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES NEW YORK LLC., 401 (k) defined contribution
retirement plan. The Company's contribution is discretionary and is determined by its Board of Directors on an annual basis.
The contribution made by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was USD 76,877 and USD
107,025 respectively.
24. Impact of COVID-19
The Company considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic in assessing the recoverability of intangible
assets and other assets. For this purpose, the Company considered internal and external sources of information up to the date
of approval of these financial statements. The Company based on its judgments, estimates and assumptions including
sensitivity analysis, expects to fully recover the carrying amount of intangible assets and other assets.
The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
25. Subsequent Events
There are no subsequent events that occurred after balance sheet date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Philippines, Inc.
24/F Philam Life Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas Bel‐Air
City of Makati Fourth District
NCR, Philippines 1226

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Philippines, Inc.
(a wholly‐owned subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.) (the “Company”) which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the statements of income,
statements of changes in equity (capital deficiency) and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
years then ended, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standard for Small Entities
(PFRS for SE).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with PFRS for SE, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Reyes Tacandong & Co. is a member of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm, and practices in its own right. The RSM network is
not itself a separate legal entity of any description in any jurisdiction.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of the auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES PHILIPPINES, INC.
(A Wholly‐Owned Subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note

December 31
2020
2019

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in bank
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Office equipment

3
4

P
=1,588,965
1,413,811
3,002,776

P
=1,655,561
902,410
2,557,971

5

9,195

12,177

P
=3,011,971

P
=2,570,148

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables
Due to Parent Company
Total Current Liabilities

6
7

P
=1,058,022
7,354,683
8,412,705

P
=717,640
103,659
821,299

Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax liability
Total Liabilities

8

16,880
8,429,585

–
821,299

Equity (Capital Deficiency)
Capital stock
Additional paid‐in capital
Deficit
Total Equity (Capital Deficiency)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

10,000,000
26,095
(15,443,709)
(5,417,614)

10,000,000
26,095
(8,277,246)
1,748,849

P
=3,011,971

P
=2,570,148
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Note
EXPENSES
Salaries and other employee benefits
Professional fees
Rent
Taxes and licenses
Interest expense
Depreciation
Others

Years Ended December 31
2020
2019

P
=3,828,917
2,642,050
210,000
58,390
25,590
2,982
437,920
7,205,849

P
=3,916,755
2,042,290
60,000
56,108
–
2,734
358,350
6,436,237

FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN

56,266

–

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

7,149,583

6,436,237

16,880

–

P
=7,166,463

P
=6,436,237

PROVISION FOR DEFERRED TAX EXPENSE
NET LOSS
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

4
7
5

8
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES PHILIPPINES, INC.
(A Wholly‐Owned Subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)

Years Ended December 31
2020
2019
CAPITAL STOCK ‐ P
=100 par value
Authorized, issued and outstanding ‐ 100,000 shares
ADDITIONAL PAID‐IN CAPITAL
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year
Net loss
Balance at end of year

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

P
=10,000,000

P
=10,000,000

26,095

26,095

(8,277,246)
(7,166,463)
(15,443,709)

(1,841,009)
(6,436,237)
(8,277,246)

(P
=5,417,614)

P
=1,748,849
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES PHILIPPINES, INC.
(A Wholly‐Owned Subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Interest expense
Depreciation
Operating loss before working capital changes
Increase in other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts and other payables
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisition of office equipment

7
5

5

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Increase in due to Parent Company

(P
=6,436,237)

(56,266)
25,590
2,982
(7,177,277)
(511,401)
340,382
(7,348,296)

–
–
2,734
(6,433,503)
(781,586)
(149,908)
(7,364,997)

–

(66,596)

CASH IN BANK AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

(P
=7,149,583)

7,281,700

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH IN BANK AT END OF YEAR

Years Ended December 31
2020
2019

3

(14,911)

─
(7,379,908)

1,655,561

9,035,469

P
=1,588,965

P
=1,655,561
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DR. REDDY’S LABORATORIES PHILIPPINES, INC.
(A Wholly‐Owned Subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Philippines, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 9, 2018 to engage in the
registration, importation, processing, promotion, distribution, and wholesale of pharmaceutical
product for domestic consumption.
The Company is a wholly‐owned subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A. (the Parent Company), a
company domiciled in Switzerland. Its ultimate parent company is Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited, a
company incorporated and domiciled in India.
The registered office address of the Company is at 24/F Philam Life Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas
Bel‐Air, City of Makati Fourth District, NCR, Philippines, 1226.
Status of Operations
As at December 31, 2020, the Company is yet to commence commercial operations. In March 2020,
the World Health Organization declared the COVID‐19 outbreak to be a global pandemic causing the
government to declare the country in a state of public health emergency followed by the
implementation of mandated lockdowns all over the country, resulting in a slowdown in the
Philippine economy. The Company continues to monitor the situation closely and may implement
further measures to provide additional financial flexibility and improve the Company's cash position
and liquidity. The Parent Company has committed to provide continuous financial support necessary
to enable the Company to defray its pre‐operating costs.
The financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 23, 2021.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standard for Small Entities (PFRS for SE) as approved by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council, the Board of Accountancy and SEC.
Bases of Measurement
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis and are
presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Company’s functional currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest Peso unless otherwise indicated.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets and fair
value of the consideration received in exchange for incurring liability.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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Basic Financial Instruments
The Company recognizes a financial asset and a financial liability only when it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of an instrument.
The Company initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at the transaction prices including
transaction costs except in the initial measurement at financial assets and liabilities that are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the arrangement constitutes,
in effect, a financing transaction. After initial measurement, financial assets and liabilities are
measured at the undiscounted amount of cash or other consideration expected to be received or
paid, less allowance for impairment, if any, except for financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value.
If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the Company initially measures the financial
assets and liabilities at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of
interest for a similar instrument. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized by the Company when:
•

the rights to the cash flows from the assets have expired or are settled;

•

the entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or

•

the entity has retained some significant risks and rewards but has transferred control of the
asset to another party.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired.
Any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the consideration is recognized in
profit or loss.
The Company classifies its cash in bank, accounts and other payables (excluding statutory payables)
and due to Parent Company as basic financial instruments. The Company has no complex financial
instruments.
Cash in Bank. Cash in bank is stated at face value.
Accounts and Other Payables and Due to Parent Company. Accounts and other payables (excluding
statutory payables) and due to Parent Company are recognized initially at the transaction price and
subsequently measured at the undiscounted amount of cash expected to be paid.
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Impairment of Basic Financial Instruments
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence of
impairment of any financial assets or group of assets that are measured at cost or amortized cost. If
there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss
immediately.
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment.
Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.
The impairment loss for an instrument measured at amortized cost is measured as the difference
between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
For an instrument measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the best estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of
the amount (which might be zero) that the entity would be received for the asset if it were to be
sold at the reporting date.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss shall be
reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset (net of any allowance account) that exceeds what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment not been recognized. The amount of the reversal shall
be recognized in profit or loss immediately.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreements, and the related asset and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial
position.
Other Current Assets
Other current assets include advances to a third party, input value‐added tax (VAT), deferred input
VAT, prepaid rent and advances to an employee.
Advances to a Third Party. This pertains to advances to a third party for future expenditures. These
are derecognized when the related disbursements are made by the third party.
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Input VAT. Input VAT represents the net amount of VAT recoverable from the authorities.
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:
•

where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

•

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authorities is recognized under “Other current
assets” account in the statements of financial position.
Deferred Input VAT. Deferred input VAT represents the input VAT on the unpaid portion of
purchased services. Deferred input VAT is classified as current assets if it is expected to be claimed
against output VAT over no more than 12 months after the reporting date. Otherwise these are
classified as noncurrent assets.
Prepaid Rent. This represents rent not yet incurred but already paid in cash. This is initially
recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Advances to an Employee. These represent cash advances for business expenses. These are
measured at transaction amount and are subject to liquidation.
Office Equipment
Office equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
The initial cost of office equipment consists of its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged against profit or loss in the year the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of office equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
additional costs of the office equipment.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight‐line basis over the estimated useful life of five years.
The asset’s estimated useful life and depreciation method is reviewed annually, and adjusted
prospectively, as appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date.
An item of office equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and when the carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
cash‐generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of
the asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell or value in use. The fair value less cost to sell
is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an orderly transaction, less the costs of
disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash‐generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such
reversal, the depreciation charges are adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, had no impairment loss been recognized.
Equity
Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.
Additional Paid‐in Capital (APIC). APIC includes any premium received in the issuance of capital
stock.
Deficit. Deficit represents accumulated results of Company’s operations.
Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability, other than those relating to distributions to equity
participants, has arisen that can be measured reliably. Costs and expenses include the costs of
administering the business, and are expensed as incurred.
Foreign Currency‐Denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using
the closing exchange rate at reporting date. Exchange rate differences arising from the translation
or settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which these were initially recorded
during the period are recognized in the profit or loss in the period these arise.
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Income Tax
The Company uses the deferred income taxes method to account for income taxes. Under this
method, the Company recognizes the current and future tax consequences of transactions and
other events that have been recognized in the financial statements. These recognized tax amounts
comprise of the current and deferred tax.
Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rate and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as of the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in the previous years.
Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for carry forward benefits of unused net operating loss carryover
(NOLCO) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against the carry
forward benefits of unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are measured at the
highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is more likely than
not to be recovered.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Offsetting. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, or deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if, and only if, an enforceable right exists to set off the amounts and
it can be demonstrated without undue cost or effort that the Company plans either to settle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Related party relationships exist when party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, through
one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and or among
entities which are under common control with reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the
reporting enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders. In
considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely to the legal form.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
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Leases
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series
of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period. Some agreements do not take the legal
form of a lease but convey rights to use assets in return for payments. Such arrangements are in
substance leases of assets.
The Company recognizes lease payments as expense in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any
reimbursement. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Events After the Reporting Date
Post year‐end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year‐end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

3. Cash in Bank
Cash in bank amounting to P
=1,588,965 and P
=1,655,561 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Cash in bank does not earn interest.

4. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

Advances to a third party
Input VAT
Deferred input VAT
Prepaid rent
Advances to an employee

2020
P
=696,021
637,756
39,864
25,000
15,170
P
=1,413,811

2019
P
=479,927
338,260
7,920
60,000
16,303
P
=902,410
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Advances to a Third Party
This pertains to advances for future expenditures which are noninterest‐bearing and are subject to
liquidation.
Prepaid Rent
On October 1, 2019, the Company entered into a six‐month shared space agreement with a third
party for its office space and can be renewed by the Company on a month‐by‐month basis.
The Company was also required to pay upfront rental fee of P=120,000, which represents the rent
payment for six months. The Company did not renew the agreement and use its office space from
April to June 2020.
On June 24, 2020, the Company renewed the shared space agreement for another twelve months.
The Company is required to pay a monthly fee of P
=25,000 starting July 2020.
Rent expense amounting to P
=210,000 and P
=60,000 was recognized in 2020 and 2019, respectively,
under “Expenses” in statements of income.
Advances to an Employee
This pertains to cash advances which are noninterest‐bearing and are subject to liquidation.

5. Office Equipment
Details of this account are as follows:

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Acquisition
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation
Balance at end of year
Carrying Amount

2020

2019

P
=14,911
–
14,911

P
=–
14,911
14,911

2,734
2,982
5,716
P
=9,195

–
2,734
2,734
P
=12,177

2020
P
=499,447
354,790
203,785
P
=1,058,022

2019
P
=321,006
248,200
148,434
P
=717,640

6. Accounts and Other Payables
This account consists of:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Statutory payables
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Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest‐bearing and are normally settled within the
next reporting period.
Statutory payables pertain to liabilities to government agencies that are normally settled within the
month following the reporting period.

7. Related Party Transactions
Transaction and outstanding balance of the Company with the Parent Company are as follows:
Nature of
Transaction
Due to
Parent Company

Loan availment
Advances
Interest

Transaction Amounts
2020
2019
P
=4,760,525
2,521,900
25,590

P
=–
–
–

Outstanding Balance
2020
2019
P
=4,816,956
2,512,137
25,590
P
=7,354,683

P
=–
103,659
–
P
=103,659

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Parent Company
Loans
On October 6, 2020, the Company entered into unsecured loan agreement with its Parent Company
amounting to US$100,000 (equivalent to P
=4,760,525). The loan bears interest at 2.25% per annum
and has no stipulated maturity date.
Interest expense from loans amounted to P
=25,590 in 2020.
Advances
Outstanding balance at year end is unsecured and noninterest‐bearing. There have been no
guarantees provided for related party liability. The outstanding balance of due to the Parent
Company is normally payable on demand.
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 34‐2020
The Company is covered by the requirements and procedures provided by the RR No. 34‐2020.
Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The Company has no key management personnel compensation in 2020 and 2019.

8. Income Tax
The Company has no provision for current income tax in 2020 and 2019 due to its tax loss position.
The Company will be subjected to minimum corporate income tax in the fourth taxable year following
the year of its registration with the Bureau of Internal Revenue.
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the reconciliation of income tax benefit computed at the
statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate is shown below:

Income tax benefit computed at the statutory tax rate
Change in unrecognized deferred tax asset
Nondeductible expense

2020
(P
=2,144,875)
2,154,078
7,677
P
=16,880

2019
(P
=1,930,871)
1,930,871
–
P
=–

Deferred tax asset on NOLCO amounting to P
=4,640,796 and P
=2,486,719 as at December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively, was not recognized because management has assessed that it is not
probable that the Company will have sufficient future taxable profits against which the benefit of
NOLCO can be utilized before its expiration.
The details of NOLCO which can be applied against future taxable income follow:
Year Incurred
2020
2019
2018

Amount
P
=–
6,436,237
1,852,825
P
=8,289,062

Incurred
P
=7,180,259
–
–
P
=7,180,259

Balance
P
=7,180,259
6,436,237
1,852,825
P
=15,469,321

Expiry Year
2025
2022
2021

Under the Republic Act No. 11494, also known as “Bayanihan to Recover As One Act” and Revenue
Regulations No. 25‐2020, the Company is allowed to carry‐over its operating losses incurred for
taxable years 2020 and 2021 for the next five (5) years immediately following the year of such loss.
Consequently, NOLCO incurred in 2020 shall be carried over until 2025.
Deferred tax liability pertains to unrealized foreign exchange gain amounting to P
=16,880 as at
December 31, 2020.
Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE)
On March 26, 2021, the CREATE was approved and signed into law by the country’s President.
Under the CREATE Law, the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) of domestic corporations was
revised from 30% to 25% or 20% depending on the amount of total assets or total amount of taxable
income. In addition, the minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) was changed from 2% to 1% of
gross income for a period of three (3) years. The changes in the income tax rates shall
retrospectively become effective beginning July 1, 2020.
However, the income tax rates used in preparing the financial statements as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are 30% and 2% for RCIT and MCIT, respectively.
Management believes that the developments of the CREATE Law does not have any significant
impact to the Company due to its net taxable loss position and non‐recognition of deferred tax asset
as at December 31, 2020.
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9. Other Matters
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID‐19 outbreak to be a global
pandemic causing the government to declare the country in a state of public health emergency
followed by the implementation of mandated lockdowns all over the country, resulting in a
slowdown in the Philippine economy. The Company continues to monitor the situation closely and
may implement further measures to provide additional financial flexibility and improve the
Company's cash position and liquidity. The COVID‐19 pandemic is still happening and it is not
practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The
situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the government, such as
maintaining social distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic
stimulus that may be provided. Management believes that the Company can continue as a going
concern given its liquidity and its ability to obtain short‐term and long‐term funding.
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10. Supplementary Information Required by Revenue Regulations No. 15‐2010 of the Bureau of
Internal Revenue
The information for 2020 required by the above regulations is presented below.
Output VAT
The Company has no output VAT in 2020 since it has not yet started its operations.
Input VAT
Movements in input VAT for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:
Amount
P
=338,260

Balance at beginning of year
Add: Current year’s domestic purchases/payments ‐
Domestic purchase of services

299,496
P
=637,756

Other Local and National Taxes
Other local and national taxes paid and accrued by the Company as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2020 consist of:
Permits and licenses
Community tax

P
=57,890
500
P
=58,390

Withholding taxes
Withholding taxes paid and accrued by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 consist
of:

Withholding tax on compensation
Expanded withholding tax

Paid
P
=856,945
108,645
P
=974,590

Accrued
P
=149,925
49,430
P
=199,355

Total
P
=1,006,870
158,075
P
=1,164,945

Tax Assessments and Tax Cases
The Company has no outstanding tax assessments and tax cases as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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Tel: +40-21-319 9476
Fax: +40-21-319 9477
www.bdo.ro

Victory Business Center
Str. Invingatorilor 24
Bucuresti - 3
Romania 030922

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Romania SRL
Report for the audit of individual financial statements
Qualified Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Romania SRL
(hereinafter refer to as ”the Company”), with the headquarter in Bucharest, identified by the fiscal
code 27144903, which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, the income statement,
the cash flow statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
The above mentioned individual financial statements are identified by:
▪ Net turnover:
RON 126,433,280
▪ Net result of the period:
RON
5,895,546, profit
▪ Net assets/Total equity:
RON 25,627,935
2. In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance
no. 1802/2014 for the approval of Accounting regulations for individual and consolidated financial
statements, with subsequent amendments (”OMFP 1802/2014”).
Basis for Qualified Opinion
3. As of December 31, 2020, the Company reports inventories of goods held for resale amounting to LEI
35,807,217. We did not attend an inventory count since we have been informed that storage supplier
did not allow such procedure due to restrictions imposed to prevent infections with Covid -19. We
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the existence and condition of
inventories through alternative audit procedures. Consequently, we were not able to determine
whether any adjustments are necessary for the carrying amount of inventories.
4. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and Law no.
162/2017 („The law”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company, in accordance with the International Ethic Standards of the Accounting
Professionals issued by International Council of Ethic Standards for Accountants (IESBA code),
according to ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Romania, including The Law, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and according to IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
Other Information – Administrator’s Report
5. The administrators are responsible for preparation and presentation of other information. The other
information comprises the Administrator’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and except for the
cases where there is explicit mentioned in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements as at December 31, 2020, our responsibility
is to read the Administrators’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Administrator’s Report
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or with the information gathered during the
audit, of if those appear to be significantly misstated.
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In relation with the Administrator’s Report, we have read and we report if it was prepared, in all
material aspects, in accordance with the MoPF Order no. 1802/2014, articles 489-492 of the
Accounting regulations regarding the preparation of individual and consolidated financial
statements.
Based on our activity, we report as follow:
a) In the Administrators’ Report we have not identified any financial information which is not in
accordance, in all material respects, with information presented in the accompanying financial
statements;
b) The Administrators’ Report identified above, includes in all material respects, the information
required by the MoPF Order no. 1802/2014, articles 489-492 of the Accounting regulations
regarding individual financial statements and consolidated financial statements.
6. In addition, based on our knowledge and understanding of the company gained during the audit of
financial statements ended at December 31, 2020 we have not identified any information included
into Administrators’ Report that is material misstated. We do not have anything to report in relation
with this aspect.
Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
7. Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with MoPF
Order no. 1802/2014, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management intends to liquidate the Company’s
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
9. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
11. As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.
▪ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;
▪ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;
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▪ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;
▪ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;
▪ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
Other matters
13. This report is made solely to the Company's shareholders, as a body. Our audit has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s shareholders those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

On behalf of BDO AUDIT SRL
Registered to Electronic Pubic Register of financial auditors and audit companies no. FA18

Refer to original signed version in
Romanian language

Name of the engagement partner: Cristian Iliescu
Registered to Electronic Pubic Register of financial auditors and audit companies no. AF1530
May 11, 2021
Bucharest, Romania
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Translation from Romanian language - excerpt
Check only if necessary:

Financial situation type: BL

Big Contributors submitting the balance sheet in Bucharest
Branch
GIE - Groups of economic interest
Net assets smaller than 1/2 of the value of the subscribed capital

Control amount: 1,700,000
Year 2020

Address

Legal Entity Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Romania SRL

Bucharest, 1st District, 71, Nicolae Caramfil Street, apt. 10, phone: 0212240032

Trade Register number J40/6590/2010

Sole Registration Number:

27144903

Form of Property
35 - Limited liability companies
Preponderant activity (code and name from the NACE classification)
4646 Wholesale of pharmaceutical goods
Actual preponderant activity (code and name from the NACE classification)
4646 Wholesale of pharmaceutical goods
Financial annual statement
Middle-sized, big and public interest entities
The financial annual statements as of December 31, 2020 issued by the entities listed at point 9 paragraph (4) of the
Accounting Regulations approved by OMFP no. 1.802/2014 with subsequent changes and ammendments
whose financial year is the same with the calendar year.
F10 - SHORT BALANCE SHEET
F20 - PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
F30 - INFORMATION
F40 - SITUATION OF PERMANENT ASSETS

DIRECTOR

Drawn up,

Full name
Palamadai Vijay
Signature

Full name
Nastase Catalin
Position
11 - Economic Manager
Signature

electronic signature
VALIDATED form

The entity is legally forced to yearly audit of the financial statements
The entity has volunteered for auditing the annual financial statements
AUDITOR
BDO AUDIT SRL

Sole Registration Code

6546223

NO
YES
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BALANCE SHEET
Code 10

F10

December 31st, 2020
Lei
Name of the item

(calculation formulas refer to Row no. in column B)
A
A. PERMANENT ASSETS
I. INTANGIBLE PERMANENT ASSETS
1. Set-up costs (acc. 201-2801)
2. Development costs (acc. 203-2803-2903)
3. Concessions, patents, licences, trademarks and similar rights and assets (acc. 205+
208-2805-2808-2905-2908)
4. Commercial fund (acc. 2071-2807)
5. Exploration and evaluation intangible assets for mineral resources (acc. 206-2806-2906)
6. Advances (acc. 4094-4904)
TOTAL (rows 01 to 06)
II. TANGIBLE PERMANENT ASSETS
1. Freehold land and constructions (acc. 211+212-2811-2812-2911-2912)
2. Plant and machinery (acc. 213+233-2813-2913)
3. Fixtures and fittings (acc. 214+224-2814-2914)
4. Real estate investments (acc. 215-2815-2915)
5. Tangible assets in progress (acc. 231-2931)
6. Real estate investments in progress (acc. 235-2935)
7. Exploration and evaluation tangible assets for mineral resources (acc. 216-2816-2916)
8. Production biological assets (acc. 217+227-2817-2917)
9. Advances (acc. 4093-4903)
TOTAL (row 08 to 16)
III. FINANCIAL PERMANENT ASSETS
1. Shares in related parties (acc. 261-2961)
2. Loans granted to group entities (acc. 2671+2672-2964)
3. Shares in associated entities and entities jointly controled (acc. 262+263-2962)
4. Loans granted to associated entities and entities jointly controled (acc. 2673+2674
-2965)
5. Other long term investments (acc. 265-2963)
6. Other loans (acc. 2675*+2676*+2677+2678*+2679*-2966*-2968*)
TOTAL (row 18 to 23)
PERMANENT ASSETS TOTAL (row 07+17+24)
B. CURRENT ASSETS
I. STOCKS
1. Raw materials and consumables (acc. 301+302+303+/-308+321+322+323+328+351
+358+381+/-388-391-392-3951-3958-398)
2. Work in progress (acc. 331+332+341+/-348*-393-3941-3952)
3. Goods (acc. 345+346+347+/-348*+354+356+357+361+326+/-368+371+327+/-378
-3945-3946-3947-3953-3954-3955-3956-3957-396-397-from acc. 4428)
4. Advances (acc. 4091-4901)
TOTAL (row 26 to 29)
II. DEBTS (Amounts which are to be cashed in more than one year must be presented
separately for each element)
1. Long term receivables 1) (acc. 2675*+2676*+2678*+2679*-2966*-2968*+4092+411+
413+418-4902-491)
2. Receivables from affiliated entities (acc. 451**-495*)
3. Receivables from associated entities and entities jointly controled (acc. 453**-495*)
4. Other receivables (acc. 425+4282+431**+437**+4382+441**+4427+from acc. 4428**+
444**+445+446**+447**+4482+4582+4662+461+473**-496+5187)
5. Subscribed not paid in capital (acc. 456-495*)
6. Receivables representing dividends distributed during the financial year (acc. 463)
TOTAL (row. 31 to 35 +35a)
III. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
1. Shares in affiliated entities (acc. 501-591)
2. Other short-term investments (acc. 505+506+507+from acc. 508-595-596-598+
5113+5114)
TOTAL (row 37+38)

Row
no.
OMF
58/ 2021 Row no.
B

01
02

01
02

03
04
05
06
07

03
04
05
06
07

08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20

18
19
20

21
22
23
24
25

21
22
23
24
25

26
27

BALANCE ON

Jan. 1st, 2020
1

Dec. 31st, 2020
2

5,258

10,118

5,258

10,118

120,744
40,674

286,448
69,774

161,418

356,222

85,708
85,708
252,384

91,751
91,751
458,091

26
27

44,077

26,123

28
29
30

28
29
30

0

35,807,217

44,077

35,833,340

31
32
33

31
32
33

19,269,862

49,798,963

34
35

1,948,877

7,409,959

36
37

34
35
35a
(301)
36

21,218,739

57,208,922

38

37

39
40

38
39

0

0
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IV. CASH AND BANK ACCOUNTS (from acc. 508+ acc. 5112+512+531+532+541+542)
CURRENT ASSETS – TOTAL (row 30+36+39+40)
C. PREPAID EXPENSES (acc. 471) (row 43+44)
Amounts to resume in a period of under a year (from acc. 471*)
Amounts to resume in a period of over a year (from acc. 471*)
D. DEBTS: AMOUNTS PAYABLE WITHIN ONE YEAR
1. Debenture loans (acc. 161+1681-169)
2. Long-term bank loans (acc. 1621+1622+1624+1625+1627+1682+5191+5192+5198)
3. Advance payments from customers (acc. 419)
4. Suppliers and similar accounts (acc. 401+404+408)
5. Bills of exchange payable (acc. 403+405)
6. Debts toward group entities (acc. 1661+1685+2691+451*** )
7. Debts toward associated entities and entities jointly controled (acc. 1663+1686+2692+
2693+453***)
8. Other debts, including tax debts and debts regarding social securities (acc. 1623+1626
+167+1687+2695+421+423+424+426+427+4281+431***+436***+437***+4381+441***+4423
+4428***+444***+446***+447***+4481+455+456***+457+4581+462+4661+473***+509+5186
+5193+5194+5195+5196+5197)
TOTAL (rows 45 to 52)
E. NET CURRENT ASSETS, RESPECTIVELY NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
(row 41+43-53-70-73-76)
F. TOTAL ASSETS MINUS CURRENT DEBTS (row 25+44+54)
G. DEBTS: AMOUNTS PAYABLE WITHIN MORE THAN ONE YEAR
1. Debenture loans (acc. 161+1681-169)
2. Long-term bank loans (acc. 1621+1622+1624+1625+1627+1682+5191+5192+5198)
3. Advance payments from customers (acc. 419)
4. Suppliers and similar accounts (acc. 401+404+408)
5. Bills of exchange payable (acc. 403+405)
6. Debts toward group entities (acc. 1661+1685+2691+451*** )
7. Debts toward associated entities and entities jointly controled (acc. 1663+1686+2692+
2693+453***)
8. Other debts, including tax debts and debts regarding social securities (acc. 1623+1626
+167+1687+2695+421+423+424+426+427+4281+431***+436***+437***+4381+441***+4423
+4428***+444***+446***+447***+4481+455+456***+457+4581+462+4661+473***+509+5186
+5193+5194+5195+5196+5197)
TOTAL (row 56 to 63)
H. PROVISIONS
1. Provisions for employee's benefits (acc. 1515+1517)
2. Provisions for taxes (acc. 1516)
3. Other provisions (acc. 1511+1512+1513+1514+1518)
TOTAL (row 65 to 67)
I. EXPECTED INCOME
1. Subventions for investments (acc. 475) (row 70+71)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of under a year (from acc. 475*)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of over a year (from acc. 475*)
2. Income registered in advance (acc. 472) - total (rows 73+74)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of under a year (acc. 472*)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of over a year (acc. 472*)
3. Expected income for assets received by transfer from clients (acc. 478) (row 76+77)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of under a year (from acc. 478*)
Amounts to be resumed in a period of over a year (from acc. 478*)
Negative commercial fund (acc. 2075)
TOTAL (row 69+72+75+78)
J. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
I. CAPITAL
1. Paid subscribed capital (acc. 1012)
2. Unpaid subscribed capital (acc. 1011)
3. Administration patrimony (acc. 1015)
4. Patrimony of national institutes for research and development (acc. 1018)
5. Other elements of own equity (1031)
TOTAL (row 80 to 84)

41
42
43
44
45

40
41
42
43
44

936,804
22,199,620
240,506
240,506

4,861,346
97,903,608
283,202
283,202

46
47
48
49
50
51

45
46
47
48
49
50

1,059,503

70,490,389

52

51

53
54

52
53

648,698
1,708,201

922,426
71,412,815

55
56

54
55

20,731,925
20,984,309

26,773,995
27,232,086

57
58
59
60
61
62

56
57
58
59
60
61

63

62

64
65

63
64

0

0

66
67
68
69

65
66
67
68

1,215,920
1,215,920

1,604,151
1,604,151

70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

81
82
83
84
85
86

80
81
82
83
84
85

1,700,000

1,700,000

1,700,000

1,700,000
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II. CAPITAL PREMIUMS (acc. 104)
III. REASSESSMENT RESERVES (acc. 105)
IV. RESERVES
1. Legal reserves (acc. 1061)
2. Statutory or contractual capital reserve (acc. 1063)
3. Other reserves (acc. 1068)
TOTAL (row 88 to 90)
Own shares (acc. 109)
Earnings related to own capital instruments (acc. 141)
Loses related to own capital instruments (acc. 149)
V. RESULT CARRIED FORWARD
----------- Balance C (acc. 117)
----------- Balance D (acc. 117)
VI. RESULT OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
----------- Balance C (acc. 121)
----------- Balance D (acc. 121)
Profit distribution (acc. 129)
TOTAL OWN EQUITY (row 85+86+87+91-92+93-94+95-96+97-98-99)
Public patrimony (acc. 1016)
Private patrimony (acc. 1017) 2)
TOTAL EQUITY (rows 100+101+102) (row 25+41+42-53-64-68-79)

87
88

86
87

89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

98
99
100
101
102
103
104

97
98
99
100
101
102
103

340,000

340,000

340,000

340,000

14,548,025
0

17,728,389
0

3,180,364
0

5,859,546
0

19,768,389

25,627,935

19,768,389

25,627,935

*) Accounts to be distributed according to the nature of the elements concerned
**) Debit balances of the respective accounts
***) Credit balances of the respective accounts
01) - The amounts at this row and taken from the accounts 2675 to 2679 are the debts from the financial leasing contracts and from other assimilated
contracts, as well as other permanent debts, due in less than 12 months
02) It will be filled in by entities for which the provisions of Order of the minister of public finances and of the delegated minister for budget no. 668/2014 for
the approval of the mentions regarding the preparation and updating of the centralized inventory of movable goods privately owned by the state and of the
rights in rem supposed to inventory, with subsequent changes and amendments are applied
DIRECTOR

Drawn up,

Full name
Palamadai Vijay
Signature

Full name
Nastase Catalin
Position
11 - Economic Manager
Signature
VALIDATED FORM

The undersigned GHEORGHE AURORA, authorized translator for German and English languages based on the authorization no. 4106/2000, issued
by the Ministry of Justice from Romania, hereby certify the accuracy of the translation from the Romanian language into English language, that the
text was fully translated, without omissions and that
through the translation the document was not changed in the content and meaning
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Translation from Romanian language
F20

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
as of December 31st, 2020
Lei

Code 20
Index name
(calculation formulas refer to row no. in column B)
A
1. Net turnover (rows 02+03-04+06)
Sold production (acc. 701+702+703+704+705+706+708)
Incomes from sales of commodities (acc. 707)
Commercial discounts granted (acc. 709)
Incomes from interests registered by entities deleted from the General Register,
which still have leasing agreements in execution (acc. 766*)
Incomes from operating subsidies corresponding to the net turnover (acc. 7411)
2. Incomes pertaining to pending production costs (acc. 711+712)
Balance C
Balance D
3. Incomes from production of intangible and tangible assets (acc. 721+722)
4. Incomes from reassessment of tangible assets (acc. 755)
5. Incomes from production of real estate investments (acc. 725)
6. Incomes from operation subsidies (acc. 7412+7413+7414+7415+7416+
7417+7419)
7. Other operating incomes (acc. 751+758+7815)
'- out of which, incomes from the negative goodwill (acc. 7815)
'- out of which, incomes from subsidies for investments (acc. 7584)
OPERATING INCOMES – TOTAL (rows 01+07-08+09+10+11+12+13)
8.a) Expenses with raw materials and consumable materials (acc. 601+602)
Other material expenses (acc. 603+604+606+608)
b) Other external expenses (with energy and water) (acc. 605)
c) Expenses regarding commodities (acc. 607)
Commercial discounts received (acc. 609)
9. Expenses with the staff (rows 23+24)
a) Salaries and allowances (acc. 641+642+643+644)
b) Expenses with social insurance and security (acc. 645+646)
10.a) Value adjustments regarding tangible and intangible assets (rows 26-27)
a.1) Expenses (acc. 6811+6813+6817+from acc. 6818)
a.2) Incomes (acc. 7813+from acc. 7818)
b) Adjustment of the value of circulating assets (rows 29-30)
b.1) Expenses (acc. 654+6814+from acc. 6818)
b.2) Incomes (acc. 754+7814+from acc. 7818)
11. Other operating expenses (rows 32 to 37)
11.1 Expenses regarding external provided services (acc. 611+612+613+
614+615+621+622+623+624+625+626+627+628)
11.2 Expenses with other taxes, charges and assimilated payments; expenses
representing transfers and contributions due based on special regulations
(acc. 635+6586*)
11.3 Expenses with environment protection (acc. 652)
11.4 Expenses with reassessment of tangible assets (acc. 655)
11.5 Expenses for calamities and other similar events (acc. 6587)
11.6 Other expenses (acc. 651+6581+6582+6583+6584+6588)
Expenses with interests registered by entities deleted from the General Register,
which still have leasing agreements in execution (acc. 666*)
Adjustments regarding reserves (rows 40-41 )
Expenses (acc. 6812)
Incomes (acc. 7812)
OPERATING EXPENSES – TOTAL (rows 17 to 20-21+22+25+28+31+39 )
OPERATING RESULT
– Profit (rows 16-42)
– Loss (rows 42-16)

Row no.
OMF no.
58/2021

Financial year

01
02
03
04

Row
no.
B
01
02
03
04

05

05
06

06
07
08
09
10

07
08
09
10
11

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

31

32

18,249,358

20,242,398

32
33
34
35
36

33
34
35
36
37

1,941,675

1,472,539

17,635

3,607,003

37
38
39
40

38
39
40
41
42

8,592
2,772,194
2,763,602
33,706,017

388,231
3,119,522
2,731,291
124,554,307

41
42

43
44

4,098,865
0

7,065,481
0

2019
1
37,801,263
37,801,263
0
0

2020
2
126,433,280
38,782,768
110,113,462
22,462,950

3,619

5,186,508

37,804,882
568,402
207,224
27,047
0

131,619,788
487,042
198,067
22,970
83,773,517

12,617,332
12,199,114
418,218
68,752
68,752

14,266,854
13,796,851
470,003
95,686
95,686

0

0

20,208,668

25,321,940
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12. Incomes from shares (acc. 7611+7612+7613)
- out of which, incomes from affiliated entities
13. Incomes from interests (acc. 766*)
- out of which, incomes from affiliated entities
14. Incomes from operation subsidies for owed interest (acc. 7418)
15. Other financial incomes (acc. 762+764+765+767+768+7615)
- out of which, incomes from other financial assets (acc. 7615)
FINANCIAL INCOMES – TOTAL (rows 45+47+49+50)
16. Value adjustment of permanent assets and of financial investments owned as
circulating assets (rows 54-55)
- Expenses (acc. 686)
- Incomes (acc. 786)
17. Expenses regarding interests (acc. 666*)
- out of which, expenses in relation to affiliated entities
18. Other financial expenses (acc. 663+664+665+667+668)
FINANCIAL EXPENSES – TOTAL (rows 53+56+58 )
FINANCIAL RESULT
- Profit (rows 52-59)
- Loss (rows 59-52)
TOTAL INCOMES (rows 16+52)
TOTAL EXPENSES (rows 42+59)
19. GROSS RESULT
- Profit (rows 62-63)
- Loss (rows 63-62)
20. PROFIT TAX (acc. 691)
21. Tax specific for certain activities (acc. 695)
22. Other taxes that do not appear above (acc. 698)
23. NET RESULT OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Profit (rows 64-65-66-67-68)
Loss (rows 65+66+67+68-64)

43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

1,046
0
1,046

26,711
0
26,711

51
52
53
54
55
56
57

53
54
55
56
57
58
59

4,835
4,835

35,170
35,170

58
59
60
61

60
61
62
63

0
3,789
37,805,928
33,710,852

0
8,459
131,646,499
124,589,477

62
63
64
65
66

64
65
66
67
68

4,095,076
0
914,712

7,057,022
0
1,197,476

67
68

69
70

3,180,364
0

5,859,546
0

*) Accounts to be distributed according to the nature of the elements concerned
In row 22 (according to OMF 58/2021) - also the rights of collaboartors will be included, set according to the labor legislation, taken from
the debit side of the account 621 "Expenses with collaborators", analytic "Collaborators physical persons"
In row 32 (according to OMF 58/2021) - in acc. 6586 "Expenses representing transfers and contributions due based on special laws",
expenses representing transfers and contributions due based on special laws are shown, others than those provided in the Tax Code.
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Translation from Romanian language
In excerpt

F30

INFORMATION
as of December 31st, 2021
Code 30

(calculation formulas refer to row no. in column B)

I. Information regarding the result

Lei

Row no.
OMF no.
58/2021

Row

No. of entities

B
01
02
03

1

01
02
03

A
Entities with profit
Entities with loss
Entities with no profit or loss

II. Information regarding outstanding payments
04
05
06
07
08

Row
B
04
05
06
07
08

09

09

10
11
12
13
14

10
11
12
13
14

Outstanding obligations to the special funds and other funds
Outstanding obligations to other creditors
Overdue taxes, contributions and fees to the state budget, out
of which:

15
16

15
16

17

- work insurance contribution
Overdue taxes to the local budget

18
19

17
17a
(301)
18

20

Row
B
19

21

20

A
Outstanding payments - total (row 05+09+15 to 17+18):
Delayed suppliers - total (row 06 to 08)
- over 30 days
- over 90 days
- over 1 year
Outstanding obligations to the social security
budget - Total (row 10 to 14)
- contribution to state social securities, owed by employers,
employees and other similar persons
- contributions to the health social security fund
- contribution for additional pension
- contribution to unemployment budget
- other social debts

III. Average number of employees
A
Average number of employees
Actual no. of employees at the end of the period of time
(Dec. 31)

IV. Royalty and interest payments during reporting period, cashed in subsidies and
outstanding receivables
…

1

Total,
out of which:
1=2+3
0
0

0

Amounts
2
5,859,546

For
investment
activity
3

For current
activity
2
0
0

0
0

0

0

Dec. 31. 2019 Dec. 31, 2020
1
2
78
83
95

104

Row

Amount (Lei)

812

V. Food vouchers
Value of the food vouchers granted to employees

40

Value of the food vouchers granted to other categories of beneficiaries, other than the employees

41

Row

Dec. 31. 2019

Dec. 31, 2020

Row
45

Dec. 31. 2019

Dec. 31, 2020

50

Dec. 31. 2019

Dec. 31, 2020

VI. Expenses for research-development activity **)
…
VII. Innovation expenses ***)
Innovation expenses

58

Row
…
48

85,708

91,751

65

54

85,708

91,751

66

55

85,708

91,751

Commercial receivables, advances paid to suppliers and other
similar accounts, in gross amounts (acc. 4091
+4092+411+413+418), out of which:

68

57

19,269,862

49,798,963

- commercial receivables in relation to non-affiliated nonresident entities, advances for acquisitions of inventories and
for services delivered to non-affiliated non-resident suppliers
and other assimilated accounts, in gross amounts in relation to
non-resident non-affiliates (from acc. 4091 + from acc. 4092 +
from acc. 411 + from acc. 413 + from acc. 418)

69

58

1,796

12,843,416

70

58a
(308)

19,268,066

36,955,547

Receivables in connection to social security budget and state
budget (from acc. 431+436+437+4382+441+ 4424+4428+444 +
445 + 446 + 447 + 4482) (row 62 to 66)

73

61

1,948,508

7,409,959

- receivables in connection to the budget of social security
(acc. 431+437+4382)

74

62

- tax receivables in connection to the state budget (acc.
436+441+4424+4428+444+446)

75

63
64
65

1,620,732

7,034,036

78

66
…

327,776

375,923

83

71
…

270,875

283,202

VIII. Other information
…
Financial assets, gross amounts (row 49+54)
…
Long-term receivables, gross amounts (row 55+56)
'- long-term receivables in Lei and expressed in Lei, the
settlement of which is made based on the exchange rate of
a foreign currency (from acc. 267)
…

- commercial receivables in relation to the affiliated non-resident
entities, advances for acquisitions of inventories and for
services delivered to affiliated non-resident suppliers and other
assimilated accounts, in gross amounts in relation to nonresident affiliates (from acc. 4091 + from acc. 4092 + from acc.
411 + from acc. 413 + from acc. 418)
…

- subsidies to cash in (acc. 445)

76

- special funds - fees and assimilated payments

77

- other receivables in connection to the state budget (acc.
4482)
Other receivables (acc. 453+456+4582+461+471+473+4662)
(row 72 to 74)
…

Row
37
37a
(302)

Amount (Lei)
0
0

813

- other receivables connected to physical persons and
legal entities, other than recivables connected to public
institutions (state institutions) (from acc. 461 + from acc.
471 + from acc. 473 + 4662)

Current bank accounts in Lei and foreign currency (row 88+90)
- in Lei (acc. 5121) out of which:
…
'- in foreign currency (acc. 5124) out of which
Debts (row 94+99+102+103+106+108+110+111+
116+119+122+128)

- commercial debts in relation to affiliated non-resident entities,
advances received from affiliated non-resident clients and other
assimilated accounts, in gross amounts in relation to affiliated
non-residents (from acc. 401 + from acc. 403 + from acc. 404 +
from acc. 405 + from acc. 408 + from acc. 419)
…
Debts related to the social security budget and state budget
(acc. 431+436+437+4381+441+4423+4428+444+446+
447+4481) (row 112 to 115)
- debts related to the social security budget (acc. 431+437
+4381)
- tax debts related to the state budget (acc. 436+441+
4423+4428+444+446)
'- special funds - fees and assimilated payments (acc. 447)
…
Subscribed paid in capital (acc. 1012), out of which:
…
- subscribed capital, paid in by non-residents (from acc. 1012)
Patents and licenses (from acc. 205)
…
IX. Information regarding expenses with collaborators
A
Expenses with collaborators (acc. 621)

85

73
…

270,875

283,202

101
102

87
88
…
90

772,134
769,496

4,760,274
2,561,043

2,638

2,199,231

95
…

1,708,201

71,412,815

104

109

125

109a
(309)
…

127

111

648,698

922,426

128

112

141,501

-31,085

129

113
114
…
130
…

503,817
3,380

949,553
3,958

1,700,000

1,700,000

1,700,000
13,667

1,700,000
22,514

130
149

153
154

155

X. Information regarding the goods from the
public state domain
A
no figures are recorded
XI. Information regarding state owned assets undergoing
inventory according to. OMFP no. 668/2014
A
Net accounting value of the assets 6)

159

134
135
…

68,566,707

Row
B
136

Dec. 31. 2019
1

Dec. 31, 2020
2

Row
B

Dec. 31. 2019
1

Dec. 31, 2020
2

Row
B
140

Dec. 31. 2019
1
0

Dec. 31, 2020
2
0

0

0

814

XII. Paid in share capital

Row
B

A
Paid in share capital (acc. 1012) 7), (row
142+145+149+150+151+152)

160

- held by companies with private capital
- held by physical persons

169
170

A
XIII. Dividends/payingins belonging to the state or
local budget, to be allocated from the year profit by the
national companies, companies and autonomous
administrations
no figures are recorded

141
…
150
151
Row
B

Dec. 31. 2019
Amount (Lei)
% 7)
Column 1
Column 2
1,700,000
1,699,990
10

X

1,700,000
100.00
0.00

Amounts
2019

2020

0

0

XIV. Dividends/payingins for the state or
local budget, transferred within the reporting period
of time from the profit of the national companies,
companies and autonomous administrations, out of which
no figures are recorded
XV. Dividends distributed to shareholders from profit carried
forward
XVI. Temporary distributions of dividends according to Law
no. 163/2018
XVII. Receivables taken by assignment from legal
entities*****)
no figures are recorded

XVIII. Incomes obtained from agricultural activities******)
no figures are recorded

2019

2020

2019

2020
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Dec. 31, 2020
Amount (Lei)
% 7)
Column 3
Column 4

1,699,990
10

X
100.00
0.00
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*) Subsidies for stimulating the employment (transfers from the state budget to employer) - it represents the amounts
granted to employers for paying graduates of education institutions, for stimulating unemployed persons employed before
the end of the unemployment period, for stimulating employers employing for undetermined period of time unemployed persons over 45 years old, unemployed persons
supporting alone a family or unemployed persons who within 3 years since employment beginn are fulfilling the conditions for requesting partial early retirement or regular
retirement, or for other situations stipulated in the legislation regarding the system of unemployment insurance and the stimulation of employment.
**) Expenses made for research-development activity, and fundamental research, applicative research, technological development and innovation respectively, set according to
the provisions of the Government Ordinance no. 57/2002 regarding scientific research and technological development, approved with modifications and completions through the
law no. 324/2003 with subsequent changes and amendments. The expenses will be recorded according to the (EU) Regulation for applying no. 996/2012 of the Commission
from Oct. 26, 2012 for establishing the norms for applying the Decision no. 1.608/2003.EC of the European Parliament and Council regarding statistics in the field of science
and technology, published in the Official Journal of the european Union, series L, no. 299/Oct. 27, 2012.
***) Expenses made for innovation according to the (EU) Regulation for applying no. 996/2012 of the Commission from Oct. 26, 2012 for establishing the norms for applying the
Decision no. 1.608/2003.EC of the European Parliament and Council regarding statistics in the field of science and technology, published in the Official Journal of the european
Union, series L, no. 299/Oct. 27, 2012.
****) In the category of economic agents, the entities regulated and supervised by the National Bank of Romania, the Authority for Financial SUpervision respectively, the
companies re-classified in the sector of public aministration and the institutions without lucrative purpose in the service of population households will not be included.
*****) For receivables taken over by assignment from legal entities the nominal value and the aquisition cost will be recorded. For the statute of "affiliated legal entities" the
provisions of art. 7 section 26 letter c) of the Law no. 2272015 regarding the Tax Code, with subsequent changes and amendments will be considered.
******) According to art. 11 from the (EU) Delegated Regulation no. 639/2014 of the Commission from Mrch 11, 2014 for completing the (EU) Regulation no. 1307/2013 of the
European Parliament and Council for establishing norms regarding direct payments granted to farmers through supporting schemes within the common agriculatural policy and
for modification of Annex X to the mentioned regulation, "(1) ... incomes obtained from agricultural activities are incomes obtained by a farmer from his agricultural activity within
the meaning of art. 4 paragraph (1) letter c) of the mentioned regulation ((EU) R 1307/2013 within his farm, including the support from the Union from the European agricultural
guarantee Fund (FEGA) and from the European agricultural fund for rural development (FEADR), as well as any national support granted for agricultural activities, except for
direct national complement payments based on art. 18 and 19 from the (EU) Regulation no. 1307/2013.
Incomes obtained from preocessing agricultural produce within the meaning of art. 4 paragraph (1) letter d) of the (EU) Regulation no. 1307/2013 of the farm are considered to
be incomes from agricultural activities provided that the processed produces remain the property of the farmer and such processing results in a different agricultural product
within the meaning of art. 4 paragraph (1) letter d) from the (EU) Regulation no. 1307/2013.
Any other incomes are considered incomes from non-agricultural activities.
(2) Within the meaning of paragraph (1), "ïncomes" means gross incomes, before deduction of the costs and pertaining taxes ..."
1) The rents paid for occupied plots will be included (agricultural crops, grass land, meadows, etc.) and pertaining to
commercial spaces (terraces, etc.) belonging to private owners or units of the public administration, including rents for
using waters for recreational or other (fishing, etc.) purposes
2) The value in row "Debts with affiliated non-resident entities (from acc. 451), out of which" is NOT calculated by adding the values in rows "with initial maturity date over one
year" and "commercial debts with non-resident affiliated entities regardless of maturity date (from acc. 451)"
3) In the category of "Other debts linked to physical persons and legal entities other than debts in connection to public
institutions (state institutions)" the subsidies pertaining to the incomes in the balance of acc. 472 will not be recorded.
4) Securities granting property rights over companies, which are negotiable and traded according to the law.
5) Securities granting property rights over companies, which are not and traded.
6) To be filled in by economic agents to whom the provisions of the Order of the minister of public finances and of the delegated minister for budget no. 668/2014 are applied,
for approving the mentions regarding the preparation and updating of the centralized inventory of immovable assets privately owned by the state and of rights in rem which are
inventorized, with subsequent changes and admendments.
7) In section "XII Paid in capital" in row 155-165 column 2 and 4, the entities will record the percentage cooresponding to the capital held from the total paid in capital recorded in
row 154.
8) In this row are shown dividends distributed according to Law no. 163/2018 for the change and amendment of Law 82/1991, the change and amendment of the company's law
no. 31/1990 and the change of law no. 1/2005 regarding the organisation and operation of cooperation. No dividends are recorded, whic are shown in row 166.

The undersigned GHEORGHE AURORA, authorized translator for German and English languages based on the authorization no. 4106/2000,
issued by the Ministry of Justice from Romania, hereby certify the accuracy of the translation from the Romanian language into English language,
that the text was fully translated, without omissions and that through the translation the document was not changed in the content and meaning.
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SITUATION OF THE FIXED ASSETS

F40

as of 31st of December 2020

Code 40

lei

Gross values
Reductions

Permanent assets
A

Row
B

Initial
balance
1

Increases
2

out of which,
fragmentations
and cassations

Total
3

4

Final
balance
(column
5=1+2-3)
5

I. Intangible permanent assets
Incorporation and development expenses
Other permanent assets
Advances and current intangible
permanent assets in process
Intangible assets for exploration and
assessment of mineral resources
TOTAL (row 01 to 04)
II. Tangible permanent assets
Real estate
Buildings
Technical installations and machines
Other installations, equipment and
furniture
Real estate investments
Tangible assets for exploration and
assessment of mineral resources
Biologic productive assets
Tangible assets in execution
real estate investments in execution
Advances granted for tangible
permanent assets
TOTAL (row 06 to 15)
III. Financial permanent assets
PERMANENT ASSETS - TOTAL
(row 05+16+17)

01
02

13,667

X
X

8,847

X

03

0

X

04
05

13,667

06
07
08

78,028
305,282

246,381

83,646

40,122

09
10

0
22,514

8,847

0

0
22,514

X
X

0
78,028
551,663
123,768
0

11
12
13
14

0
0
0
0

15
16
17

466,956
85,708

286,503
6,043

18

566,331

301,393

0
0

0

X

867,724

SITUATION OF THE AMORTIZATION OF THE PERMANENT ASSETS
Lei

Permanent assets

Row

Initial
balance

A

B

6

Amortization
of permanent Amortization at
Amorti-zation assets no
year end
during the
longer
(column
year
registered
9 = 6+7-8)

7

8

9

I. Intangible permanent assets
Incorporation and development expenses
Other permanent assets
Intangible assets for exploration and
assessment of mineral resources
TOTAL (row 19+20+21)
II. Tangible permanent assets
Real estate
Buildings
Technical installations and machines

19
20

8,409

3,987

21
22

8,409

3,987

23
24
25

78,028
184,538

80,677

0
753,459
91,751

0
12,396
0

0
12,396
0
78,028
265,215

817

Other installations, equipment and
furniture
Real estate investments
Tangible assets for exploration and
assessment of mineral resources
Biologic productive assets
TOTAL (row 23 to 29)
AMORTIZATION - TOTAL
(row 22+30)

26
27

42,972

11,022

53,994
0

28
29
30

305,538

91,699

0

0
0
397,237

31

313,947

95,686

0

409,633

SITUATION OF THE PROVISIONS FOR DEPRECIATION
no recorded figures
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Ernst & Young Ltd
Aeschengraben 27
P.O. Box
CH-4002 Basel

Phone:
+41 58 286 86 86
Fax:
+41 58 286 86 00
www.ey.com/ch

To the General Meeting of
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA, Basel

Basel, 12 May 2021

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements
As statutory auditor, we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories SA, Basel, which comprise the balance sheet, income statement and notes, for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
Board of Directors’ responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board
of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 comply with Swiss law
and the company’s articles of incorporation.
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2

Report on other legal requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our
independence.
In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm
that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.
We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and
the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you
be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Daniel Jauslin
(Qualified
Signature)
Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Kevin Hörler
(Qualified
Signature)
Licensed audit expert

Enclosures
► Financial statements (balance sheet, income statement and notes)
► Proposed appropriation of available earnings
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Ltd, Basel

Balance Sheet as of

Notes

Curr
ASSETS

31st Dec 2020

31st Dec 2019

31st Dec 2020

31st Dec 2019

USD

USD

CHF

CHF

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable
from third parties
from holders of participations and governing bodies
from entities in which the entity holds a participation
Other short-term receivables
from third parties
from entities in which the entity holds a participation
Inventories and non-invoiced services
Prepaid expenses and accrued income

2.1

1'308'000

758'784

1'156'199

734'787

20'021'381

31'891'332

17'697'780

139'269'453

81'288'979

123'106'397

30'882'737
78'718'133

3'689'093
11'031'326
13'211'607
586'900

4'519'710
13'116'279
22'457'463
281'941

3'260'952
9'751'074
11'678'321
518'787

4'376'770
12'701'463
21'747'223
273'025

189'117'760

154'414'488

167'169'510

149'530'976

183'425
402'682'748
29'000'000
54'526
148'883'924

183'200
398'972'010
41'832
227'816'803

162'137
355'948'999
25'634'376
48'198
131'605'051

177'406
386'354'121
40'509
220'611'869

580'804'623

626'913'846

513'398'761

607'087'068

769'922'383

781'328'334

680'568'271

756'618'044

40'381'968
42'379'278
3'753'890
853'341
-

18'896'723
51'675'682
7'261'873
2'651'596
16'300'000

35'695'398
37'460'909
3'318'229
754'306
-

18'299'095
50'041'386
7'032'209
2'567'736
15'784'496

1'482'246
973'954
84'198'669
28'374'664

1'953'943
256'809
41'816'935
32'328'380

1'310'222
860'921
74'426'908
25'081'614

1'892'148
248'687
40'494'432
31'305'963

202'398'010

173'141'940

178'908'507

167'666'153

309'021'522

309'021'522

305'640'410

305'640'410

127'077'219

127'077'219

123'911'286

123'911'286

17'567'802

17'567'802

17'130'000

17'130'000

154'519'850
(6'830'980)
(33'831'040)
-

416'088'805
(261'568'955)
-

177'416'962
(6'500'000)
(29'904'744)
(86'034'149)

430'713'537
(253'296'575)
(35'146'767)

567'524'373

608'186'394

501'659'765

588'951'891

769'922'383

781'328'334

680'568'271

756'618'044

Non-current assets
Financial Assets
Investments
Other Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets

1.5
2.4
2.2

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Short-term liabilities
Trade accounts payable
to third parties
to holders of participations and governing bodies
to entities in which the entity holds a participation
to other group companies
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Other short-term liabilities
to third parties
to holders of participations and governing bodies
to entities in which the entity holds a participation
Accrued expenses and deferred income

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Legal capital reserves
Reserves from capital contributions
Legal retained earnings
General legal retained earnings
Available earnings
Retained earning brought forward
Dividend Paid on Preference Share
Profit or loss for the year
Foreign exchange translation difference

2.3
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Ltd, Basel

Income statement

Notes

2020

2019

2020

2019

USD

USD

CHF

CHF

Revenue from sale of goods and services
Other operating income

338'891'309
761

227'743'133
273

299'560'939
673

220'540'528
265

Total operating income

338'892'070

227'743'406

299'561'612

220'540'793

Raw materials and supplies
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
R&D Expenses
Depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Amortization on intangible assets
2.2

(201'104'914)
(5'276'283)
(25'970'533)
(36'583'878)
(2'612)
(104'582'879)

(157'934'597)
(4'585'367)
(33'314'353)
(37'145'611)
(6'044)
(243'469'516)

(177'765'482)
(4'663'939)
(22'956'497)
(32'338'099)
(2'309)
(92'445'408)

(152'939'758)
(4'440'350)
(32'260'754)
(35'970'843)
(5'852)
(235'769'549)

Total operating expenses

(373'521'099)

(476'455'487)

(330'171'734)

(461'387'106)

(34'629'029)

(248'712'081)

(30'610'122)

(240'846'313)

2'520'752
(1'396'975)

1'475'367
(14'245'216)

2'228'204
(1'234'848)

1'428'707
(13'794'697)

(33'505'252)

(261'481'930)

(29'616'766)

(253'212'303)

(325'788)

(87'025)

(287'978)

(84'273)

(33'831'040)

(261'568'955)

(29'904'744)

(253'296'575)

Operating result
Financial income
Financial expenses
Profit or (loss) for the year before taxes
Direct taxes
Profit or (loss) for the year
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Notes

1

Principles

1.1 General aspects
These financial statements were prepared according to the provisions of the Swiss Law on Accounting and Financial Reporting (32nd title of the
Swiss Code of Obligations). Where not prescribed by law, the significant accounting and valuation principles applied are described below. It
should be noted that to ensure the company’s going concern, the company’s financial statements may be influenced by the creation and release of
hidden reserves.

1.2 Inventories and non-invoiced services
Inventories and non-invoiced services are recorded at acquisition or manufacturing costs: If the net realizable value at the balance sheet date is
lower than acquisition or manufacturing costs, net realizable values are used. Acquisition costs are calculated using the weighted average cost
method, manufacturing costs using standard costs.
1.3 Securities and financial assets
Securities with a short-term holding period are valued at their quoted market price as at the balance-sheet date. A valuation adjustment reserve
has not been accounted for. Financial assets include securities with a long-term holding period that have no quoted market price or no other
observable market price. Financial assets are valued at their acquisition cost adjusted for impairment losses.
1.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is valued at acquisition or manufacturing costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. With
the exception of land, PPE is depreciated using the straightline method. As soon as there are indicators that book values may be overstated, these
are reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted.
1.5 Investments
Investments are held at historical cost. The Company reviews the carrying amount of these investments annually, and if events and circumstances
suggest that this amount may not be recoverable, an impairment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

1.6 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are capitalized if they meet the following conditions cumulatively at the date of recognition:
• the intangible assets are identifiable and controlled by the entity;
• the intangible assets will generate a measurable benefit for the entity for more than one year;
• the expenses incurred in the creation of the intangible assets can be separately recognized and measured;
• it is likely that the resources required to complete and market or use the intangible assets for the entity’s own purposes are available or will be
made available.
Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method. As soon there are indicators that book values may be overstated, these are
reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted.
1.7 Revenue from sale of goods and services
Sales are recognized when risks and rewards are transferred to the client or a service has been provided. Normally, this is the case upon delivery
of the goods.
1.8 Leases
Leasing and rental contracts are recognized based on legal ownership. Therefore, any leasing or rental expenses are recognized as expenses in the
period they are incurred; however, the leased or rented objects themselves are not recognized in the balance sheet.
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Notes

2

Disclosure on balance sheet and income statement items

Dec 2020

Dec 2020

Dec 2019

Dec 2019

USD

CHF

USD

CHF

13'211'607
-

11'678'321
-

20'166'775
2'290'688

19'528'981
2'218'243

13'211'607

11'678'321

22'457'463

21'747'224

80'105'640
68'778'284

70'808'900
60'796'152

96'588'521
131'228'282

93'533'813
127'078'056

148'883'924

131'605'052

2.1 Inventories and non-invoiced services
Raw materials
Finished goods

2.2 Intangible Assets
Product related Intangibles
Others (in process)

227'816'803

\

220'611'869

During the year, the Company had additions of USD 25.7m and the Company amortised in the normal course of business USD 22.4m.
Consequent to adverse market conditions with respect to certain of Company's products, the company recognised an impairment charge of USD
82.2m towards relevant product intangibles

2.3 Share capital and reserves from capital contributions
As at 31st Dec 2021, the share capital consists of 105,640,410 registered shares at a par value of CHF 1.00 each.
During previous period, the Company issued a 3.25% Preference share capital of CHF 200,000,000 (2,000,000 shares at CHF 100) to Dr.
Reddys Laboratories Limited with a maturity date of 31st March 2022. The same is recognised in the books at historical cost of date of
transaction on 26th Nov 2019. The preference shares have a forward cover contract expiring on 20th March 2022 with currency rate of 1.06055
(CHF/USD). Any loss or gain on such forward contract will be recognized to profit and loss account on the date of maturity.

2.4 Other Assets
Dr.Reddy's Laboratories S.A has invested an amount of USD 29m in fixed deposits with State Bank of India and maturity date of 29th March
2022.
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0.883944

Notes
2.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Company

Domicile

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc.*

United States of America

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories EU

United Kingdom

Dr. Reddy's New Zealand Ltd

New Zealand

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories, Romania SRL

Romania

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Venezuela CA

Venezuela CA

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Ukraine LLC

Ukraine LLC

Reddy Netherlands BV

The Netherlands

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories New York, Inc*

United States of America

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Canada Inc

Canada

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Proprietary Ltd

Capital
31.12.2020
31.12.2020
USD
CHF

Capital
31.12.2019
31.12.2019
USD
CHF

Share in Capital and Voting
31.12.2020
31.12.2019

234'524'279

207'306'330

188'040'326

182'093'363

100%

100%

19'093'998

16'878'025

19'093'998

18'490'131

100%

100%

1

1

1

1

100%

100%

551'620

487'601

551'620

534'174

99.99%

99.99%

1

1

1

1

100%

100%

1'360'503

1'202'608

1'360'503

1'317'475

99.99%

99.99%

51'476'837

45'502'642

51'476'837

49'848'831

100%

100%

46'483'953

45'013'852

0%

90%

-

-

3'098'868

2'739'226

3'098'868

3'000'863

100%

100%

South Africa

15'694'784

13'873'310

15'694'784

15'198'420

100%

100%

OOO Dr. Reddy's Laboratories

Russia

42'501'426

37'568'881

42'501'426

41'157'276

99.99%

99.99%

Reddy Holdings GmbH

Germany

33'936

29'998

33'936

32'863

100%

100%

Lacock Holdings Ltd

Cyprus

7'790'873

6'886'696

6'150'473

5'955'959

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (Australia) Pty
Limited

Australia

5'526'976

4'885'537

5'526'976

5'352'179

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SAS

Columbia

1'488'236

1'315'518

1'488'236

1'441'169

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Japan, KK

Japan

817'431

722'563

817'431

791'579

100%

100%

Reddy Pharma SAS

France

5'705'428

5'043'279

5'705'428

5'524'988

100%

100%

1'217'497

1'076'199

1'217'497

1'178'992

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Kazakhstan Limited
Kazaksthan
Liability
Dr. Reddy’s (WUXI) Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd

China

1

1

1

1

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Chile SPA.

Chile

2'000'000

1'767'888

1'000'000

968'374

100%

100%

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories Malaysia SD

Malaysia

750'000

662'958

750'000

726'281

100%

100%

Reddy Pharma Iberia S.A

Spain

6'891'192

6'091'428

6'891'192

6'673'251

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Philippine

Philippine

200'000

176'789

200'000

193'675

99.99%

99.99%

Dr. Reddy’s Taiwan Ltd

Taiwan

477'332

421'935

406'984

394'112

100%

100%

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand)

Thailand

481'540

425'654

481'540

466'311

99.99%

99.99%

Dr. Reddy's (Beijing) Pharmaceuticals

China

999'990

883'935

100%

0.00%

402'682'748

355'948'999

398'972'010

386'354'121

0

0

-0

-0

Total investments in subsidiaries

-

-

On 4 May 2020 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA has invested an amount of EUR 1.5m (USD 1.64m) in Lacock Holdings limited towards 100% shares.
On 17 June 2020 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA has invested an amount of USD 1m in Dr.Reddys Laboratories Chile SPA towards 100% shares.
On 16 September 2020 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA has invested an amount of TWD 2,000,000 (USD 70,348) in Dr. Reddy's Laboratories, Taiwan Ltd towards 100% of shares.

* On 26 Oct 2020 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA has an contribution agreement with Dr. Reddys Laboratories Inc for transfering the investment in Dr.Reddys laboratories New york
to Dr.Reddys Laboroties Inc. Consequently USD 46,483,953 investment tranferred towards 100% shares and grouped in Dr.Reddys Laboratories Inc.
On 12 November 2020 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA has invested an amount of USD 999,990 in newly incorporated Dr.Reddys Beijing Pharmaceuticals, China towards 100% of
shares.
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3

Other information

3.1 Full-time equivalents
The annual average number of full-time equivalents for the reporting year, as well as the previous year, did not exceed 50.

3.2 Audit Fees

Audit services

Dec 2020

Dec 2020

Dec 2019

Dec 2019

USD
54'958

CHF
48'580

USD
54'778

CHF
47'468

54'958

48'580

54'778

47'468

3.3 Relevant currency for the business
In accordance with Article 958a para. 4 CO the company converted the balance sheet, income statements and financials within the notes for
presentation purposes from the relevant currency for the business into the presentation currency. The general foreign currency rate applied was
0.883944 USD/CHF. The equity was translated with a historical foreign currency rate of 0.97508 USD/CHF, with new preference shares at
0.996602. The resulting translation difference is presented in the retained earnings.
3.4 Guarantees
In the ordinary course of business, the Company gives credit or performance guarantees to Banks or third parties. Based on the existing
guarantee agreements payments by Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Ltd. would be triggered in case the financial obligations could not be fulfilled. The
nominal amount outstanding at 31st December 2020 was USD 6m (CHF 5.3m) (2019: USD 5.9m (CHF 5.7m)).

3.5 Subsequent event
There were no subsequent events after 31 December 2020 that require amendment or disclosure in these financial statements.
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Proposed Appropriation of Available Earnings

Dec 2020

Dec 2019

Dec 2020

Dec 2019

USD

USD

CHF

CHF

Retained earnings brought forward
Profit or (loss) for the year
DRL SA International Merger profit/(Loss)
Dividend payout
Foreign exchange translation difference

154'519'849
(33'831'040)
(6'830'980)

416'228'905
(261'568'955)
(140'101)
-

177'416'962
(29'904'744)
(6'500'000)
(86'034'149)

430'713'537
(253'296'575)
(135'670)
(35'011'097)

Available earnings

113'857'829

154'519'849

54'978'068

142'270'195

7'353'407
106'504'422

6'712'283
147'807'567

6'500'000
48'478'068

6'500'000
135'770'195

113'857'829

154'519'849

54'978'068

142'270'195

The Board of Directors proposes to the General
Meeting of Shareholders the following appropriation
of available earnings:
Dividend on preference shares
To be carried forward
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Report of Statutory Auditor

To the shareholder of
Dr. Reddy´s Laboratories S.A.S.
Opinion

Servicios de Auditoría y
Consultoría de Negocios
S.A.S.
NIT 800.174.750-4
Calle 102A No. 47A – 09
Bogotá D.C. Colombia
T +57 1 705 9000
F +57 1 622 6614
E info@co.gt.com

I have audited the financial statements of Dr. Reddy´s Laboratories S.A.S. (the “Company”), which
includes the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the corresponding
statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows, for the years ended on these date,
together with their respective notes, which include the summary of significant accounting policies.
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to in the preceding paragraph, faithfully taken from
the accounting records and attached to this report, fairly present, in all aspects of material importance,
the financial position of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories S.A.S. as of December 31, 2020, as well as the
results of its operations and its cash flows corresponding to the year ended on that date, in conformity
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (Group 2 - IFRS SMEs).
Basis of Opinion
I have conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. My
responsibility under those standards is described below in the section of my report entitled
Responsibilities of the Statutory Auditor in connection with the audit of the financial statements.
I am independent from the Company and have complied with the ethical requirements and other
responsibilities applicable in Colombia, for the audit of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained provides a sufficient and appropriate basis for the
opinion expressed above.
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Responsibilities of the Company's Management and those charged with
governance in relation to the financial statements
The Company's Management is responsible for: a) Preparing and presenting the accompanying
financial statements and their explanatory notes, in accordance with the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards (Group 2 - IFRS SMEs); b) Overseeing the financial reporting process;
c)
Assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, making appropriate disclosures and
using the going concern accounting principle, except if the Company's shareholders intend to
liquidate the Company or cease operations, or there is no other realistic alternative; and e) Designing,
implementing and maintaining the relevant internal control for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements, so that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error,
as well as, to select and apply appropriate accounting policies and establish accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Responsibilities of the Statutory Auditor in connection with the audit of the
financial statements
My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that
includes my opinion. The concept of reasonable assurance represents a high degree of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit, conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, I applied my professional
judgment and maintained an attitude of professional skepticism throughout the audit. Also:
a). I Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; I designed and applied audit procedures to respond to those
risks; and obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than in the case of a
material misstatement due to error, as fraud can involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, intentionally misstatements, or the circumvention of internal control.
b). I evaluated the adequacy of the accounting policies applied and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates and the corresponding information disclosed by the Management.
c).

I concluded on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern
accounting principle and, based on the audit evidence obtained, I concluded on whether or not
there is a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubts
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If I had concluded that a material
uncertainty exists, I would have been required to draw attention in my report to the
corresponding information disclosed in the financial statements or, whether or not such
disclosures were adequate to express my corresponding opinion.

d). My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to be a going concern.
I communicated with those charged with governance of the Company regarding, among other
matters, the scope and timing of the audit and the significant findings identified, as well as any
significant deficiencies in internal control established during the course of the audit.
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Opinion on whether internal control measures and compliance with other legal
and regulatory requirements are in place and adequate
The Commercial Code and other legal provisions establish the obligation to pronounce myself on:
a) whether the actions of the Company's administrators are in accordance with the bylaws and the
orders or instructions of the assembly; b) Whether the correspondence, the account vouchers and
the minute books and share registry books, in its case, are properly kept and maintained;
c) whether there are and are adequate the internal control measures, conservation and custody of
the company’s assets and those of third parties in its possession; d) whether the management
report of the Administration is duly consistent with the separate financial statements; e) whether the
Company has made the settlement and timely payment to the Comprehensive Social Security
System; and f) If the administrators left a record in the management report that they did not
interfere with the free circulation of the invoices from their suppliers of goods and services.
In compliance with this legal mandate, I carried out the audit tests that I considered necessary in
the circumstances, among others, the following: a) Reading of the minutes of the General
Shareholders' Meeting and follow up on compliance with their orders or instructions by the
company’s administrators; b) Review and monitoring of the Company's directors' compliance with
the Company's bylaws; c) Review of the procedures for handling correspondence, account
vouchers and minute books and share registry books; d) Review of the degree of compliance by
the administrators with the legal regulations related to the preparation of financial statements, the
hiring of personnel and the preparation and presentation of tax returns; and e) Review of the
adequacy of the internal control measures taken by the Company for the conservation and custody
of the company’s assets and those of third parties in its possession. I consider that the procedures
carried out for my evaluation are a sufficient basis for expressing the conclusion that I state below.
The internal control, conservation and custody measures of the Company's and third parties'
assets are processes carried out by those in charge of corporate governance, management and
other personnel, established, among other reasons, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
preparation of reliable financial information, compliance with legal and internal regulations and the
achievement of a high level of effectiveness and efficiency in operations.
The internal control, conservation and custody measures for the Company’s assets and those of
third parties in its possession, include policies and procedures that: a) Allow the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and adequately reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the Company's assets; b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary, to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
applicable regulatory technical framework and that the Company's income and disbursements are
being processed in accordance with the authorizations of the Company’s administration and those
in charge of corporate governance; c) Provide reasonable assurance in relation to the prevention,
detection and timely correction of unauthorized transactions and the use or disposal of the
Company's assets, which could have a significant effect on the financial statements; and d) Ensure
compliance with the legal regulations that affect the Company, as well as the bylaws and the
governing bodies and the achievement of the objectives proposed by the management, in terms of
organizational efficiency and effectiveness.
Because of inherent limitations, including the possibility of collusion or omission of internal control
measures by management, internal control measures may not prevent or detect and correct
material errors. Also, the projections of any evaluation or effectiveness of the internal control
measures for future periods are subject to the risk that such measures may become inadequate
due to changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance may deteriorate.
Based on my review, the evidence obtained from the work carried out described above and subject
to the inherent limitations raised, in my capacity as Statutory Auditor I report that during the year
2020:
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a)

The Company kept its accounting records in accordance with legal regulations and accounting
technique; the transactions recorded in the books were adjusted to the bylaws and the
decisions of the Shareholders' Meeting.

b)

Correspondence, account vouchers, minute books and share registry books were duly kept
and preserved.

c)

The internal control, conservation and custody measures for the Company's assets and those
of third parties in its possession are in place and adequate.

d)

The management report that the Management presents for the consideration of the highest
corporate body, is duly consistent with the financial statements and their explanatory notes.

e)

The Company has made the settlement and timely payment to the Comprehensive Social
Security System.

f)

I have no evidence of restrictions imposed by the Company's Administration on the free
circulation of invoices from its vendors or suppliers of goods and services.

Other matters
The financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 are presented
exclusively for comparative purposes, which were audited by me, in whose report dated March 26,
2020, I expressed an opinion without qualifications.

CLAUDIA PILAR ROMERO S.
Statutory Auditor
Professional Card No 157.592-T
Representing Servicios de Auditoría y Consultoría de Negocios S.A.S.
March 23, 2021 Bogotá, D.C., Colombia

2021 - 1932
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Certification of Financial Statements

Avinash Mishra acting as Legal Representative and María Elena Aponte as Accountant of Dr.
Reddy's Laboratories S.A.S., we declare that the financial statements: statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2020, income statement, statement of changes in equity, and the
statement of cash flows, together with their explanatory notes for the year ended December 31,
2019, were prepared based on International Financial Reporting Standards, applied comparatively
with the previous year, ensuring that they reasonably present the financial situation at December
31, 2020.
•

We also confirm that:

•

The figures included in the aforementioned financial statements and in their explanatory notes
were faithfully taken from records that support the accounting of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories
S.A.S.

•

There have been no irregularities involving members of the administration that may have a
material relative effect on the financial statements or their explanatory notes.

•

We ensure the existence of quantifiable assets and liabilities, as well as their rights and
obligations recorded in accordance with document cuts, accumulation and accounting
compensation of their transactions in the year ended December 31, 2019 and evaluated under
methods of recognized technical value.

•

We confirm the integrity of the information provided, with respect to the fact that all the
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economic facts have been recognized in the financial statements and their explanatory notes.
•

The economic events have been recorded, classified, described and disclosed within the
financial statements or their explanatory notes including the encumbrances and restrictions of
the assets, real liabilities and contingencies, as well as the guarantees that have been given to
third parties.

•

The information contained in the self-assessment forms for contributions to the general
comprehensive social security system is correct, according to the legal provisions, Dr. Reddy's
Laboratories S.A.S., is not in default for contributions to the aforementioned system.

•

There have been no events subsequent to December 31, 2020 that require adjustment or
disclosure in the Financial Statements or in their explanatory notes.

Cordially,

Avinash Mishra
Legal Representative

Bogotá, D.C.
March 23, 2021

María Elena Aponte
Accountant T.P. 267.891 –T
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Financial Situation Statement

As of December 31, 2020
With comparative figures as of December 31, 2019
(Figures expressed in thousands of Colombian pesos)

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable and other accounts receivable
Current tax assets
Inventories
Non-current assets
Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Non-current assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Total non-current assets
Trade accounts payable and other accounts payable
Current tax liabilities
Employee benefits
Total current liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Other debt liabilities
Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Avinash Mishra
Legal Representative
(See attached Certification)

Maria Elena Aponte Mendoza
Accountant P.C. No 267891-T
(See attached Certification)

2019

2020

6
7
8
9

4,273,670
10,537,573
1,423,136
6,423,679
22,658,058

1,281,332
10,709,245
938,774
3,328,437
16,257,788

10
14

500,901
658,071
1,158,972
23,817,030

614,159
336,118
950,277
17,208,065

12
13
15

12,217,465
28,114
563,778
12,809,357

7,920,614
11,130
230,027
8,161,771

11

3,869,278
3,869,278
16,678,635

3,604,854
3,604,854
11,766,625

16

7,138,395
7,138,395
23,817,030

5,441,440
5,441,440
17,208,065

Claudia Pilar Romero
Statutory Auditor P.C. No. 157592-T
Assigned by Servicios de Auditoría y
Consultoría de Negocios S.A.S.
(Ver See attached report)

Las notas 1 a 23 son parte integral de los estados financieros individuales
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Income Statement

For the period from January 1 through December 31, 2020
With comparative figures to the period from January 1 to December 31, 2019.
(Figures expressed in thousands of Colombian pesos)

Notes
Ordinary activities income
Sales cost
Gross profit
Administration expenses
Sales expenses - ICA Tax
Financial expenses
Financial income
Profit before taxes
(Expense) for Income Tax
Income (expense) for deferred taxes
Net Profit for the year
Net profit per share - in thousands of pesos

Avinash Mishra
Legal Representative
(See attached Certification)

Maria Elena Aponte Mendoza
Accountant P.C. No 267891-T
(See attached Certification)

17
18
19
20

13
14

2020

2019

26,569,216
23,075,988
(16,481,389) (11,904,650)
10,087,827
11,171,338
(7,440,642) (7,560,794)
(126,496)
(109,531)
(779,625)
(683,065)
0
634
1,741,064
2,818,582
(367,470)
(799,584)
321,954
(142,843)
1,695,548
1,876,155
37.14
41.09

Claudia Pilar Romero
Statutory Auditor P.C. No. 157592-T
Assigned by Servicios de Auditoría y
Consultoría de Negocios S.A.S.
(Ver See attached report)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period from January 1 through December 31, 2020
With comparative figures to the period from January 1 to December 31, 2019.
(Figures expressed in thousands of Colombian pesos)

Subscribed and
paid capital
Balance as of December 31, 2019
Transfer of results from previous years
Net profit of the year
Balance as of December 31, 2019
Transfer of results from previous years
Prior period adjustments
Net profit of the year
Balance as of December 31, 2020

Avinash Mishra
Legal Representative
(See attached Certification)

4,565,700
0
0
4,565,700
0
0
0
4,565,700

María Elena Aponte
Accountant P.C. No 267891-T
(See attached Certification)

Results from previous
fiscal years
(892,643)
(107,772)
0
(1,000,415)
1,876,155
1,407
0
877,147

Net (loss) profit for
the year
(107,772)
107,772
1,876,155
1,876,155
(1,876,155)
0
1,695,548
1,695,548

Total
3,565,285
0
1,876,155
5,441,440
0
1,407
1,695,548
7,138,395

Claudia Pilar Romero
Statutory Auditor P.C. No. 157592-T
Assigned by Servicios de Auditoría y Consultoría de Negocios
S.A.S.
(See attached report)
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Cash Flow Statements (Indirect Method)

For the period from January 1 through December 31, 2020
With comparative figures to the period from January 1 to December 31, 2019.
(Figures expressed in thousands of Colombian pesos)

2020
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for income and expenses that did not require use of cash:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Deterioration of debtors
(Recovery) impairment of inventories, net
Difference in change, net
Deferred tax of the period
(Increase) in commercial accounts and other receivable accounts
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase) decrease in commercial accounts and other payable accounts
Increase in current taxes payable
Increase in liabilities for employee benefits
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows provided (used) in investing activities
Fixed asset purchases
Net adjustments and reclassifications in fixed assets
Net cash (used) from investing activities
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase in other debt liabilities
Adjustments to shareholders' equity of prior periods
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash from and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Avinash Mishra
Legal Representative
(See attached Certification)

María Elena Aponte
Accountant P.C. No 267891-T
(See attached Certification)

2019

1,695,548

1,876,155

140,775
2,683
(136,156)
444,278
(321,954)
(315,372)
(2,959,086)
3,852,573
16,984
333,751
2,754,024

134,528
35,908
297,280
455,403
142,843
(2,536,894)
1,111,074
(846,832)
1,652
15,499
686,616

(27,517)
0
(27,517)

(285,430)
899
(284,531)

264,424
1,407
265,831
2,992,338
1,281,332
4,273,670

30,130
0
30,130
432,215
849,117
1,281,332

Claudia Pilar Romero
Statutory Auditor P.C. No. 157592-T
Assigned by Servicios de Auditoría y
Consultoría de Negocios S.A.S.
(See attached report)
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Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
to the Individual Financial Statements

As of December 31, 2020
(With comparative figures as of December 31, 2019)
Expressed in thousands of Colombian pesos

Note 1. General Company Information
Dr. Reddy`s Laboratories S.A.S. is a joint stock company based in Colombia. The domicile of its registered
office and principal place of business is the city of Bogotá. The term of its legal duration is indefinite.
Its main activity is the manufacture, distribution and sale in the territory of the Republic of Colombia or abroad
of any type of vaccines, chemical, pharmaceutical, functional food, cosmetic and physiological products,
reagents, antibiotics for human use.
Ongoing business

In preparing the financial statements, the management has evaluated the ability of Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories S.A.S. to continue operating, considering all the information available on the future, which
covers at least the following twelve months from the date on which it is reported, without limiting itself to
said period, concluding that the Company will continue operating and not will have significant changes in
the financial statements figures, which have been determined under the ongoing concern principle.
Effects of Covid-19 on the Company's operation during 2020
As a result of the pandemic generated by Covid 19, the Company was affected as follows:
a. The sale of products did not occur on time due to the fact that the importation of inventory
presented difficulties at origin, as a result of backorders, although there was not a total decrease
in income, this situation did lead customers to seek product from other companies.
b. The cost of inventory increased due to the increase in the exchange rate, which is not only
attributable to the pandemic generated by Covid 19, but also to the significant drop in the price
of oil.
c.

Financial expenses increased due to the outflow of money, since the payment of obligations with
the main supplier located abroad was maintained, issuing more pesos for one dollar, which
reached a maximum of COP $ 4,153.91.

d. Interest and exchange difference financial expenses were recorded for a total amount of
$547,948, which are not part of the cost of sales, since they correspond to items not attributable
Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the individual financial statements 15
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to cost.
In spite of the above, the Company did not have a loss, due to the inclusion of new products that allowed for
an improvement, obtaining positive results, closing the year with a profit of 1,695,548.
Note 2. Declaration of compliance with the IFRS for SMEs

The individual financial statements of the Company Dr. Reddy's Laboratories S.A.S, corresponding to the
years ended on December 31, 2020 and 2019 have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards adopted in Colombia (NCIF), established in the Law 1314 of 2009, for
preparers of financial information belonging to Group 2, regulated by the Single Regulatory Decree 2420
of 2015 modified by Decree 2496 of 2015. The NCIF are based on the International Financial Reporting
Standard for Small and Medium Entities (IFRS for SMEs), issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). The base standard corresponds to that translated into Spanish and issued as of
December 31, 2015 by the IASB.
Note 3. Summary of significant accounting policies
3.1. General considerations

The main accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarized below:
3.2. Currency
3.2.1. Functional and presentation currency
Functional currency: Colombian pesos
The functional currency of the Company is the Colombian peso, given that it is the currency of the
main economic environment in which it generates and uses cash. Therefore, the accounting records
and reporting of financial statements are presentation in Colombian pesos.
3.2.2. Transactions and balances in foreign currency

Transactions with foreign currencies are translated into Colombian pesos using the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Exchange gains and losses resulting from
the liquidation of such operations and the modification of the measurement of monetary items at the
exchange rate at the end of the year are recognized in income as income or expenses for exchange
differences. The dollar peso exchange rate as of December 31, 2020 was COP 3,432.20 per USD 1 (2019 –
COP 3,277.14 for each USD 1) and the average dollar peso exchange rate for 20120 was COP 3, 693.36
for each USD 1 (2019 - COP 3,281.09 for each USD 1).
3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is included in all monies that the Company has available for its immediate use in cash,
checking accounts and savings accounts and are kept at their nominal value.
Investments with a maturity of less than three months, highly liquid and held to fulfill short-term
payment commitments are included in the cash equivalents; they are valued at market prices.
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3.4 Financial instruments
3.4.1

Accounts receivable

Sales are made under normal credit conditions without accruing interest, for this reason, the accounts
receivable are initially recognized at their transaction price. Subsequently, they are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment.
When there is objective evidence that the amounts recorded for accounts receivable are not
recoverable, the impairment loss is recognized in Income or results.
3.4.2

Financial obligations

Financial obligations are recognized when the Company receives the proceeds of the loan and they are
measured at initial recognition at their nominal value, net of the costs incurred in the transaction. In their
subsequent measurement, they are valued at amortized cost based on the debt’s effective interest rate.
Any difference between each valuation is recognized as financial expenses.
Financial obligations are removed from the liability when they are paid, settled, or expired.
3.4.3

Suppliers and accounts payable

Suppliers and accounts payable correspond to obligations agreed in normal credit conditions and have no
interest. They are recognized when the Company has acquired an obligation generated by receiving the
risks and benefits of purchased goods or by receiving the agreed services, measuring them by the value
agreed with the supplier. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
3.4.4

Withdrawal of financial assets

Financial assets are removed from the financial statements when the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and benefits
have been transferred. Usually, this occurs when the money is received as a result of the settlement of
the instrument or the payment of the debit balance.
If the Company does not transfer or substantially retain all the risks and advantages inherent to the
property and continues to retain control of the transferred asset, it recognizes its participation in the asset
and the associated obligation for the amounts it has to pay. If it retains substantially all the risks and
advantages inherent in the ownership of a transferred financial asset, it continues to recognize the
financial asset and, also recognizes a collateral loan for the income received.
The difference between the book value of the financial asset and the value of the consideration received
and to be received is recognized in the results.
3.4.5

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets, except those that are carried at fair value through profit or loss, are reviewed for
impairment at least at the end of each year to determine if there is objective evidence of their impairment.
Significant accounts receivable are considered for impairment analysis on an individual basis when those
accounts are past due or when there is objective evidence that a customer will default as a result of one
or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset that impact the estimated future cash
flows of the debt balance. Other accounts receivable are analyzed collectively by grouping them
according to similar credit risk characteristics.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the future cash flows to be
Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the individual financial statements 17
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recovered are estimated by means of an analysis and projection that considers the impairment probability
and the estimate of the value that will not be recovered based on the analysis of all the factors that affect
the financial asset. When the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be recovered,
discounted using the original effective interest rate of the asset is less than the carrying value of the
financial asset, an impairment loss is recognized in a sub-account of the asset with a charge to the profit
and loss for the period.
If, in a subsequent period, the value of the impairment loss decreases as a consequence of an event that
occurred after the impairment was recognized, the reversal of the impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss.
3.5 Inventories

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories S.A.S., recognizes as inventories the goods acquired for which it is
expected to obtain economic benefits in future periods, through their use (consumption) and / or
sale.
Inventories are measured at the lower of the cost and their estimated sales price minus the costs of
termination and selling expenses, using the average method. The cost includes the net purchase cost of
discounts, rebates and similar plus all necessary expenses incurred to give them their condition and
location. In the case of manufactured products, the costs include the expenditures causally related to their
production and a part of the fixed indirect costs assigned based on the normal production capacity.
In the case of imports, their purchase cost is recognized at the exchange rate of the date on which
the risks and benefits of the inventory are received.
Inventories are evaluated for impairment at each reporting date. When the selling price less costs of
completion and selling costs is less than the carrying value of inventories, a loss is recognized immediately
in income and presented in cost of sales or expense as appropriate.
3.6 Properties, plant, and equipment

The elements of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase
price, net of discounts and rebates, plus all costs directly attributable to the location of the asset in the place
and conditions necessary for it to be able to operate in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount of the asset, using the straight-line method based on
the following useful life:
Type of asset
Vehicles
Telecommunications equipment
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Improvements in third party's property

Useful life in years
4 years
3 years
8 years
3 years
8 years

The useful life of the assets is reviewed annually, and if there are significant changes, the
depreciation is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.
Expenses for minor repairs, normal maintenance of the assets and all those activities that maintain
the service and ability to use the asset under normal conditions are charged to expenses of the
period.
Spare parts, auxiliary equipment and permanent maintenance equipment are recognized as properties,
plant, and equipment when their use is expected to be more than one year, and their individual value
exceeds 1 valid legal monthly salary in force (SMMLV). Otherwise they are treated as expenses.
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The expenditures for minor repairs, normal maintenance of assets and all those activities that
maintain the service and ability to use the asset in normal conditions are charged to expenses for the
period.
The book value of an item of property, plant and equipment is withdrawn from the assets when it is
sold or assigned to a third party, transferring the risks and benefits and / or when it is not expected to
obtain future economic benefits from its use or sale. Gains or losses arising from this withdrawal are
recognized in income as part of "other income or other expenses," as appropriate.
3.7 Impairment of the non-financial assets value

At the end of each year, the Company evaluates whether there is any indication of impairment of the
value of an individual asset to the extent that it generates cash flows independently, or cash generating
units. If there are indications of a possible impairment, the recoverable value of any affected asset (or
cash generating units) is estimated and compared with its book value, except for capital gains. If the
estimated recoverable value is lower than the net book cost of the asset (individual or cash generating
unit), its carrying amount is reduced to the estimated recoverable value, and a loss for impairment is
recognized, which is recorded in the results as expenses or through a decrease in the surplus for
revaluation of assets, if any.
If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) increases until the revised estimate of its recoverable value, without exceeding the value that
would have been determined had no loss been recognized for impairment of value of assets in previous
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
3.8 Leases

The Company acting as lessee classifies a lease as a finance lease if substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased asset are transferred to it. Therefore, at the beginning of the
lease, an asset (property, plant and equipment, intangible assets or investment property, as applicable) is
recognized at the fair value of the leased asset or, if it is less than the present value of the minimum lease
payments. A similar value is recognized as a financial lease liability within the financial obligations.
The lease payments are divided between the financial charge and the reduction of the lease obligation,
in order to achieve a constant interest rate on the remaining balance of the liability. The financial
charge is recognized as financial expenses in the income statement.
For the assets held in finance leases the policies are applied in the same way as for the assets that are
owned by the Company.
The rest of the leases are treated as operating leases, proceeding to recognize the quotas agreed on
in the result of the period on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
3.9 Income tax

The tax expense recognized in the income of the period includes the sum of the current taxes for the
concept of the current income tax and the surtax to the income and supplementary tax, and the
deferred tax. The current income tax and the surcharge are calculated based on the net income, using
the tax laws enacted and in force on the annual closing date, which differs from the accounting income
reflected in the financial statements.
Assets and / or liabilities for current taxes comprise the obligations or claims of the tax authorities in
relation to the periods of current or previous reports that are pending payment at the annual closing
date. The Management periodically evaluates the position assumed in the tax returns, regarding
situations in which the tax laws are subject to interpretation. The Company, when applicable,
recognizes the amounts it expects to have to pay to the tax authorities.
Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the individual financial statements 19

844
Dr.Reddy`s Laboratories S.A.S.
Financial statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated based on temporary differences between the book
value of assets and liabilities and their tax base, to the that they are expected to increase or decrease
the taxable profit in the future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates expected to be
applied in the respective period of realization. The deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss for the
period, except in the case of items that are recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income, in
which case the tax is also recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income, respectively.
The deferred tax asset is only recognized to the extent that the existence of future tax benefits against
which the temporary differences that generate it are probable. The foregoing is determined based on
the Company's projections on future operating results, adjusted for significant items that are reconciled
for the fiscal result and for the limits on the use of tax losses or other fiscal assets pending application.
The book value of deferred income tax assets is reviewed on each reporting date and adjusted as
necessary to reflect the current assessment of future tax earnings.
3.10 Employee benefits

The Company's labor obligations include short-term benefits..
3.10.1

Short-term benefits

The short-term benefits include salaries, severance, vacation, legal premium, interest on severance
and all those items that remunerate the service provided by employees to the Company and that are
expected to be fully liquidated before the twelve months following the annual closing date in which is
informed that the employees have provided the related services.
These benefits are recognized to the extent that the employee provides services to the Company and
are measured by the value established in the labor standards and / or in the individual agreements
established between the employee and the Company.
3.11

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions comprise estimates of probable and quantifiable losses for claims on the Company and
provision for decommissioning. Their recognition is made when there is a present legal or assumed
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required for
payment and its value can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the disbursements that are expected to be required to
settle the obligation, using the average interest rate of the Company's bank credits as the discount
rate. The existing provisions are updated annually, and their value is recognized as financial expenses
in the part that reflects the passage of time and as expenses the part that reflects an adjustment in the
estimate of the provision.
The contingencies of profits in favor of the Company are not recognized until the certainty of obtaining
the economic benefit of them is assured.
3.12

Issued capital

The share capital represents the nominal value of the shares that have been issued.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are recognized in equity as a
deduction from the amount received, net of taxes.
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Dividends distributions payable to shareholders are recognized as accounts payable when the
dividends are declared by the Shareholders' Meeting.
3.13

Reserves

Appropriations authorized by the General Shareholders' Meeting are recorded as reserves, charged to
the results of the year for compliance with legal provisions, by-laws or by free disposal (voluntary). Its
recognition is made, at the moment, in which the Shareholders' Meeting approves the appropriation.
3.14

Recognition of revenue from ordinary activities

Revenues are measured by reference to the fair value of the payment received or to be received from
the goods supplied or the services provided by the Company, net of rebates, commercial discounts
and the like. The accounting policy for each income group is as follows:
3.14.1

Product sales

Revenues from ordinary activities from the sale of products in the country are recognized when the
goods are delivered and the ownership has changed, which occurs with the actual delivery of the
goods.
The measurement of revenues is made at the price agreed between the parties, net of discounts, rebates
and similar. When a term for payment is granted or the sale is financed beyond one year, revenue is
determined by discounting (present value) all future collections, using an imputed interest rate for
discounting. The difference between this value and the nominal value of the consideration is recognized
as interest income on the term granted.
3.15

Recognition of costs and expenses

The Company recognizes its costs and expenses to the extent that economic events occur in such a way
that they are systematically recorded in the corresponding accounting period (accrual), regardless of the
time of payment.
3.16

Classification into current and non-current assets and liabilities

The Company classifies as current assets those items that: i) Expects to make, sell or consume in its
normal operating cycle, which is 12 months, ii) Maintains mainly for trading purposes, iii) Expects to
perform within the following twelve months after the reporting period, or iv) They are cash or cash
equivalent. All other assets are classified as non-current.
The Company classifies as current liabilities those items that: i) Expects to settle in its normal operating
cycle, which is 12 months, ii) Maintains mainly for trading purposes, iii) They must be settled within twelve
months following the date of the period reported, or iv) They do not have an unconditional right to
postpone their payment at least in the twelve months following the closing date. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.
Note 4. Key assumptions of the uncertainty in the estimation

When preparing financial statements, the Management assumes a series of judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. These
judgments and estimates are evaluated periodically based on experience and other factors. Actual results
may differ from the estimates made and may require significant adjustments in the book value of the
affected assets and liabilities. The most significant estimates correspond to:
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4.1.

Debtor impairment

The situation of each debtor at the date of the financial statement is considered, as well as his
characteristics, maturities, financial difficulties, economic environment in which he /she operates,
among others. The Company has updated financial information of each of its clients. Based on these
analyses and information, for each debtor, the estimated future flows to be received are made, which
are discounted at the debtor's original effective interest rate, thus finding the present value, which it is
compared with the book value, being the difference the impairment of value.
The impairment of debtors may be modified in the future due to economic, legal and market situations
affecting the debtors and their future payment.
4.2 . Inventory impairment

The net realizable values of the inventories are determined taking into consideration the most reliable
evidence that is available at the date of the annual closing regarding the inventory status, expected sale
prices, market situation, among others.
The future realization of these inventories may be affected by changes in the market, in technology and in
the habits of consumers that can reduce sales prices.
4.3

Impairment of properties, plant and equipment

In the impairment assessment, the Company determines the recoverable value of each asset or cash
generating unit based on the greater, between the use value and net fair value of the assets. In the
determination of the use value, estimates of the expected future cash flows are made and an interest rate is
determined to calculate its present value.
The uncertainty of the estimate is related to the assumptions about the future operating results generated by
the asset, as well as the determination of an adequate discount rate. On the other hand, the fair value of the
assets may be affected by changes in the market or in the conditions and use of the assets.
4.4

Provisions

The estimation of the provisions to meet probable and quantifiable litigation is made based on the status of
each process and the determination of possible outcomes using the legal criteria provided by the
Company's attorneys at the closing date. The information may change in the future in accordance with the
decisions of the judges and the existence of new information of each lawsuit.
4.5

Income tax and deferred income tax

The tax expense recognized in the results of the period includes the sum of current income tax and the
deferred tax. The current income tax is calculated based on the net income, respectively, in accordance with
the tax legislation in force at the closing date of the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on the temporary differences between the book value of
assets and liabilities and their tax base, to the extent that they are expected to increase or decrease the
taxable profit in the future.
The book value of deferred income tax assets is reviewed on each reporting date and adjusted as
necessary to reflect the current assessment of future tax earnings.
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Note 5. Objectives and risk management policy

The Company is exposed to various risks related to financial instruments, such as liquidity, currency,
interest rate and credit risks. The Company's financial risk management is analyzed by management and
focuses on securing the Company's cash flows in the short and medium term, minimizing its exposure to
changes in financial markets.
The Company does not carry out trading activities for speculative purposes, nor does it engage in hedging
operations.
For each of the financial risks, the available quantitative and qualitative information is analyzed, such as:
–

Exposures to risk and how they arise.

–

The objectives, policies and processes for risk management, as well as the
methods used to measure it.

–

Summarized quantitative data about their risk exposure at the closing of 2020.

–

Risk concentrations

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is that the Company may not be able to meet its obligations, therefore, the expected cash
flows of financial assets should be considered when evaluating and managing liquidity risk, particularly its
cash resources and its accounts receivable. The Company manages its liquidity needs by monitoring the
payments that must be made of both debt and interest; as well as preparing forecasts of cash inflows and
outflows in weekly, monthly, quarterly and annual terms with horizons of up to five years. Liquidity
requirements for 90, 180 and, 360-day terms are identified on a monthly basis. Net cash requirements are
compared to the available loan facilities to determine the maximum extent or any shortfall. This analysis
makes it possible to identify the loan facilities available and whether they are sufficient for the entire
period analyzed.
The Company's existing cash resources and accounts receivable exceed the current cash flow
requirements. Cash flows from customers and other accounts receivable expire contractually in the first
six months.
As of December 31, 2019, the financial liabilities of Company Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.S., have
contractual maturities (including interest payments when applicable) as summarized below:
Current
From six
To six
months
months
to a year
Financial obligations
Suppliers
Trade accounts payable
Tax liabilities
Liability for employee benefits
Total

0
0
245,389
28,114
563,778
837,281

0
11,972,076
0
0
0
11,972,076

Non-current
From one
More than
year to
five years
five years
3,869,278
0
0
0
0
3,869,278

0
0
0
0
0
0

As of December
31, 2020
3,869,278
11,972,076
245,389
28,114
563,778
16,678,635
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Current
To six
months
Financial obligations
Suppliers
Trade accounts payable
Tax liabilities
Liability for employee
benefits
Total

0
0
202,838
11,130
230,027
443,995

Non-current
From one
More than
year to
five years
five years

From six
months
to a year
0
7,717,776
0
0

3,604,854
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

7,717,776

3,604,854

0

As of
December
31, 2019
3,604,854
7,717,776
202,838
11,130
230,027
11,766,625

Currency risk

Most of the Company's transactions are carried out in Colombian pesos. Exposures to exchange rates
arise from purchases abroad that are basically denominated in United States dollars (USD).
To mitigate the Company's exposure to exchange rate risk, cash flows originating in foreign currency are
monitored, as well as future commitments in those currencies, following established risk management
policies. Generally, risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows
(maturing within 6 months or less), from longer-term cash flows (maturing after 6 months). When the
amounts to be paid or collected in a specific currency are expected to offset each other, no other hedging
activity takes place.
The financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that expose the Company to
a foreign exchange risk is analyzed below:
Dollars
Financial Obligations
Suppliers
Net exposure

Other currencies

(1,100
(3,488)
(4,588)

Dollars
Financial Obligations
Suppliers
Net exposure

(1,100)
(2,355)
(3,455)

0
0
0

As of December
31, 2020
(1,100)
(3,488)
(4,588)
As of December
31, 2019

Other
currencies
0
0
0

(1,100)
(2,355)
(3,455)

Interest rate risk

The Company's policy is to minimize exposure to interest rate risk on its cash flow in long-term financing.
For this reason, the Company agreed to an interest rate of 2,25% APR. Interest recognized and accrued
quarterly. The Company does not recognize the difference as it is certain that the parent company will not
change the conditions initially agreed.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that clients and other debtors will not make their payment to the Company, therefore
its exposure to this risk is mainly due to the balances of cash and cash equivalents and all debtors.
The maximum exposure of credit risk by the Company is presented below according to the balances of the
financial position statement:
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2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Debtors clients
Employee loans
Other debtors
Total

4,273,670
10,305,098
8,305
217,148
14,804,221

2019
1,281,332
10,521,198
165,177
22,870
11,990,577

The Company continuously monitors balances exposed to credit risk, individually or by group of debtors,
and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls, when it is available at reasonable cost,
external credit ratings and / or reports are made about customers and others and this information is used.
The Company considers that all the aforementioned financial assets that are neither impaired nor past due
for each of the reporting dates under review, have a good credit quality due to the fulfillment of its
agreements with clients.
The Company maintains certain accounts receivable that are in arrears but have not been considered
impaired. The analysis of their age is as follows:
2020
Less than three months
From three to six months
From six months to a year
Total

9,209,770
685,582
409,746
10,305,098

2019
9,774,083
560,535
186,580
10,521,198

Receivable accounts comprise a large number of customers in the drug industry and geographic areas.
Based on historical information about customer default rates, management considers the credit quality of
accounts receivable that are not past due or impaired to be good. Those debit balances that have been
considered individually impaired correspond to third parties in insolvency, liquidation and restructuring law
and have been originated from financial difficulties to cover their commitments and special agreements.
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is negligible, as the counterparties are reputable banks with
high ratings from external rating companies.
Capital management policies and procedures
The Company's capital management objectives are: i). to ensure its continuity as a going concern; ii). to
provide an adequate return to shareholders (or partners, as applicable).
With the above purpose, the Company determines its capital requirements in order to maintain an
efficient overall financing structure, while avoiding excessive leverage, taking into consideration the
subordination levels of the different classes of debt that it has. In addition, the Company manages the
capital structure and adjusts it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the assets involved.
Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 include the following components:
December 31
2020
2019
Current:
Cash
Domestic bank current accounts
Total

1,204
4,272,466
4,273,670

2,152
1,279,180
1,281,332
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The cash and cash equivalents are no limitations on its use.

Nota 7. Commercial accounts receivable and other receivables

Commercial accounts receivable and other accounts receivable include:
December 31
2020
2019
For sale of medicines
Deposits
Other accounts receivable
Minus: Future conditioned discounts
Minus: Accumulated impairment of accounts receivable

(1)
(2)

Total current

11,262,395
7,222
225,253
(558,034)
(399,263)

11,258,050
7,222
180,825
(340,272)
(396,580)

10,537,573

10,709,245

(1) Discounts are associated discounts for prompt payment, volume and commercial, which are
effective upon receipt of payment
(2) The movement of impairment of accounts receivable for the years 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Initial balance January 1
Impairment of the year
Final balance December 31

2020

2019

(396,580)
(2,683)
(399,263)

(360,672)
(35,908)
(396,580)

The value of the year's impairment was recognized in the results of the period.
Note 8. Current tax assets

The balance of assets for taxes and contributions includes:
December 31
2020
2019
Balance in favor of prior years
Balance in favor of income for the year (Note 13)
Industry and commerce tax withheld
Total

816,384
593,226
13,526
1,423,136

871,744
67,030
0
938,774

Note 9. Inventories

The balance of inventories includes:
December 31
2020
2019
Goods in stock
Impairment
Total

7,042,232
(618,553)
6,423,679

4,083,146
(754,709)
3,328,437

In 2020, a total of COP 16,481,389 of inventories was included in results within cost of sales (2019 COP 11,904,650). In 2019, an additional inventory balance of COP 1,407 was reported.
The following is the movement of inventory impairment:
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Initial balance January 1
Impairment of the year
Recovery of the year
Final balance December 31

2020

2019

(754,709)
(196,201)
332,357
(618,553)

(457,429)
(297,280)
0
(754,709)

Note 10. Properties, plant, and equipment

The balance of property, plant and equipment as of December 31 includes:
Gross cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total

2020

2019

1,036,342
(535,441)
500,901

1,008,825
(394,666)
614,159

The movement of properties, plant and equipment for the years 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
Improvements in
third parties'
property

Office
Computer Telecommunication
equipment equipment
equipment
Vehicles
Balance as of January 1, 2019

Purchases
Year’s depreciation

Adjustments and reclassifications
Balance as of December 31, 2019

Purchases
Year’s depreciation

Balance as of December 31, 2020

45,257
23,600
(7,993)
0
60,864
3,254
(9,122)
54,996

44,315
85,038
(35,605)
(899)
92,849
22,964
(42,238)
73,575

853
0
(853)
0
0
1,299
0
1,299

19,533
154,990
(42,135)
0
132,388
0
(38,748)
93,640

Total

354,198
464,156
21,802
285,430
(47,942) (134,528)
0
(899)
328,058
614,159
0
27,517
(50,667) (140,775)
277,391
500,901

Note 11. Other debt liabilities

The balance of other debt liabilities includes:

Type of credit
For working capital (1)
Total

EA Interest
rate

Current
December 31
2020
2019

2.25%EA

No current
December 31
2020
2019
3,869,278
3,869,278

3,604,854
3,604,854

(1) They are all originated in USD, for a total value of USD 1,100,000. For the month of April 2020 there
was a decrease in the interest rate from 3% AE to 2.25% AE. This is based on clause No. 3 of the
contract. Interest accrued in 2020 in the amount of $ 103,670 (in 2019 - $110,516) was recognized in
the statement of income as financial expenses. In accordance with the terms of the obligations
during the course of 2019 and 2020 no payments will be made to the debt.
Note 12. Commercial and other accounts payable

The balance of commercial accounts and other accounts payable includes:
2020
Suppliers
Costs and expenses payable
Withholding taxes
ICA withheld
Total

(1)

December 31
2019

11,972,076
182,434
60,836
2,119
12,217,465

7,717,776
129,914
70,900
2,024
7,920,614

(1). As of December 31, 2020, the balance of suppliers includes balances in dollars for the purchase of
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inventories for a total amount of USD 3,487,859 (In 2019 - USD 2,355,034). The adjustment for
adjustment to the year-end exchange rate for 2020 generated exchange difference expenses of
COP 444,278 (In 2019 - COP 455,403), which were recognized as financial expenses.
Note 13. Current taxes payable

The balance of current tax payable liabilities includes:
December 31
2020
2019
Tax of industry and commerce ICA
Total

28,114
28,114

11,130
11,130

The income tax expense includes:
2020
Income Tax
(Income) expense for deferred income tax
Total

367,470
(321,954)
45,515

2019
799,584
142,843
942,427

The income tax returns for the years 2019 and prior are fiscally closed. The Company and its legal advisors
believe that, in the event of a review by the tax authorities, there will be no changes in the bases declared
by the Company.
The reconciliation between the accounting profit and income tax expense for the years 2020 and 2019
is as follows:
2020
Profit before taxes
Plus: non-deductible items that increase taxable profit
Portfolio impairment
Industry and commerce tax expense
Non-deductible expense for GMF
Impairment of inventory not destroyed (Samples)
Prior year costs and expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Travel expenses Chile & Venezuela
(Minus): items that decrease taxable income
Net impairment of tax inventory
Impairment of portfolio (tax deduction)
Unrealized exchange difference (income)
Others

1,741,064

2,818,582

0
126,496
29,682
0
122,390
9,212
1,993

35,908
109,531
39,066
297,280
25,915
5,177
6,900

(136,156)
(99,218)
(449,469)
0

(237,204)
(132,174)
(379,410)
(633)

2020
Net income
Calculation of presumptive income
Net worth for the immediately preceding year
Percentage of presumptive income
Presumptive income
Taxable income
Tax Rate
Subtotal tax expense
ICA tax discount 50%.
Total tax expense booked in the year
Income tax for the year
Less: Withholding tax
Less: Self-withholdings
Income tax payable (credit) (Note 8)

2019

2019

1,345,994

2,588,938

5,381,886
0,5%
26,909
1,345,994
32%
430,718
(63,248)
367,470
367,470
(853,452)
(107,244)
(593,226)

4,213,300
1,5%
63,200
2,588,938
33%
854,349
(54,765)
799,584
799,584
(774,310)
(92,304)
(67,030)

Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the individual financial statements 28

853
Dr.Reddy`s Laboratories S.A.S.
Financial statements

Legal provisions applicable to income tax, presumptive income, and tax on dividends:

The following are the current provisions applicable to the Company:
a.

In accordance with Law 2010 of 2019, the income tax rates for the years 2019 onwards, are as
follows:
Year
2019
2020
2021
2022 and onwards

Rate
33%
32%
31%
30%

b.

The basis for determining the presumptive income tax for the 2020 taxable year is 0.5% (20191.5%) of the net worth of the immediately preceding year; and 0% as of 2021.

c.

When the income tax has been determined based on the presumptive income system, in
accordance with Law 1943 of 2018 and its previous regulations, the Company may subtract
from the gross income determined within the following five years the value of the presumptive
income over net income excess, calculated by the ordinary system and adjusted based on the
inflation index until December 31, 2016. As of 2017, presumptive income over ordinary income
excesses may be deductible without adjustment, within the following five years.

d.

The income tax rate corresponding to dividends or participations and their withholding, pursuant
to Decree 2371 of 2019 for the taxable year 2019, is as follows:
Concept
Taxable year 2016 and prior, withholding must be practiced for
the taxable part as follows: 20% Obliged to file a return
33% Not obliged to file a return
(20% if it exceeds 1400 UVT* - Unit of Tax Value*)

INCRNGO (*)

Earnings Jan 1/17 - Dec 31/18 that have been decreed as
enforceable, to resident natural persons and illiquid inheritances
of causers that at the time of their
deaths were residents of the country.
Dividends received from foreign companies to resident natural
persons and national companies
Earnings Jan 1/17 - Dec 31/18 that have been decreed as
callable, to foreign companies and entities and
by non-resident natural persons and illiquid estates of nonresident causers at the time of their death

For the taxable year
2019 0 - 300 UVT 0%
300 UVT onwards 15% (10%
since 2020)

SIMPLE
Earnings with respect to Income taxed in SIMPLE,
The value to be deducted will be the simple national component.

Taxed

N/A

N/A
7.5%

Rates art. 240 TS
33% 2019
32% 2020
31% 2021
30% 2022

Ongoing The withholdings of
Law 2010/19
Resident natural persons
0 - 300 UVT > 0%
300 T onwards > 10%

(*) INCRNGO - Income not Constituting Income or Occasional Profit
e.

Pursuant to the 2010 Law of 2019 "Growth Law, the rates applicable to dividends and
their withholding with respect to the Earnings distributed as payable in 2020, are as
follows:
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Concept
Taxable year 2016 and prior, withholding must be practiced
for the taxable part as follows: 20% Required to file a return.
33% Not obliged to file a return
(20% if it exceeds 1400 UVT)

INCRNGO (*)

Taxed

N/A
7,5%
Withholding transferable
to the final beneficiary

National Companies
Companies, foreign entities and permanent
establishments

10%

Rates art. 240 TS
33% 2019
32% 2020
31% 2021
30% 2022

0 - 300 UVT 0%
300 UVT onwards 10%
10%

Resident natural persons
Non-Resident natural persons

(*) INCRNGO - Income not Constituting Income or Occasional Profit
f.

Beginning in 2020 the rates on dividends are as follows:
Concept

National Companies

Taxed

Rates art. 240 ET

Companies, foreign entities
and permanent
establishments
Resident natural persons
Non-Resident natural persons

33%
32%
31%
30%

2019
2020
2021
2022

INCRNGO (*)
7,5%
Withholding transferable to the
final beneficiary
10%
0%
0 - 300 UVT
10% 300 UVT onwards
10%

g.

In accordance with Law 1819 of 2016, the tax losses obtained from the taxable year 2017,
can be compensated with the ordinary liquid income obtained in the following twelve
taxable periods, with no limit on the amounts to be compensated (Art. 147 TS).
Accumulated losses as of December 31, 2016 and readjusted in the inflation index until
December 31, 2016 of income and CREE are not subject to the compensation term
provided in art. 147 TS, nor will they be fiscally readjusted and the formula of numeral 5 Art.
290 ET (Transitional regime) must be considered.

h.

Law 2010 of 2019 establishes limits for deductions: interest in proportion to liquid equity
regarding loans with economic associates, amortization of goodwill for the acquisition of
shares and residual value for depreciation due to balance reduction, among others.

i.

The occasional earnings rate is 10%.

As of 2017, income tax contributors who receive income from a foreign source, subject to income taxes in
the country of origin, can deduct such amounts from income tax, and its surcharge, until they are
exhausted. The value of the discount in no case may be greater than the income tax settled. These rules
must be verified with respect to the countries with which Colombia has an agreement to avoid double
taxation and the CAN (Andean Community of Nations)-
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Note 14. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
have been determined as follows:

Concept
Impairment of portfolio
Provision for inventory
Foreign exchange difference (other debt liabilities)
Exchange difference (suppliers)
Accounts to be billed
Total

Concept
Impairment of portfolio
Provision for inventory
Foreign exchange difference (other debt liabilities)
Exchange difference (suppliers)
Total

Temporary
difference
11,568
618,553
524,170
887,590
80,927
2,122,811

Temporary
difference
110,787
517,505
363,416
58,660
1,050,368

Rate
31%
31%
31%
31%
31%

Rate
32%
32%
32%
32%
32%

2020
Deferred Tax
Assets
Liabilities
3,586
191,752
162,493
275,153
25,087
658,071

0
0
0
0
0
0

2019
Deferred Tax
Assets
Liabilities
35,452
165,601
116,293
18,772
336,118

0
0
0
0
0

The variations generated in the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown below:
2020
Assets
Initial balance
Increase due to new temporary differences
Increase due to variations in the differences
Decrease due to variations in the differences
Closing balance

336,118
0
353,818
(31,865)
658,071

2019
Liabilities
0
0
0
0

Assets

Liabilities

478,961
0
20,958
(163,801)
336,118

0
0
0
0

The balance recognized in income is shown below:
2020
Income for the period

321,954
321,954

2019
(142,843)
(142,843)

Note 15. Employee benefits
2020
Wages
Severance
Interest on severance
Holidays
Social and parafiscal security
Bonuses
Total

0
82,962
9,556
142,344
79,239
249,677
563,778

2019
11,532
62,293
8,343
97,146
0
50,713
230,027

Nota 16. Equity
Capital

The Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2020 is represented in 45,657 (In 2019 - 45,657) fully paid
common shares with a par value of one thousand pesos each. All shares are equally eligible to receive
dividends and capital redemptions and represent one vote at the shareholders' meeting.
The reconciliation of outstanding shares and reserves within equity is shown below:
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2020
Share capital
Number of authorized shares
Number of shares issued and fully paid
Share unit nominal value
Total nominal value of the shares
Number of shares issued and fully paid
Changes in the number of shares outstanding
Total increase
Number of outstanding shares at the end of the period

1,000,000
45,657
100,000
4,565,700
45,657
0
45,657
45,657

31
2019

1,000,000
45,657
100,000
4,565,700
45,657
0
45,657

Note 17. Income from ordinary activities
Revenue from ordinary activities includes:
Year ended
December 31
2020
2019
Sales of marketed products, net
(-) Return on sales
(-)Commercial discounts
Total

37,846,336
(1,194,023)
(10,083,097)
26,569,216

31,919,468
(19,348)
(8,824,132)
23,075,988

Nota 18. Cost of sale

The detail of the costs of sale includes:
Year ended
December 31
2020
2019
Purchase cost of products sold
Impairment of inventories
Total

16,617,544
(136,155)
16,481,389

11,607,370
297,280
11,904,650

Note 19. Administration expenses

The detail of administration expenses includes:

Employee benefits
Market research
Contributions to social security
Services
Legal expenses
Fees
Leases
Depreciations
Travel expenses
Service and Repairs
Insurance
Toiletries, cafeteria and stationery items
Memberships and contributions
Impairment of debtors
Taxes
Activities with doctors
Other marketing expenses
Congress affiliations
Other administrative expenses
Total

2020

2019

4,520,134
641,916
553,826
519,000
312,245
289,741
185,962
140,775
116,783
41,014
16,860
11,873
7,673
2,683
0
0
0
0
80,157
7,440,642

3,589,223
1,511,771
511,923
256,737
259,627
283,438
209,070
134,528
389,850
39,862
68,241
34,962
6,615
35,908
5,762
4,390
122,406
500
95,981
7,560,794
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Note 20. Financial income and costs
The detail of financial income and costs includes:
Year ended
December 31
2020
2019
Exchange difference
Expenses from previous years
Interests
GMF tax
Bank fees and expenses
Implicit interest
Others
Total

444,278
122,390
103,670
59,364
40,712
9,211
0
779,625

455,403
25,915
110,516
78,132
4,094
5,133
3,872
683,065

Note 21. Transactions with related parties
The related parties of the Company include its shareholders, related parties and key management
personnel.
21.1.

Transactions with related parties

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, no balances are presented with shareholders. The balances
with related parties of the Company are as follows:
2020
Other debt liabilities
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.(Suiza)
Total
Suppliers
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Ltd.
Total
Interests
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A (Suiza)
Total
Difference in exchange
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories S.A.
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Ltd.
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Ltda.
Total

21.2.

December 31
2019

3,869,278
3,869,278

3,604,854
3,604,854

11,972,076
11,972,076

7,717,776
7,717,776

103,670
103,670

110,516
110,516

(269,968)
292,052
432,219
454,303

(379,410)
834,813
0
455,403

Transactions with key management personnel

Total remuneration of directors and other key personnel in 2020 (including salaries and benefits)
amounted to COP 4,351,576 (In 2019 - COP 3,477,964).
Note 22. Events occurring after the reporting period
Due to the continuity of the pandemic and seeking to mitigate financial risks, the Company initiated in January
2021 a process to open a clearing account in the United States, allowing the Company to hedge against the
fluctuation of the U.S. dollar and to seek savings on financial taxes such as the financial movement tax.
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Additionally, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories S.A.S. is working on the inclusion process of new products in order to
expand the portfolio and not depend solely on the products currently being handled.
Note 23. Approval of financial statements
The individual financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 (including comparative ones)
were approved by the Company's legal representative for consideration by the Assembly.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited. a
company incorporated and administered outside India, which comprises the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended on that date
annexed thereto, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared for the limited purpose of complying with the provisions of Section 136
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible, in accordance with the
requirement of and only for the purpose of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the matters with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended only to the extent applicable and relevant to a company
incorporated outside India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
The Management of the Company is further responsible for ensuring that the financial statements, as far as
possible, are in accordance with the requirement of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
The audit is limited and only to express an opinion on the financial statements, prepared only to comply with
the requirements and for the purpose of sec.136 of the Companies Act, 2013, whether they give a true and fair
view of, as the case may be, state of affairs etc. It is not an audit in accordance with the provisions of the statutes
of the country in which it was established and operated as may be applicable to the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit carried out for the
limited purpose of complying with Section 136. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India specified under Section 143(10) of the Act,
only to the extent applicable and relevant to a company incorporated outside India.
This report is based on our examination of the accompanying financial statements and other relevant records
and information considered necessary for the purposes of issuing this report and the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management.
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Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act, to the extent applicable and relevant to a company
incorporated outside India, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), of the Profit
for the year ended on that date; and
(C) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
(d) in the case of Statement of Changes in Equity, of the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date
For M/s A Ramachandra Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 02857S

S R V V Surya Rao Ponnada
Partner
Membership No. 202367
UDIN NO. 21202367AAABXY1588
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11th May 2021
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited
Balance Sheet
(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

Note

ASSETS
Non Current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current assets

As at
31 March 2020

2.1

983
983

2,060
2,060

2.2
2.3
2.4

55
16,749
752
17,556

4,493
305
2,935
7,733

18,539

9,793

2.5

31,871
(15,862)
16,009

26,775
(20,037)
6,738

Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

2.6

-

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities

2.7
2.8

1,472
1,058
2,530

1,537
609
2,146

18,539

9,793

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For A Ramachandra Rao & Co.
ICAI Firm registration number: 002857S
Chartered Accountants

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited

PSRVV Surya Rao

M V Narasimham

Sameer Natu

Partner
Membership No.: 202367

Director

Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2021

909
909
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

2.9
2.10

15,893
15,893

-

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation
Finance cost
Selling and other expenses
Total expenses

2.11
2.12
2.13
2.14

6,226
1,209
39
4,242
11,716

5,459
295
14
4,382
10,150

4,177

(10,145)

4,177

(10,145)

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit/(Loss) for the year

5
5

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

1,125

(2)

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Total comprehensive loss for the year

4,175

(9,020)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For A Ramachandra Rao & Co.
ICAI Firm registration number: 002857S
Chartered Accountants

PSRVV Surya Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 202367

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited

M V Narasimham
Director

Sameer Natu
Director
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Equity share capital
26,775
5,096

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Issue of equity shares
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021

Other components of equity
Reserves and surplus
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation
Retained earnings
reserve
(21,162)
1,125
4,177
(16,985)

31,871

Particulars
Balance as at 1 April 2019
Issue of equity shares
Loss for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Equity share capital
13,409
13,366
26,775

Other components of equity
Reserves and surplus
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation
Retained earnings
reserve
(11,017)
(10,145)
(21,162)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For A Ramachandra Rao & Co.
ICAI Firm registration number: 002857S
Chartered Accountants

PSRVV Surya Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 202367

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited

M V Narasimham
Director

(2)
1,123

Sameer Natu
Director

1,125
1,125

Total equity
6,738
5,096
4,175
16,009

Total equity
2,392
13,366
(9,020)
6,738
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Statement of Cash Flow
(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Particulars

For the year ended

For the period ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Foreign exchange loss / (gain), net
Finance income
Interest expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other assets and liabilities, net
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid, net
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities

4,177

(10,145)

1,209
(241)
39
(13,700)
(8,516)
(8,516)

295
124
(5)
14
(1,995)
(11,712)
(11,712)

Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of PPE
Finance income received
Net cash used in investing activities

(79)
(79)

(67)
5
(61)

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Payment of principal portion of debt
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Interest paid
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note 2.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 2.2)

5,096

13,366

(1,140)
(39)
3,917

(264)
(14)
13,089

(4,678)
240
4,493
55

1,315
995
2,183
4,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For A Ramachandra Rao & Co.
ICAI Firm registration number: 002857S
Chartered Accountants

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited

PSRVV Surya Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 202367

M V Narasimham
Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2021

Sameer Natu
Director
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Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited
(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Note 1 Description of the Company and significant accounting policies
1.1 Description of the Company
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited (" the Company") incorporated on 23 February 2018 in Taiwan , is a 100% subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA.
1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended from time to time.
1.3 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.
1.4 Significant accounting policies
a) Current and non-current classification
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements.
Assets:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are always disclosed as non-current.
b) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition
during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise
When several exchange rates are available, the rate used is that at which the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have been settled if those cash flows
had occurred at the measurement date.
c) Revenue

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the control of the goods has been transferred to a third party, when the title passes to the customer, either upon shipment or upon receipt of goods by
the customer and when the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the product. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the transaction price which is the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, taxes and
applicable trade discounts and allowances. Revenue includes shipping and handling costs billed to the customer.

Services Income
Revenue from services rendered, which primarily relate to contract research, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as the underlying services are performed. Upfront nonrefundable payments received under these arrangements are deferred and recognised as revenue over the expected period over which the related services are expected to be
performed.

License fee
License fees primarily consist of income from the out-licensing of intellectual property, and other licensing and supply arrangements with various parties. Revenue from license
fees is recognised when control transfers to the third party and the Company’s performance obligations are satisfied. Some of these arrangements include certain performance
obligations by the Company. Revenue from such arrangements is recognised in the period in which the Company completes all its performance obligations.
d) Interest income and dividend
Interest income primarily comprises of interest from term deposits with banks. Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Note 1 Description of the Company and significant accounting policies (continued)
e) Income tax
Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
• the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit;
• differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
• taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
f) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use. General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance
or the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease agreement or the useful life, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) are accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors .
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Years
Buildings
- Factory and administrative buildings
20 to 30
- Ancillary structures
3 to 15
Plant and machinery
3 to 15
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
3 to 10
Vehicles
4 to 5
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (“Schedule”) prescribes the useful lives for various classes of tangible assets. For certain class of assets, based on the technical evaluation
and assessment, the Company believes that the useful lives adopted by it best represent the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use. Accordingly, for these
assets, the useful lives estimated by the Company are different from those prescribed in the Schedule.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date is disclosed as capital advances under other non-current assets. The cost
of property, plant and equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. Assets not ready for use are not depreciated.

g) Inventories
Inventories consist of raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress and finished goods and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of all
categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on
normal operating capacity. Stores and spares, that do not qualify to be recognised as property, plant and equipment, consists of packing materials, engineering spares (such as
machinery spare parts) and consumables (such as lubricants, cotton waste and oils), which are used in operating machines or consumed as indirect materials in the manufacturing
process.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The factors that the Company considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory include estimated shelf life, planned product
discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory and introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets.
The Company considers all these factors and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis.
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Note 1 Description of the Company and significant accounting policies (continued)
h) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when the services are received from the employees.
i) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Restructuring
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been
announced publicly. Future operating costs are not provided.
Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
Reimbursement rights
Expected reimbursements for expenditures required to settle a provision are recognised only when receipt of such reimbursements is virtually certain. Such reimbursements are
recognised as a separate asset in the balance sheet, with a corresponding credit to the specific expense for which the provision has been made.
Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.
j) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
All financial assets are recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Companny commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Impairment of trade receivables
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivables or any
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.
For this purpose, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on the trade receivable balances. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified,as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments
k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For this purpose, “short-term” means investments having maturity of three months or less from the date of investment. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of our cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.
l) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
m) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially ate fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Note 2 Notes to the financial statements
Note 2.1 Property, Plant and equipment

Gross Block
Description

Buildings
Furniture, Fixtures and
office equipments
TOTAL
Previous Year

As at
1.04.2020

Additions

Deletions

Depreciation
Forex
adjustments

As at
31.03.2021

As at
1.04.2020

For the
year

Deletions

Forex
As at
adjustments 31.03.2021

Net Block
As at
As at
31.03.2021
31.03.2020

2,286

-

-

61

2,347

286

1,173

-

8

1,467

880

2,000

74
2,360
-

79
79
2,264

-

1
62
95

154
2,500
2,360

14
300
-

36
1,209
295

-

0
8
5

51
1,517
300

103
983
2,060

59
2,060
-
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Note 2 Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial assets
2.2 Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

55
55

4,493
4,493

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

303
16,446
16,749

305
305

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

302
450
752

207
2,728
2,935

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balances with banks:
- In current accounts

2.3 Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Other current financial assets

2.4 Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Balances with statutory authorities
Other advances

2.5 Share capital

Authorised share capital
TWD 14,000,000 (31 March 2020: TWD 12,000,000)*

31,871

26,775

Issued equity capital
TWD 14,000,000 (31 March 2020: TWD 12,000,000)*

31,871

26,775

31,871
31,871

26,775
26,775

Subscribed and fully paid-up
TWD 14,000,000 (31 March 2020: TWD 12,000,000)*
* No concept of nature and number of shares in this Company.
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA

As at
31 March 2021
Amount in
TWD ('000)
12,000

As at
31 March 2020

% holding in
the class
100.00

As at
31 March 2021
2.6 Financial liabilities
Non current borrowings
Long term maturities - Secured

-

Amount in
TWD ('000)
12,000

% holding in
the class
100.00

As at
31 March 2020

909
909

2.7 Other current financial liabilities
As at
31 March 2021
Other liabilities payable to holding and other group companies
Current maturities of long term debt
Others

933
539
1,472

As at
31 March 2020
1,110
427
1,537

2.8 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable
Salary and bonus payable

As at
31 March 2021
783
275
1,058

As at
31 March 2020
609
609
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Note 2 Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2.9 Revenue from operations

License fees & service income

For the year ended
31 March 2021
15,893
15,893

For the period ended
31 March 2020
-

For the year ended

For the period ended

2.10 Other income
31 March 2021
Interest income

-

31 March 2020
5
5

2.11 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

5,417
539
270
6,226
For the year ended
31 March 2021

2.12 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

1,209
1,209
For the year ended
31 March 2021

2.13 Finance cost
Interest on other borrowings

39
39

4,890
371
198
5,459
For the year ended
31 March 2020
295
295
For the year ended
31 March 2020
14
14

2.14 Selling and other expenses
For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Legal and professional
Rent
Travel and conveyance
Foreign exchange gain, net
Other general expenses

2,891
90
1,261
4,242

1,593
710
52
11
2,016
4,382

2.15 Going Concern
The accounts have been prepared on Going Concern basis, despite incurring losses, as the company is supported by its parent company in its activities and financial affairs.

2.16 Related parties
a. The company has the following related party transactions:
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

Services to holding company
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited

15,893

As at
31 March 2020
-

b. The Company had the following amounts due from / to related parties
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

Due from holding company and other group companies(included in current assets):
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited

16,446

2.17 Income taxes
a. Current Taxes
The Company is not liable to pay any current taxes on account of current year losses, brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation.
b. Deferred Taxes
The deferred tax liability has not been provided during the year as there is no liability arising out of any timing difference.

As at
31 March 2020
-
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Note 2 Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2.18 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities and the crystallisation of these liabilities are dependent upon the outcome of court cases / arbitration / out of court settlement, disposal of appeals, the
amount being called up, terms of contractual obligation, development and raising of demand by concerned parties, respectively. The Company has made adequate
provisions, wherever required, in compliance with Ind AS 37 prescribed by the ICAI. Those contingent liabilities have arisen in the normal course of business and may not
crystallise on the Company and may not have any material impact on the revenue.

For A Ramachandra Rao & Co.
ICAI Firm registration number: 002857S
Chartered Accountants

PSRVV Surya Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 202367
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Taiwan Limited

M V Narasimham
Director

Sameer Natu
Director
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บริษัท แอคเคาท์ติ้ง เอ็กซ์เพิร์ท จากัด
ACCOUNTING EXPERT COMPANY LIMITED
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Opinion
I have audited the financial statements of Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd. (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statements of income and changes
in equity for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and its financial performance for the year then ended in
accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standard for Non-Publicly Accountable Entities (TFRS for
NPAEs).
Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty
the King that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRS for NPAEs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my
audit.

(Tanchanit Tantanasiriwong)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 10693
26 April 2021
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020
(Unit: Baht)
Notes
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Land, property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

2020

2019

4

9,495,925.72
59,019,456.77
2,473,824.31
1,224,162.20
72,213,369.00

13,024,301.10
17,872,598.09
1,090,655.66
31,987,554.85

5
6

2,793,539.80
759,525.00
488,778.44
4,041,843.24
76,255,212.24

1,783,383.75
348,778.44
2,132,162.19
34,119,717.04

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020
(Unit: Baht)
Notes
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans from related parties
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Registered share capital
3,000,000 ordinary shares of par Baht 10 each
Issued and paid-up share capital
100,000 ordinary shares, fully paid up
2,900,000 ordinary shares, paid up Baht 5 each
Retained earnings (Deficits)
Unappropriated
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

7

2020

2019

36,376,702.37
9,333,973.69
45,710,676.06

8,759,420.54
7,425,408.93
16,184,829.47

40,000,000.00
40,000,000.00
85,710,676.06

30,000,000.00
30,000,000.00
46,184,829.47

30,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

1,000,000.00
14,500,000.00

1,000,000.00
14,500,000.00

(24,955,463.82)
(9,455,463.82)
76,255,212.24

(27,565,112.43)
(12,065,112.43)
34,119,717.04

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)
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Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Statement of Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Unit: Baht)
2020
Revenues
Sales income
Other income
Total revenue
Expenses
Cost of sales
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Profit (loss) before finance costs and income tax expense
Finance costs
Profit (loss) before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net profit (loss) for the year

2019

82,793,092.43
865,604.64
83,658,697.07

16,530,776.00
164,306.90
16,695,082.90

42,861,083.91
18,704,680.13
18,701,478.88
80,267,242.93
3,391,454.14
781,805.53
2,609,648.61
2,609,648.61

9,721,504.54
8,660,073.04
22,564,022.56
40,945,600.14
(24,250,517.24)
209,375.01
(24,459,892.25)
(24,459,892.25)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)

880

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Unit: Baht)
Issued and paid-up
share capital
Balance as at 1 January 2019

Retained earnings
(deficits)
Unappropriated

Total

10,280,000.00

(3,105,220.18)

7,174,779.82

5,220,000.00

-

5,220,000.00

-

(24,459,892.25)

(24,459,892.25)

Balance as at 31 December 2019

15,500,000.00

(27,565,112.43)

(12,065,112.43)

Balance as at 1 January 2020

15,500,000.00

(27,565,112.43)

(12,065,112.43)

-

2,609,648.61

2,609,648.61

15,500,000.00

(24,955,463.82)

(9,455,463.82)

Paid share capital
Net profit (loss) for the year

Net profit (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2020

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
1. General information
Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd. (“the Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Thailand on
13 June 2018 with registration no.0105561099948. The address of the Company’s head office is Unit 1607,
16th Floor, 1 Empire Tower, South Sathorn Road, Yannawa, Sathorn, Bangkok.
The principal businesses in which the Company is engaged is the registration, importation, processing, promotion,
distribution and wholesale of pharmaceutical products for domestic consumption.
2. Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standard for
Non-publicly Accountable entities as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions and their presentation
has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development
dated 28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
An English version of the Company financial statements have been prepared from the statutory financial statements
that are in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages,
the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.
3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Revenues and expenses recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting
discounts and allowances.
Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)
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Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
3.3 Trade account receivables
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally
based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.
3.4 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
average cost method.
3.5 Land, property and equipment
Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
(if any).
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life as below:Office Equipment
5 years
Furnitures and Fixtures
5 years
Computers
3 years
Vehicles
5 years

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
3.6 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and losses on decline in value (if any).
Amortization is recongnized in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
intangible assets.
3.7 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
3.8 Income tax
Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities,
based on taxable profits determined in accordance with the Revenue Code.
4. Cash and cash equivalents
2020
15,000.08
9,480,925.64
9,495,925.72

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Total

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)

(Unit : Baht)
2019
13,024,301.10
13,024,301.10
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Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
5. Land, property and equipment

Cost
Office Equipment
Furnitures and Fixtures
Computer equipment
Vehicles
Total
Accumulated depreciation
Office Equipment
Furnitures and Fixtures
Computer equipment
Vehicles
Total
Book value

(Unit : Baht)
Value as at
31-Dec-20

Value as at
1-Jan-20

Movement during the year
Increase
Decrease

791,320.84
1,080,700.22
216,659.25
2,088,680.31

19,272.00
28,276.63
1,466,000.00
1,513,548.63

-

791,320.84
1,099,972.22
244,935.88
1,466,000.00
3,602,228.94

74,058.98
181,242.05
49,995.53
305,296.56
1,783,383.75

158,264.17
219,320.44
78,543.49
47,264.48
503,392.58

-

232,323.15
400,562.49
128,539.02
47,264.48
808,689.14
2,793,539.80

Depreciation for the year 2020
Depreciation for the year 2019

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)

503,392.58
305,296.56

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84204FB8-2645-4791-B3E3-9F61D0863CC1

Dr.Reddy's Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
6. Intangible assets
Intangible assets at 31 December 2020 relate to the first installments paid by the Company
towards the licence fees of products for which market authorization had not yet been granted
in Thailand.
7. Long-term loans from related parties
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had long-term loans from a related party. Interest is charged at
a rate of 2.50% per annum and then adjusted to be 2% per annum since 1 April 2020. The loans are payable on
or before the completion of 5 years from the date of the agreement, with no collateral.
8. Financial statements authorisation
These financial statements were authorised by the directors of the company.

Signed .......................................................... Director
(Mr.Kailash Uday Patki)
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of

Dr. Reddy's Research and Development B V
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Reddy's Research and Development
B V. a company incorporated and administered outside India, which comprises the Balance sheet as at 31
March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended on
that date annexed thereto, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared for the limited purpose of complying with the provisions of Section 136
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible, in accordance with the
requirement of and only for the purpose of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the matters with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended only to the extent applicable and relevant to a company
incorporated outside India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
The Management of the Company is further responsible for ensuring that the financial statements, as far as
possible, are in accordance with the requirement of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
The audit is limited and only to express an opinion on the financial statements, prepared only to comply with
the requirements and for the purpose of sec.136 of the Companies Act, 2013, whether they give a true and fair
view of, as the case may be, state of affairs etc. It is not an audit in accordance with the provisions of the statutes
of the country in which it was established and operated as may be applicable to the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit carried out for the
limited purpose of complying with Section 136. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India specified under Section 143(10) of the Act,
only to the extent applicable and relevant to a company incorporated outside India.
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This report is based on our examination of the accompanying financial statements and other relevant records
and information considered necessary for the purposes of issuing this report and the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act, to the extent applicable and relevant to a company
incorporated outside India, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), of the Profit for the
year ended on that date; and
(C) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

(d) in the case of Statement of Changes in Equity, of the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

For M/s A Ramachandra Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 02857S

S R V V Surya Rao Ponnada
Partner
Membership No. 202367
UDIN NO. 21202367AAABYE6783
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11th May 2021
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Dr. Reddy’s S.r.l. a Socio unico

Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Statutory Financial Statements as at March 31st, 2021 pursuant to art. 14 of Legislative
Decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

This report has been translated into the English language from the original, which was issued in Italian,
solely for the convenience of international readers
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Independent Auditor’s Report
pursuant to art. 14 of Legislative Decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010
To the sole shareholder of
Dr. Reddy’s S.r.l.

Report on the Statutory financial statements
Unqualified Opinion
We have audited the Statutory financial statements of the Dr. Reddy’s S.r.l. (the Company), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31st, 2021, the income statement, and the other explanatory information for
the period then ended.
In our opinion the Statutory financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at March 31st, 2021 and of its financial performance for the period then ended in accordance
with the Italian laws and regulations that govern their preparation.

Basis for Unqualified Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italy). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Independent Audit Company’s
responsibilities for the audit of the Statutory financial statements” section of this report. We are independent
from Dr. Reddy’s S.r.l., in accordance with the rules and principles of ethics and independence applicable in
Italian law to the auditing of financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
unqualified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Statutory financial statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these Statutory financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the Italian laws and regulations that govern their preparation and, as provided
by the law, for such internal control as they determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Statutory
financial statements that are free from material misstatements due to fraud or unintentional acts or events.
The Directors are responsible for assessing the capacity of the Company to continue operating as a going
concern entity and, in preparing the statutory financial statements, for the appropriateness of using the
going concern basis of accounting, and for the adequate disclosure in this regard. The Directors use the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the Statutory financial statements unless they either intends to
liquidate the company Dr. Reddy’s S.r.l. or to cease operations or have no realistic alternatives but to do so.

Independent audit Company’s responsibilities for the audit of the Statutory financial statements
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statutory financial
statements are free from material misstatements, due to fraud or unintentional acts or events, and to issue
an audit Company’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high-level assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA
Italy) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or
unintentional acts or events and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions taken by the users based on the Statutory
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italy), we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the entire audit process. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statutory financial statements, whether
due to fraud or unintentional acts or events. Design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from unintentional acts or events, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control;

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Company’s internal control;

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Directors;

•

Reach a conclusion on appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting used by the
Directors and, based on the obtained evidence, on the possible existence of significant uncertainty
concerning events or circumstances that may arise significant doubts over the capacity of the
Company to continue operating as a going concern entity. In case of a significant uncertainty, we
have to call the reader’s attention in the audit Company’s report to the related information in the
Statutory financial statements or, if that information is inadequate, to consider this circumstance in
expressing our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
this audit report. Nevertheless, subsequent events or circumstances may cause the Company to
cease operations as a going concern entity;

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statutory financial statements as a
whole and whether the Statutory financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We have communicated with the persons in charge of governance activities that have been identified at an
appropriate level in accordance with the requirements of the ISA Italy, among other matters, regarding the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
Milan, May 7th, 2021
Audirevi S.p.A.

Signed by
Davide Borsani
Partner
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Dr Reddy's S.r.l. (with a sole shareholder)
Legal Seat in Milan - Piazza Santa Maria Beltrade, n. 1
Share Capital Euro 99.000,00 - fully paid - in
Fiscal code and Milan Registry of Trading Companies
fiscal code and VAT number: 01650760505
Registered to Milan CCIAA n. 1882447

Financial Statements as of March 31, 2021
(Drawn up pursuant art. 2435-bis C.C.)
(amounts are in Euro)

Balance Sheet
Assets

31.03.2021

31.03.2020

4,44,529

5,30,672

B) Fixed assets
I.

Intangible assets

II.

Tangible assets

5,979

7,201

III.

Financial assets

54,398

50,434

5,04,906

5,88,307

Totale immobilizzazioni
C) Current assets
I.

Stock

28,55,556

26,01,143

II.

Accounts receivable
- falling due within one year
- falling due after more than one year
Total accounts receivable

46,14,007
0
46,14,007

38,37,513

3,38,709

60,118

78,08,272

64,98,774

8,854

14,491

83,22,032

71,01,572

III.

Financial assets not representing fixed assets
Total financial assets not representing fixed assets

IV.

Liquid assets

Total current assets
D) Accrued income and pre payments

Total assets

38,37,513
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Liabilities

31.03.2021

31.03.2020

99,000
11,883
47,17,433
0
(17,02,907)

99,000
11,833
38,93,228
15,103
(6,70,848)

31,25,409

33,48,316

A) Shareholders equity
I.
IV.
VI.
VIII.
IX.

Share Capital
Legal reserve
Other reserves
Retained earnings / (loss carried forward)
Operating profit (loss)

Total
B) Provisions for risks and liabilities

6,45,223

7,79,149

C) Provision for employees' leaving indemnity

1,82,943

1,69,268

43,68,457

28,04,839

43,68,457

28,04,839

0

0

83,22,032

71,01,572

D) Accounts payable
- falling due within one year
- falling due after more than one year
Total acconts payable
E) Accrued liabilities and deferred income

Total liabilities
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Profit and loss account
31.03.2021

31.03.2020

A) Revenues
1)
Sales and services
2)
Changes on stock of goods in process, semi-finished goods and finished goods
5)
Miscellaneous revenues

1,00,40,437
0
0

82,56,648
30,843

Total revenues

1,00,40,437

82,87,491

82,41,138
17,55,568
45,270

54,40,500
13,38,765
38,769

9,53,448
1,90,348
34,548
0
11,78,344

6,59,721
2,11,006
43,137
299
9,14,163

1,79,073
2,117

15,258
949

B) Expenses
6)
For raw materials, subsidiarymaterials, consumables and goods
7)
Services
8)
Rent/Lease
9)
Personnel
a) Salary and wages
b) Social security contributions
c) Employees' leaving indemnity
d)
10)

Depreciation and write-downs
a) Depreciation of intangible assets
b) Depreciation of tangible assets
c) Other devaluation of tangible assets
d) Bad debts accruals

59,519

63,188

2,40,709

79,395

-2,54,413
2,79,675
1,65,967
91,086

-1,63,313
3,79,491
1,44,237
7,86,332

Total expenses

1,17,43,344

89,58,339

Difference between revenues and expenses (A-B)

(17,02,907)

(6,70,848)

(17,02,907)

(6,70,848)

0

0
0

(17,02,907)

(6,70,848)

Total depreciation and write-down
11)
12)
13)
14)

Changes in stock of raw material, subsidiary materials, expendable materials and good
Risk accruals
Other accruals
Other management costs

C) Financial income and costs
16)
Other financial income
17)

Interest and other financial cost
d) other than the above

17) bis

Exchange gains and losses

Totale proventi e oneri finanziari

Total financial income and costs
20)

Taxes on the income for the year
- current taxes
- deferred taxes

21) Profit (Loss) for the year
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Dr Reddy’s S.r.l.

Dr Reddy’s S.r.l. (with a sole quotaholder)
Registered office at Milano – Piazza Santa Maria Beltrade, n. 1
Share capital EURO 99.000,00 i.v.
Taxpayer’s ID and Companies Register no. 01650760505
Registered to Milan CCIAA no. 1882447
Fiscal code and VAT number no. 01650760505

ABRI DGED EXPLANATORY NOTE PURSUANT ART. 2435
BIS C.C. ON T HE FINANCI AL STATEMENT AS OF MARCH,
31 2021
STRUCTURE, CONTENT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

AND

DRAFTING

PRINCIPLES

OF

The financial statements for the financial year closed on March 31, 2021, of which this
explanatory note is part, have been drafted in accordance with the rules of the Civil Code (c.c.)
supplemented by accounting principles issued by the Italian Accounting Body (O.I.C).
The drafting principles and the valuation criteria are based on the general principles of
prudence, competence and going concern basis, and taking into account of the economic
function of the asset or liability element considered.
The criteria for evaluating the individual posts respect the formal and substantive content of
the Legislative Decree of 9 April 1991, n. 127 and of the accounting standards approved by the
Italian Accounting Authority (O.I.C.).
Going Concern
The Company has decided to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis, in
view of the results forecast in the business plan and the financial support of the shareholder,
who most recently, on 8 May 2020, recapitalised the company by means of a capital contribution
for a total amount of EUR 1,480,000.
The criteria adopted for this financial statements drafting are in accordance with the provisions
of art. 2426 C.C. It have not occured derogation use pursuant art. 2423 paragraph 4.
It have been also taking into account the financial year risks and losses, even though they have
been known after the financial year closing date, but before the financial statements drafting.
The financial statements have been drawn up in an abridged form, pursuant to art. 2435 C.C.,
remembering the assumptions.
It is also noted that the explanatory note is drafted in Euro.
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VALUATION CRITERIA
The valuation criteria are exposed as follows.
Intangible assets
Their registration is based on the fact that these expenses can provide future benefits whose
economic utility will continue over time; they are recorded at the cost incurred for their
acquisition. They are systematically amortized in relation to their residual utilization potential.
Description
Research, development and advertising cost
Marketing authorised products
Software Licenses

Depreciation Rate
20%
20%
20%

Fixed assets whose value at the the financial year closing date is permanently lower than the
depreciated cost in accordance with the above exposed criteria, are recorded at this lower value.
In the Balance Sheet, the value of intangible assets is shown net of all depreciation and possible
value adjustments.
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are accounted at historical cost and the adjusted provisions of such items
are carried directly decreasing the assets.
The ordinary depreciation has been calculated systematically on the basis of rates considered
representative of the residual utilization possibility of each category of asset.
The depreciation rate adopted for office machines is 20%. Commercial equipment is fully
depreciated at the date of preparation of these financial statements.
In the financial year, in which the asset comes into operation, the depreciations are calculated
using the above-mentioned rates, reduced by 50%, assuming that purchases are
homogeneously distributed throughout the year.
In the event that, irrespective of the depreciation already accounted, there is a permanent loss
of value, the asset is correspondingly devaluated; if in the subsequent financial years the
assumptions of the value adjustment are no longer met, the original value is restored.

Assets that can be used independently, if their usefulness is limited to one financial
year, are fully depreciated during the year.
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Financial fixed assets
Fixed assets are valued on the basis of their estimated realizable value. The other financial fixed
assets are stated at the acquisition cost inclusive of the related ancillary costs.
Inventories
Raw materials and products inventories are stated at the lower of purchase or production cost,
including ancillary costs, and the market estimated realizable value. The value of such
inventories is restored if the reasons for the value adjustments are no longer met.
The method used to determine the cost is that of the specific cost. The advances are stated in
the balance sheet assets at nominal value.
Receivables
Receivables are recorded at the estimated realizable value resulting from the difference between
the nominal value and the receivables value adjustments provisions, determined to meet the
expected recoverability risks.
Conversion criteria of the extra UEM currency items.
Currency assets and liabilities, except the fixed assets, are stated at the spot exchange rate at the
end of the year and the related profits and losses on exchange are recognized in the Profit and
Loss Account. The possible net income is allocated in a non-distributable reserve until the
realization. Fixed assets in currency are recorded at the exchange rate at the time of their
purchase or at the lower of the year-end if the reduction is considered durable.
Liquid assets
Liquid assets at financial year closing date are stated at nominal value.
Accrued income and prepayments
These items include those costs and income, common to two or more years, in accordance with
the principle of economic and temporal competence.
Net equity
The share capital subscription is occurred at the nominal value of the shares subscribed by the
shareholder.
The reserve registration is occured at nominal value.
Provisions for risks and charges
Provisions for risks and charges are allocated to cover exsisting or probable losses or debts,
whose exact amount or the occurrence date can not be determined at financial year closing. The
appropriations reflect the best possible estimate based on the commitments made and the
available elements. The accruals for provisions for risks and charges are classified according to
the nature of the transaction in the corresponding Profit and Loss Account items.
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Indemnities for termination of subordinate employment
The Indemnities for termination of subordinate employment reflects the indemnity provided
for the Italian law and that will be liquidate when the employee leaves the Company. In the
presence of specific conditions, it may be partially anticipated to the employee during the
working life.
With particular reference to companies with fewer than 50 employees, this institution can be
considered a defined benefit plan exclusively for the portions accrued before January 1, 2007
(and not yet paid at the balance sheet date) and for the portions accrued after that date. for those
employees who have chosen to keep the severance pay in the company. While for the shares
accrued after 1 January 2007 by employees who have allocated the T.f.r. to pension funds, it is
comparable to a defined contribution plan.
In the case of defined benefit plans, the liability includes the amounts accrued in favor of
personnel for indemnities for termination of subordinate employment due according to the law,
net of the advanced payments paid and net of what has already been paid to the employees.
In the case of defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to public or private
insurance institutes. With the contributions payments, the Company fulfills all its obligations.
The liabilities for contributions to be paid as of the balance sheet date are included under the
item "Payables to social security institutions"; the cost in the period accrues on the basis of the
service rendered by the employee and is recognized among the personnel costs under the item
"Indemnities for termination of subordinate employment ".
Payables
Payables are stated at nominal value.
Revenues recognition
Revenues from products sales are recognized at the time of the ownership transfer, which
normally identifies with the goods delivery or shipment of the goods.
Financial revenues and those deriving from the services provisions are recognized on a timely
basis.
Revenues and income, costs and charges relating to currency transactions are determined at the
exchange rate on the date on which the relevant transaction is made.
Income and expenses interest, other costs and revenues
They are exposed in the financial statements in accordance with the accrual and economic
principle.

Income taxes
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Income taxes of the financial year are determined on the basis of a realistic estimate of the tax
obligations to be accomplished, in accordance with current tax legislation. The tax liability is
shown under "Tax payables" net of paid advances and withholdings.
If advances paid and possible receivables resulting from previous financial years are higher
than the tax due, the net credit to the tax authorities is recorded among the receivables under
"Tax receivables".

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
In compliance with the accounting principle no. 25 of the Italian Accounting Organization,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized in the "tax provision" item and the assets for deferred tax
assets in the item "deferred tax assets", calculated on the temporary differences between the
values of the assets and liabilities stated in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
values.
In accordance with this principle, deferred taxes assets are accounted only in so far as there is a
reasonable certainty of their total future recovery.
Deferred tax assets receivables and deferred tax liabilities payables are offset if compensation
is legally permitted.
The company, at the 31.03.2021 did not register deferred tax.
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ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL ITEMS
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
B)

FIXED ASSETS

B.I)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Net intangible assets at the end of the financial year amounted to Euro 444,529 and show a net
decrease compared to the values recorded at March 31, 2020, equal to Euro 86,143. The
movements in the item are shown in the following table:
Description

Intangible assets

Historical costs
Depreciation provisions
Net value as of 31.03.2020
Financial year increases
Decreases/Disposals of the year
Financial year depreciations

609,706
(79,034)
530,672
388,374
(295,444)
(179,073)

Net value as of 31.03.2021

444,529

The financial year movements, broken down by asset category, are shown in the table below:

Category
Historical costs
Depreciation provisions
Net value as of 31.03.2020
Financial year increases
Decreases/Disposals of the year
Financial year depreciations
Net value as of 31.03.2021

B.II)

AIC
development

AIC
on the
market
230,583
(64,667)
165,916
222,424

Software
programs

Total
609,706
(79,034)
530,672
388,374
(295,444)
(179,073)
444,529

364,611
364,611
165,950
(295,444)
-

(178,928)

14,512
(14,367)
145
(145)

235,117

209,412

0

Tangible fixed assets

Net fixed assets, equal to Euro 5,979, has recorded a net decrease compared to the values
recorded at March 31, 2020, equal to Euro 1,222. The movements in the item are shown in the
following table:
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Description

Tangible assets

Historical costs
Depreciation provisions
Net value as of 31.03.2020
Financial year increases
Financial year decreases
Financial year depreciations

20,721
(13,520)
7,201
895
(2,117)

Net value as of 31.03.2021

5,979

The financial year movements, broken down by asset category, are shown in the table below:

Category

Commercial
equipment

Office
machines

Total

1,910
(1,910)
-

18,811
(11,610)
7,201
895

20,721
(13,520)
7,201
895

-

(2,117)

(2,117)

-

5,979

5,979

Historical costs
Depreciation provisions
Net value as of 31.03.2020
Financial year increases
Financial year decreases
Financial year depreciations
Net value as of 31.03.2021

The increase of Euro 895 refers to the cost incurred for the purchase of a PC.
B.III) Financial Assets
Financial assets include guaranteed disposals for Euro 11,724 and Bank guarantees for Euro
42,674; these guarantees are among the requirements for participation in tenders for the supply
of pharmaceuticals. Both values are due beyond the next financial year.

C)

CURRENT ASSETS

C.I)
Inventories
The item detail is the following:

Category

Balance as of
31.03.2020

Increases
(Decreases)

Finished products and goods
Finished products value adjustments provision

3,536,125
(934,982)

3,026,341
(2,771,928)

Total Inventories

2,601,143

254,413

Balance as of
31.03.2021
6,562,466
(3,706,910)
2,855,556
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C.II) Receivables
The receivables stated in the current assets, compared to March 31, 2020, have recordered an
increase equal to Euro 776,494 and the balance broken down by category, is composed as
follows:
Balance as of
31.03.2020

Category

Increases
(Decreases)

Balance as of
31.03.2021

Customers receivables
Parent Company Receivables
Receivables from companies subject to the control of
the parent companies
Tax receivables
Others

2,510,969
7,000
1,245,054

405,971
(2,000)
(44,311)

2,916,940
5,000
1,200,743

66,490
8,000

414,834
2,000

481,324
10,000

Total

3,837,513

776,494

4,614,007

C.II.1) Receivables from customers
The composition of this item is shown in the following table:
Category

Balance as of 31.03.2021

Italy customers
Bad debts provision

3,151,978
(235,039)

Receivables from customers

2,916,940

Receivables from customers relate to commercial transactions with Italian subjects and are fully
payable within the year. The item is shown in the financial statements net of the related writedown.
The bad debt provision, equal to Euro 235,039, has recorded the following movements:

Category
Bad debt provision

Balance as of
31.03.2020

Accrual

Utilization

Saldo al
31.03.2021

182,280

59,519

(6,760)

235,039

C II.4) Receivables from Parent Company
The balance of Euro 5,000 refers to a non-interest bearing loan granted during the year to the
parent company Reddy Pharma. This loan will be paid off by the end of next year.
C II. 5) Receivables from companies subject to the control of the parent companies
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The balance of Euro 1,200,743 includes trade receivables due from group companies, in
particular from French company (Euro 621,000), English company (Euro 154,018) and Spanish
company (Euro 326,304).
C.II.5.bis) Tax receivables
The tax receivables, equal to Euro 481,325 are mainly attributable to the VAT receivable. The
composition of tax credits is as follows:

Category

Balance as of
31.03.2021

IRES receivables
VAT receivables
VAT credit (previous years)

17,769
133,936
329,620

Total tax receivables

481,705

C.II.5 quater) Other recivables
The item include receivables for employees advances (Euro 10,000).
C.IV) Liquid assets
The composition of the item “Liquid assets” is summarized in the table below:

Category

Balance as of
31.03.2021

Bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

338,708
-

Liquid assets

338,708

D) Accrued income and prepayments
This item, equal to Euro 8,853, is mainly composed from assistance costs.
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LIABILITIES AND NET EQUITY
A) NET EQUITY
The net equity movements occurred during the financial year are shown in the following table:

IV
Legal
reserve

I.
Share
Capital

VII.
Capital
injections

VIII
Profit (Loss)
carried
forward

IX.
Profit/(Loss)
of the
financial
year

Ending
balance

Net equity as of 31.03.2018
Increases 2018/19
Utilization 2018/19
Result of the financial year
2018/19
Net equity as of 31.03.2019
Increases 2019/20
Utilization 2019/20
Result of the financial year
2019/20
Net equity as of 31.03.2020
Increases 2020/21
Utilization 2020/21
Result of the financial year
2020/21

99,000
-

11,833
-

1,393,228
-

224,833
-

236,666
(236,666)
(209,730)

1,728,894
(209,730)

99,000

11,833
-

1,393,228
2,500,000

224,833

(209,730)

(209,730)

209,730
(670,848)

1,519,164
2,500,000
(670,848)

Net equity as of 31.03.2021

99,000

A.I)

11,833
-

99,000

3,893,228
1,480,000
(655,795)

15,103

(670,848)

(15,103)

670,848
(1,702,907)

3,348,316
2,150,848
(1,702,907)

4,717,433

-

(1,702,907)

3,125,409

11,833

Share capital

The share capital, which is fully subscribed, amounts to Euro 99,000.
Pursuant art. 2427, no. 7 bis) c.c., it is provided a summery related to the possibility of the net
equity reserves utilization, showing the utilization of those reserves in the last three financial
year (values expressed in Euro):
Nature and description

Share capital
Capital reserve:
Quotaholder transfers for losses covering
Profits reserve:
Legal reserve
Profits (losses) carry forward

Amount

99,000

Possibility of
utilization

Available part

-

Utilizations made in the last
three financial year
To coverage
To other
losses
reasons

-

-

-

4,717,433

A,B,C

4,717,433

655,795

-

11,833

B
A,B,C

-

224,833

-

Part not to be distributed

1,702,907

Part that may be distributed

3,014,526

Legend: A for capital increase; B for losses covering; C for quotaholders distributions
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It should be noted that the parent company Reddy Pharma, on May 8, 2020, recapitalized the
company through a capital payment for a total amount of Euro 1,480,000.
B)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

This item, which as of March, 31 2021 is equal to Euro 645,223. On following there is the
movement of the Funds:

Category

Balance as of
31.03.2020

Increases

(Utilization)

Balance as of
31.03.2021

Damage purchasing provision
AIFA pay back provison

379,491

279,675

(451,630)

207,536

399,658

165,967

(127,938)

437,687

Total

779,149

445.642

(579,568)

645,223

The Aifa pay back provision is related to the payment due periodically to Agenzia Italiana del
farmaco, because of the business in which the company operates. The provision for damage
purchases was allocated and moved to meet customer requests as a result of any contractual
breaches.
C)

Indemnities for termination of subordinate employment

The indemnities for termination of subordinate employment of Euro 182,943 shows an increase
of Euro 13,675 compared to March, 31 2020.
Description

Amount

Beginning balance
Part accrued in the financial year
Other increases
Decreases/Adjustments

169.268
34.548
(20.873)

Balance as of 31.03.2021

182.943

The following table shows the financial year data on the composition of the employees:
Category

Average number as of
31.03.2020

Average number as of
31.03.2021

Executives
Employees
Workers

1
5
-

2
5
-

Total

6

7

D)

Payables
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As of March, 31 2021 the payables amount to Euro 4,368,457. The payables breakdown is the
following:

Description

Advances
Payables to suppliers
Payables to parent company
Payables to companies subject to
the control of the parent
companies
Tax payables
Payables to social security
institutions
Other payables
Total

Beg.
Balance

Increases
(Decreases)

Total
Payables as
of
31.03.2021

UE

1,613,556
374,493
560,553

15,605
(526,211)
2,047,028
(179,275)

15,605
1,087,345
2,421,521
381,278

15,605
961,929

19,119
31,500

(4,443)
9,661

14,676
41,161

14,676
41,161

205,618

201,253

406,871

406,871

1,563,618

4,368,457

1,821,520

2,804,839

Extra-UE

125,416
2,421,521

381,278

2,546,937

There are not payables that are filling due after five years. The analysis of the individual items
composing the balance is shown as follow.
D.6)
Advances
The balance of the item, equal to Euro 15,605, includes advances received from customers for
sales of goods not yet concluded.
D.7) Payables to suppliers
The balance of this item include payables to Italian suppliers for Euro 954,717 and payables to
European suppliers for Euro 7,212 and payables to Extra- European suppliers for Euro 125,415.
D.11) Payables to parent company
These are payables for the purchase of products from the Indian parent company.
D.11bis) Paybles to companies subject to the control of the parent companies
These are payables for purchases produced by the German company of the group
D.12) Tax payables
The item includes mainly payables for Irpef witholdings for Euro 13,507 and additional
(regional and municipal) payables for Euro 1,169.
D.13) Payables to social security institutions
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The payables to socialsecurity institutions are mainly constituted from INPS security
contributions for Euro 30,018.
D.14) Other payables
This item mainly consists of the payable to the former director of the Company for the agreed
settlement (Euro 200,000) and other payables to employees for holidays not taken (Euro 96,021)
and for bonuses (Euro 92,978).
In addition, regarding other information required by art. 2427, it is stated that:


the company does not own, directly or through trustee or intermediaries, holdings in
subsidiaries and related companies (art. 2427, paragraph 1, no. 5 C.C.)



there are no receivables and payables in the financial statement for transactions which
provide the obligation of repayment for the purchaser (art. 2427, paragraph 1, no.6 ter C.C.);



there are no financial charges attributable to the assets items acquisition of the Balance Sheet
(art. 2427, paragraph 1, no.8 C.C.).

COMMITMENTS,
LIABILITIES

GUARANTEES

AND

OTHER

POTENTIAL

The company has in being guarantees obtained in order to participate in the tenders for the
supply of pharmaceutical goods supply, for a total amount of Euro 4,139,582.
It should also be noted that the company did not receive grants, contributions, paid assignments
and in any case economic benefits referred to in L. 124/2017, art. 1, paragraph 25.

ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ITEMS
A)

VALUE OF PRODUCTION

The value of the production, equal to Euro 10,040,437, is composed as follows:
Description

31.03.2021

31.03.2020

Income from sales and performaces
Other income and earnings

10,040,437

8,256,648
30,843

Total

10,040,437

8,287,491

A.1) Income from sales and performaces
The incomes are related to sales of pharmaceutical products and are composed as follows:
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Description

Italia

UE

Revenues from third parties
Revenues from group companies

8,298,363
-

1,742,074

Total

8,298,363

1,742,074

B)

COSTS OF PRODUCTION

The datail of this item, equal to Euro 11,743,342, is composed as follows:
Description
For raw materials, subsidiary materials, consumables
For services
For rent and leases
Personnel costs
a) wages and salaries
b) social security contribution
c) indemnity for termination of employment
d) pensions and similar
Depreciations and value adjustment
a) depreciation of intangible assets
b) depreciation of tangible assets
c) other value adjustment of intangible assets
d) Receivables and liquid assets value adjustments stated in the current assets
Goods inventories variations
Accrual for liabilities
Other accruals
Other operating costs
Total

31.03.2021

31.03.2020

8,241,138
1,755,568
45,270

5,440,500
1,338,765
38,769

953,448
190,348
34,548

659,721
211,006
43,137
299

179,073
2,117

15,258
949

59,519
(254,413)
279,675
165,967
91,086
11,743,344

63,188
(163,313)
379,491
144,237
786,332
8,958,339

B.6) Raw materials, subsidiary materials, consumables
The item in question mainly consists of purchase costs for goods (Euro 8,147,206)
B.7) Costs for services
The item mainly includes of transport costs (Euro 118,274), costs for car reimbursements (Euro
37,260), costs related to reimbursement of expenses to employees (Euro 14,059), logistics costs
(Euro 256,862), costs related to the participation in tenders on drugs (Euro 74,839), consultancy
costs (Euro 45,193), expenses regulatory Consultancy (Euro 158,834), legal fees (Euro 222,412)
and expenses related to obtaining a marketing authorization (Euro 560,775).

B.8)
Costs for rent and leases
This item includes costs related to commercial rents (Euro 45,270).
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B.9) Personnel costs
The item detail is shown in the following table:

Description
Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Indemnity for termination of employment
Pensions and similar
Total

Balance as of
31.03.2021

Balance as of
31.03.2020

953,448
190,348
34,548

659,721
211,006
43,137
299

1,178,344

914,163

.
B.10) Depreciations and value adjustments
The depreciations of the financial year include software (Euro 145), depreciations of AIC on the
market (Euro 178,928) and of office machines (Euro 2,117). The entry also includes the provision
to the fund write-down credits for Euro 59,519.
B.11) Goods inventories variations
Represents the difference between the consistency of inventories of goods at the end and at the
beginning of the financial year.
Description

31.03.2021

31.03.2020

Goods inventories variations

(254,413)

(163,313)

Totale

(254,413)

(163,313)

B.12) Accrual for liabilities
This item includes the provision to the provision for penalty risks (Euro 279,675).
B.13) Other Accruals
This item includes the accrual to AIFA provision (Euro 165,967).
B.14) Operating costs
The operating costs are mainly rapresented by polygraph stickers (Euro 41,512), membership
fees (Euro 27,354) and postal expenses (Euro 7,491).
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INCOME TAX OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No current taxes are recognized
It is noted that for the financial year closed as of March 31st, 2019 it has been considered
prudently not to account deferred tax assets on tax losses as there are no conditions for their
inclusion in accordance with OIC accounting principles.
§ § §
Information required for the exemption from the Management report, pursuant art. 2428
C.C..
The company does not have parent companies shares or unit (art. 2428, paragraph 2, n.3 C.C.),
and not shares or unit have been disposed or purchased during the financial year (art. 2428,
paragraph 2, n.4 C.C.) also through trustee or intermediaries.
Amount and nature of costs and revenues of exceptional size or incidence
During this year, no revenues or other positive components were recognized deriving from
events of exceptional size or impact.
Transactions carried out with related parties
During the year, there were transactions with related parties which took place under normal
market conditions.
Information on agreements not resulting from the balance sheet
There are no agreements not included in the balance sheet information.
Information on significant events occurring after the end of the financial year
There are no significant events that took place after the close of the financial year, except for the
persistence of the health emergency from Covid-19 which generated a context of general
uncertainty whose evolutions and related effects are difficult to predict.
During the year, no elements emerged that could call into question the assumption of business
continuity according to which the financial statements were drawn up, also in light of the equity
and financial support guaranteed by the group, where deemed necessary.

OTHER INFORMATIONS
This financial statement is composed by Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and
explanatory note, provides a true and accurate picture of the Company’s financial position and
performance and of the Profit or Loss income of the financial year.

Pagina 16 di 17

965

Financial Statement as of March, 31 2021

Dr Reddy’s S.r.l.

We invite you to approve the financial statement and explanatory note as they have been shown
and we invite you to deliberate on the coverage of the loss of exercise equal to Euro 1,702,907
using the available profit reserve.
Milan, • 2021

Chairman of Board of Directors
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